KLY a i

dl-Bubaira j%atwna[ Ingurance Co.

Integrated report

For the financial year ended 31°* December 2024



dl-Bubaira j%atwnal Ingurance Co.

Contents

# Section Page Number
1 | Board of Directors Report 3
2 | Consolidated Financial Statements 4
3 | Corporate Governance Report 2024 87
4 | ABNIC Sustainability Report 2024 120




@I -{Bubaira ﬁatmna[ Zanuranre Co.

LS el Pl ) Lag S e (YY) cans il Syl oy (10) b i ol il 58 S b Bkl Yo+ Y Bd (V) ) golai ¥ il plSa Y dauols faledaalone 1550

70\/?./\/\00&\]4 — V- 0WVEEEE (il v e i Ladl— A S saan— G s g L — GaelB B el g et 1 38 5l
Head Office : Abnic Tower - Corniche Road - Khalid Lagoon - Sharjah - P.O Box 6000, Tel. 06 - 5174444 - Fax 06 - 5748855

Ref.: 717-45/231/2025
Date: 25/03/2025

The Disclosures & Compliance Section
Market Operations Surveillance Department
Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange

Abu Dhabi — UAE

Board of Directors’ Report For
The Year Ended 31/12/2024

Al-Buhaira National Insurance Co. (ABNIC) has relatively improved its technical
results in spite of recurrent natural mis happenings. It is rewarding to note that the
Company’s management has decided to increase the outstanding motor claims
reserve (OSLR) as well as IBNR which reflect a conservative attitude in view of the
increase of the average cost of claims.

The Company reported insurance losses of AED 51.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2024 compared to AED 149.5 million losses for the year ended
31 December 2023. The Company’s net losses amounted to AED 37 million in 2024
compared to AED 132.8 million net loss in 2023. The Company’s Shareholders equity
stood at AED 456 million as on 31/12/2024 compared to AED 497 million on
31/12/2023. The total assets stood at AED 1,916 million compared to AED 1,719
million as at 31/12/2023.

ABNIC is continuously improving its core competencies and enhancing its risk
management controls in line with the principles and practices of corporate governance
in order to protect the rights of its shareholders and policyholders. The Company is
implementing a selective and conservative policy in procuring insurance business and
investment products. ABNIC is keen to introduce new insurance products that satisfy
the increasing needs of its clients.
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Directors’ report

The Board of Directors has pleasure in submitting their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2024,

Incorporation and registered offices

Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.S.C. (the “Parent Company”), is incomorated as a pablic sharcholding
Company by an Emiri Decree issued by His Highness, The Ruler of Shatjah on 16 May 1978. The Pacent Company is
subject to the regulations of UAE Federal Law No. (48) of 2023 (previously UAE Federal Taw No. 6 of 2007, as
amended), concerning the formation of Insurance Companles register of the Central Bank of the UAE. ("CBUAE"),
The Parent Company is registered in the Insurance Companies register of the Central Bank of the UAE. under
registration number 15. The address of the Parcnt Company'’s registored corporate office is P.O. Box 6000, Sharjsh,
Unitcd Arab Emirates.

The Groap consists of Al Buhaira National Company P.5.C. and its subsidiary (the “Group”) as disclosed in Note 3.3
tor the consolidated financial statements.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Group is the writing of insurance of bealth, accidents and civil responsibility, saving and
moncy formadon, life, firc, land, marine, air tansportation, danger, insurance apainst accidents at work, motor,
aviation, other insurance, management of health insurance claims, accidents cansalitics support services, insurance
against theft and reinsurance, The Group operates through its Head Office in Sharjah and has branches in Dubai, Abu
Dihabi, Al Ain, Khotfakkan, Fujairab and Ajman.

Financial position and resulis

The consolidated financial position and tesults of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 arc
sct out in the sccompanying consolidared financial stateinents.

Directors
The following were the Directors of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024

Shelkh Faisal Bin Khalid Sultan Al Qasimi (Chairman)

Sheikh Abdulla Mohd Ali Al Thani (Vice Chairman)

Sheikh Khaled Abdulla Sultan Al Qasimi (Managing Director)
Sheilkch Ahmed Abdulla Bin Mohammed Ali Al Thani (Director)
Sheikh Saoud Nasser Rashid Abdulaziz Al Moalla (Director)

Mr. Rashid Ali Rashid Dimas Al Suwaidi (Director)

Me. Salem Abdulla Salem Al Hosani (Director)

Me. Abdulla Mohamed Salih Abdul Rahim Al Zarooni (Director)
Mz, Noura Mahmoud Mohamed Al Mahmood AlLAL [Director)
Mr, Nader Tawfig Qaddumi (General Manager)

Auditors
Grant Thornton UAE has been appointed as the auditor for the Group for the yedr ending December 31, 2024, This
marks their sixth consecutive year in this role. However, in compliznee with the Financial Reporting and External

Audit Regulaton for Insurance Companies issued by the Central Bank of the UAE, a mandatory romtion is required
after six years. As a result, Grant Thornton has not offcred themselves for resppointment.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT
To the Shareholders of Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.5.C, and its subsidiary

Report on the Andit of the Consofidated Financial Statemenis

Opinion

We have sudited the consolidated financial statements of Al Buhaira National Insurance Company PS.C. (the “Parent
Company”) and its subsidiary (together the “Group™) which comprise the consolidated staternent of financial position
as at 31 Decemnber 2024, and the consolidated statermnent of profit or loss, consolidated statement of other comprchensive
income, consolidated statemnent of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash fiows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements including summary of material accounting policy information,

In our opinjon, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all materia! respects, the
consalidated financial position of Group as at 31 December 2024 and their consolidated financial performance and
their consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by
the International Accounting Stendards Board (LASE).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Anditor’s Regonabilities for the Andit of the Consolidated Finaweial 5tatements
section of our report We are independent of the Group in sccordance with Intermational Ethice Standards Board for
Aeeountant’s Code of Ethies for Profestional Accowntants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code),
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in the
United Arab Emirates, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the IESBA Code. We believe that the sudit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and sppropriate to provide

a basis for out opinion,
Emphasis of Marter

We draw attention to Note 28 to the consolidated financial statemenrs, the Group has a deficit in the Solveney
Masgin Requitements and Minimum Guarantee Fund Requirements as stipulated by the Centeal Bank of the UAE
by the amounts of AED 186 million and AED 30 million respectively. Our opinion is not modified in respect of
this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors' professional judgement, were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters, and any comments we make on
the results of our procedures thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Ta the Shareholders of Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.5.C and its subsidiary (continued)

Repart on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Maiters (continued)

Valuation of (Re)lnsurance contract assets and
liabilities imvolve significant judgements and estimates

measurement models and estimation of the present
value of future cash flows.

claims and allocation of insurance scquisition cash
flows which are within the contract boundaries.

The calculation for these liabilities includes significant
estimation and involvement of actuarsl experts in
order o ensure gppropriateness of discount rates,
methodology, assumptions and data used to
determine the estimated present value of fulure cash
Hows,

audit matrer.

We performed the

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s Reinsurance
Contract Assets, Insurence Contract Liabilides and
Reinsurance contact labilities are valued at AED
522.2 million, AED 730.9 milion and AED 3229

particularly with respect to the eligibility of

These cash flows primarily inclode determination of
expected premium receipts, expected ultimate cost of

As a result of the above factors, we consider valuation
of (re)insurance contract assets and Habilites as a key

following procedures in
conjunction with our actuarial specialists:
- Understood and evaluated the process, the

design and implementstion of controls in
place to determine valuation of {Re)lnsurance
contract assets and liabilities;

- Assessed the competence, capabiliies and
objectivity of the management's appointed
sctary;

- Tested the completeness, and on sample basis,
the accuracy and relevance of dam used to

determine foture cashflows;
-  FEvaluated the appropriateness of the
significant  assumptions

methodology,

including rsk adjustment, PAA eligibility
assessment, discount rates and expenses
included within the fulfilment cashflows. This
incloded consideration of the reasonablencss
of assumptions against actual histodcal
experience and the appropriateness of any
judgments applied;

- Independently reperformed the calculation to
assess the mathematical accumcy of the
Insurance contrsct liahilities and Reinsurance
Contract Assets on  selected classes of
business, particularly focusing on largest and

MOSt uncertain reserves; and

= Ewvaluated and tested the calculmtion of the
allowance for expected credit loss allowance
and the key assumpdons and judpments used,
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AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Al Buhaira Nadonal Insurance Company P.S.C and its subsidiary (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Eey Audit Marters (continued)

atinenl propittins

LTI TR EV T R TR A

As at 31 December 2024, the Group owns a portfolio
of investment propertics amounting to AED 849
million, commercial  properties,
residential properties and land  The Group has
recorded a net fair value loss of AED 3 million during
the year ended 31 December 2024 (Notes 6).

These investment properties are stated at their fair
values as determined by independent real estate
valuers engaped by the Group (“the valuers"). The
valuation process involves significant judgements in
determining and estimating the underdlying
assumptions 1o be applied.

The valuations are highly sensitive 1 key
assumptions spplied in derving ar the significant
unobservable inputs and a emall change in the
assumptions can have a significant impact to the
valuation.

Out audit procedures, among others, included:

We obtained the valuation assessment reports

We evaluated the external wvaluers
qualifications, experience and expertise in the
investment; properties being valued and
considered their objectivity, independence
and scope of work;

We assessed whether the valuation methods
used mre in gocordance with the esrablished
standards for valuation of the properties and

We involved our independent valuation
specialists to  review  the  valuation
methodologies, key assumptions and critical
judgements used by comparing these with
market data, or other publicty available
information, on selected properties; and

On sample basis, we tested, whether

specific data provided to the external valuers
by management reflected the undeclying
property records.
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INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT
To the Shareholders of Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.5.C and its subsidiary (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in
the Dirwctors' Report but does not include the consolidated financial stattments and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and sccordingly we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our sadit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information Is matetially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that are obtained prior to the date of
this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is o material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management and the Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Munagement is responsible for the preparation and fair presenimtion of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the IASB and their preparation in compliance with the
applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Decree Law No, (32) of 2021 and UAE Federal Law No. (48) of 2023, and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial smtements
that are free from materal misstatement, whether due to faud or error,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
s 2 going concern, disclosing, as applicable, marters relared 1o going concem and using the going concera basis of
accounting unless management either intends o liquidate the Group or to cesse operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do 0,

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial ststements 25 & whole are free
from matedal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s repart that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assarance bat is not & guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect 1 material misstatement when it exists. Misstatemnents can asise from frand or estor and sre considered
material if, individually oc in the aggregate, they could ressonably be expected 1o influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial smtements.

10
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholders of Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.8.C and its subsidiary (contnued)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financlal Statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

®  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated finandial statements, whether due to
frand ot error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those rigks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatemnent
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
Omissions, mistepresentations, or the override of internal control.

®  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circomstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivencss of the
Group's internzl control.

®  Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of sccounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclede on the appropriasteness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on
the audit evidenced obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue us a going concern. If we conclude that & material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosure are inadequats, to modify our epinion. Our conclusions are hased on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditot’s report. Howeves, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue a3 a going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

¢  Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient approptiate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within the group as a basis for forming an opinion on the group
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the sudit work performed
for purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate to those charged with governance regarding, among other marters, the planned scope and timing of
the audic and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intemal control that we identify during
our audie.

We also provide those charged with govemance with a smtement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated to those churged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the awdit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters, We descrbe these matters in our auditor's teport unless law and regulations preclude public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report becavse the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication,

11
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholders of Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.S.C and its subsidiary (continued)

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Furthermore, as required by the UAE Federal Drecree Law No. (32) of 2021, we report that:

We have obtained all the information we considered necessary for the purposes of our audir;

The consolidated financial statements have been prepased and comply, in all material respects, with the applicable
provisions of the UAE Federal Decree Law No. (32) of 2021;

The Group has maintined proper books of account in accordance with established accounting principles;
The financial information included in the Directors’ report is consistent with the books of account of the Group;

Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements discloses investment in securities by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2024;

Note 25 1o the consolidated financial statements discloses material related party transactions and balances, and the
terms under which they were conducted;

The Group has not made any social contributions during the financial year ended 31 December 2024; and

Based on the information that has been made available to us, nothing has come to our attention which causes us 1w
believe that the Group has, during the financial year ended 31 December 2024, contravened any of the applicable
provisions of the UAE Federal Decree Law No. (32) of 2021, or in respect o the Company, its Articles of
Association, which would materially affect its activities or its financial position as at 31 December 2024,

Further, as required by the UAE Federal Decree Law No. (48) of 2023, we report that we have obtained all the
information and explanations we considered necessary for the purpose of our audit.

PO Box; 1988

Skarjah - UAE

12



Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.S.C. and its Subsidiary

Consolidated statement of financial position

As at 31 December 2024
MNotes 2024 2023
AED AED
ASSETS
Property and equipment 5 11,181,248 13,872,192
Investment propertics 6 849,055,989 847,850,000
Investments in seeurities at FVTOC! 7 56,414,041 59,567,189
Statutory deposit 8 10,000,000 10,000,000
Reinsurance contract asEets 9 522,194,793 422 203,950
Insutance contract assets ] - 12,462,413
Oither receivables D 42,632,402 38,208,725
Bank balances and cash 11 424,285,139 315,730,998
TOTAL ASSETS 1,915,763,612 1,719,895.467
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 12 250,000,000 250,000,000
Stanutory reserve 13.1 122,126,377 122,12637M7
Voluntary reserve 132 100,000,000 200,000,000
Beinsurance reserve 133 18,901,014 14,293,181
Cumulative changes n fair value (18,842,169) (15,689,021
Accurmulated losses (15,713,982) (14,178,917}
Total equity 456,471,240 496,551,620
Liabilitica
Provision for employees’ end of service
indemnity 14 46,784,750 43,118,470
Bank borrowings 15 300,075,193 278,982,038
Lecasc liabilitics 16 3,231,693 6,680,398
Insurance contract labilites 9 730,991,127 537684319
Reinsurance contract liabilitles 9 322,921,593 308,782,606
Other payables 17 55,288,016 47,895,107
Total Habilities 1,459,292.372 1,221 343 847
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,915,763,612 1,719,895.467
;— -
%&H!Fdﬂﬁinﬂmhdﬂhslﬂtﬂnﬁlquﬂﬂﬂ-_ - Mader Tawfig Qaddumi
Chairman Al L;_ﬂ_:ﬁ . Chief Executive Officer
£ . N
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NG 4 ﬁ.\f, /

The accompanying notes from 1 to 35 form an integral pare of these consolidated financial statements.

B
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Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.S.C. and its Subsidiary

Consolidated statement of profit or loss
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Insurance revenue
Insurance service expenses
Insutance service result before reinsurance contracts held

Alloeation of reinsurance premiums

Amounts recoverable from reinsumnce for incurred claims

Net (expense) from reinsurance contracts held
Insurance service result
Investment and other income

Insurance finance expense for insurance contracts [ssued

Reinsurance finunce income for reinsurance contracts held

Net insurance financial result
Met insurance and investment results
General and administrative expenses

Finance costs

Finance costs — lease
Loss for the year before rax

Income twax

Loss for the year after tax
Basic and diluted loss after tax per share

The accompanying notes from 1 to 35 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

Notes

1%
20

21
21

18

RE

16

2024 2023

AED AED
1,448,902,391 1,190,641,861
(1,469,728,830)  _ (1,196,342,629)
{20,826,439) (5,700,768)
(920,601,503) (841,062,128)
899,203,030 707,183,751
(21,398,473) (133,878,377
(42,224,912) (139,579,145)
45,912,891 42,760,945
(20,136,315) (22,743,465)
10,532,939 12 845,665
(9,603,376) (9,897,800)
(5,915,397) (106,716,000
(5,870,346) (6,792,322)
(24,935,077) (18,881,763)
(206,412) (372,384)
(36,927,232) (132,762,469)
(36,927,232) {132,?&21459;
(0.15) (0.53)

2
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Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.S5.C. and its Subsidiary

Consolidated statement of other comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Loss for the year after tax

Other comprehensive income

Ttems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Change in fair value of investments carried st FVTOCI

Gain on sale of investments carried at FVTOCI

Other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year

Total Comprehensive Loss

for the Year

2024 2023

AED AED
(36,927,232) (132,762,469)
(3,153,148) 074,432
- 276,398
(3,153,148) 1,250,830
(40,080,380) (131,511,639

10
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Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.S.C. and its Subsidiary

Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Cash flows fram operating activities

Loss for the yeir befise tax

Adjusments for
Depeeclason of property snd equipment
leiterest income on deposits
Dividend income
Met income from investmment propenices
Change in fair value of Investment properties
Provision for emplopess” end of servies indemniry
Finance costs
Crther |ncome
Board of Divectors” remunerntion

Operating cagh fows before changes in working capltal
Change in working capital

Met reinsumncd contrict sets

Other meceivables

Net ingurance comeract Babilides

Orther payables

Cash generated from [ (used in) operating activitie
Employess’ end of service benefits paid

Board of Disectoss” remunesation paid

Met caah penerated fiom / (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Movenent in fixed depogits
Movement in masgin deposis

Additons on invesement propertes

Purchase of invesmments ar FVTOCL

Procceds from sale of mvesments st FVTOCK
Purchese of property and equipment

Interest income on deposin

Dividend from investments

Income fiom InvesTnent propertes

Met cash (used in) / genesated ffom investing uctivities

Cash flows from financing sctivities
Ohbtained / repayment of bank barmwings — net
Finance cosn paid

Lease paymecotd
Net casli {uied in) / genesatod from Anancing activitdes

Met change in cash end cash equivalents during the year
Cash and cath equivalents at the beginning of the pear

Canh and cash equivalents i the end of the year

Man-cash ianesctione:

Riglvts of use assers
Lease abiliey

Reinsurance reserve

Volunmrey reserve
Accumulated lomes

The sccompanying notes from 1 to 35 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

el =3B

2024 2023
AED AED
(36,927,232 (132,762 465)
4,663,722 #990,052
(15,786,662) (12,304,056)
(2,989,308) (3A24,127)
(30,064,522) (24,192,08%)
3,000,000 (2,741,344
5,142,269 2,439,778
25,141,489 19254, 147
(T2,399) (195,329
3,600,000 1,800,006
(44,292,643) (147,058,437)
(B5,851,856) 79,480,019
(B36,364) (2.147,956)
205,769,221 (3075.475)
5,542,900 715,020
81,431,267 {65,467 827
(1,475,996) {1,143 985
(2,850,000} -
77,105,269 (66,611,812
(74,757,952) 26,836,428
2,000 (124,390
(4,205,98) {2,546,156)
- (3,089,745}
. 3,032,570
(1,369,87%) (1,004, 585)
14,009,283 12,308,054
2,989,308 30T
28,254,588 24,192,089
36,276 139,308
(35,042, 365) 63,067,308
21,092,255 57,851,211
(24,925,077) (18,881,763)
(4,421,893) (4.811.79%)
(8,264,715) 34,157,675
33,798,189 30,613,261
74552230 42,138 969
106,750,419 72,952,230
602,899 2,094,031
(566,776) (2,038,010)
4,607,833 #,076,657
(100,000,000) -
100,000,000
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Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.S.C. and its Subsidiary

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

1 General information

Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.5.C. (the “Parent Company™) is incorporated as a public shareholding company
by an Emiri Decree issued by His Highness, The Ruler of Sharjah on 16 May 1978, The Parent Company is subject to the
regulations of UAE Federal Law No. (48) of 2023, concerning Financial Regulations of Insurance Companies issued by
the Central Bank of UAE (“CBUAE") and regulation of its operations and is registered in the Insurance Companies
Register of the CBUAE, under registration No,12. The address of the Parent Company’s registered corporate office is
P.O. Bax 6000, Sharjah, United Arab Emirates.

The principal activity of the Parent Company is the writing of insurance of all types - other than savings and
accumulation of funds. The Group operates through its Head Office in Sharjah and has branches in Dubai, Abu
Dhabi, Al Ain, Khorfaklan, Fujairah and Ajman,

The eonsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordanee with the requirements of the applicable laws and
regulations, including UAE Federal Decree Law No. (32) of 2021. The Patent Company’s ordinary shares are listed on
Abu Dhabi Securines Exchange, United Arab Emirates.

The Group consists of Al Buhaira MNational Company P.S.C. and its subsidiary (the “Group”) as disclosed in Note 33 to
the consolidated financial staternents.

On Apnl 16, 2024, the United Arab Emirates experienced an exsraordinary bout of heavy minfall, leading to significant
disruptions throughout the country. As a consequence, the Company faced a surge in claims, totaling 4,104 cases and
amounting to AED 139.1 million. OF this total, AED 1253 million is expected to be recoverable through reinsurance,
2 Application of new and revised Internadonal Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS")

21 MNew and revised [FRSs and interpretations applied on the consolidated financial statements

The following relevant standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards were issued by the IASB:

Standard number Title Effective date
Amendments o IAS | - Non-currenc Liabilitles with covenants and

1451 classification of liabilities as corrent or non-cument tJeciumey 2004

1AS 7 Amendments to 1AS 7 Sutement of Cash Flows and [FRS 7 Financial { Jan 2004
Instruments: Disclosure - Supplier Finance Armangements ey

IFRS 16 Amendments to IFRS 16 - Leases on sale and leaseback 1 Jariuary 2024

These standards have been adopted by the Group and did not have a material impact on these consolidated financial
statements.

22 Standards issued bot not yet effective

The impact of the new standards, Interpretations and amendments that are issued, but not yet effective, up o the date
of issuance of the Group's financial statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt these standards, if
applicable, when they become effective.

Standard numbes Titde Effective date
Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of exchangeability Sale or Contribution of

L Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture e e

Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instrnuments and IFRS 7 Financial

IFRS 9 & IFRS 7 Instruments: Disclosure regarding the classification and measurement 1 January 2026
of financial instraments

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements 1 January 2027
IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures 1 January 2027
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Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.8.C. and its Subsidiary

MNotes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

3 Material accounting policies

The material sccounting policies applied in the prepamtion of these consolidated financial statements are summarised
below. These policies have been consistently applied to each of the years presented.

31 Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial starements are for the veir ended 31 December 2024 and are presented in Arab Emirate
Dirtham (AED), which is also the functional currency of the Group. The consolidated financial sestements have been
prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards promulgated by Intemational Accounting Standerd Board
(LASH) and interpretations thereof issued by the IFRS Interpretations Commitree (“IFRS 1C™) and in compliance with the
applicable requirements of the UAE Federal Decree Law No. (32) of 2021 (“Companies Law™), relating to commercial
companies and UAE Federal Law No, (48) of 2023 conceming Financial Repulations for Insurance Companies issued by
the CBUAE and regulation of its operatons.

iz Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for investment properties
and financial assets cantied at fair value through other comprehensive income which are carried at fair value and the
provision for employees’ end of service benefit which is ealeulated in line with UAE labour laws.

The Group's consolidated statement of financinl position is not presented using a current / non-currenr classification.
However, the following balances would generally be classified as cument: bank balances and cash, other receivables and
other payables. The following belances would penetally be classified as non-current: property and equpment, investment
properties, statutory deposit and provision for employees” end of service benefit. The following balances are of mixed
nature (including both cument and non-current pordons): investments in securiies at fair value through other

33 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.S.C. and it subsidiary (the
“Group™) incorporate the consolidated financial statements of the Parent Company and the entity controlled by the

Parent Company (its subsidiary).
Control is achieved when the Group:

*  Has power over the investes;
¢ Is exposed, or has fghts, to vadable seturns from its involvement with the investes; and
® Has the ability to use its power to affect its rerurns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.

The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group's votng rghts in
ar investee are sufficient to give It power, including;

& The size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

* Potential voting rghts held by the Group, other vote holders or other parties;

* Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e Any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Group has, or does not have, the current shility ro
direct the relevant activities at the tme that decisions need to be made, including voting pattems at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
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Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.5.C. and its Subsidiary

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

3. Marerial accounting policies (continued)

i3 Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group
luses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the

year are included in the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of other comprehensive income
from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made 1o the financial starements of subsidiaries to bring their accountng policies in
line with the Group’s sccounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on eonsolidaton.

Details of the Group’s subsidiary at 31 December 2024 and 2023 is as below:

Place of Proportion of
incorporation  ownership interest and
Name of subsidiary and operation voting power held  Principal activity
Al Buhaira Economic Investments . . lovesting in
Establishment Foarieh, ALK Hone cconomic projects.

34 IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
Insurance and reinsurance contracts classiflcation

The Group issu¢s insurance contracts in the normal course of business, under which it accepts significant insurance
dsk from its policyholdets. As a peneral guideline, the Group determines whether it has significant insurance risk, by
comparing benefits payable after an insured event with benefits payshle if the insured event did not oceur. Insurance
contracts can also transfer financial risk.

Insurance and reinsurance contracts accounting trearment
Separating components from (nsurance and reinsurance contracts

The Group assesses its insumance and reinsumnce products to determine whether they contain distinet components
which must be accounted for under another IFRS instead of under IFRS 17. After separating any distinct components,
the Group applies IFRS 17 to all remaining components of the (host) insurance contrace. Currendy, the Group's
products do not include any distinct components that require separation.

Some reinsurance contracts issued contain profit commission arrangements. Under these armngements, there is a
minimum guaranteed amount that the policyholder will always receive — either in the form of profit commission, or
a5 claims, or another contracrual payment irrespective of the insured event happening. The minimum guaranteed
amounts have been assessed to be highly interrelated with the insurance component of the reinsurance contracts and
are, therefore, non-distinct investment components which are not accounted for separately. However, receipts and
payments of these investment components are recognised outside of profir or loss.
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Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.5.C. and its Subsidiary

WNotes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

3. Material accounting policies (continued)
34 IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)

Level of aggregation

IFRS 17 requires a company to determine the level of aggregation for applying its requirements. The Group previously
applied ton levels under IFRS 4, which were significantly higher than the level of aggregation required by
IFRS 17. The level of aggregation for the Group s determined firstly by dividing the business written into portfolios.
Portfolios compuise groups of contracts with similar nsks which are managed together. Portfolios are further divided
based on expected profitability at inception into three catepories: onerous contracts, contracts with no significant sk
of becoming onerous, and the remainder. This means that, for determining the level of aggregation, the Group
idenrifies a contract as the smallest funit’, ie, the lowest common denominator, However, the Group makes an
evaluation of whether a series of contracts need to be treated together as one unit based on reasonable and suppormble
information, or whether a single conttact contains components that need to be sepamted and treated as if they were
stand-alone contracts. As such, what is treated a5 2 contrace for sccountng purposes may differ from what is
considered as a contract for other purposes (Le., legal or management). IFRS 17 also notes that no group for level of
agpregation purposes may contain contraces ssued more than one year apare

The Group has elected to group together those contraces that would fall into different groups only because law,
regulation or intemal policies specifically constrains its practical ability to set a different price or level of benefits for
policyholders with different characteristics, The Group applied a full retrospective approach for mnsition to IFRS
17. The portfolios are further divided into groups of contracts by quarter of issue and profitability for recognition and
MEeasurement purposes.

Hence, within each quarter of issue, portfolios of contracts are divided into three groups, as follows:

A group of contracts that are onerous at initial recognition (F any)

- .E.f gtm;pnfnﬂnms that, at initial recognition, have no significant possibility of becoming onerous subsequently
any,

* A pgroup of the remaining contracts in the portfolio (if any)
The profitability of groups of contracts is assessed by profitability committee that take into consideration existing and
new business. The Group assumes that no contracts in the portfolio are onerous at initial recognition unless facts and
circumstanees indicate otherwise, For conteacts that are not onerous, the Group assesses, at initial recognition, that
there is no significant possibility of becoming onerous subsequently by assessing the likelihood of changes in
applicable facts and circumstances,
The Groop has a Profimbilicy Assessment Committee that meets at regular intervals to determine the profitability
groupings of each portfolio of conttacts, The committee acts as o forum to collect input from the prcing and
underwriting functions and assess the relevant facts and circumstances which indicate that groups of contracts are
onerous at initial recognition,
Below are some of the relevant facts and circumstances that the Group considers:

Evaluation of expected combined ratios;

Pricing information;

Results of similar contracts it has tecognised; and

Environment factots, &g, a chanpe in market experience or regulations.

The Group divides portfolios of teinsurance contracts held applying the same principles set out shove, except that
the references to onerous contracts refer to contraces on which there is a net gain on initial recognition. For some
groups of reinsurance contracts held, a group can comprise a single contract

- - - -
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Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.S.C. and its Subsidiary

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

3. Material accounting policies (continued)
34 IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (contnued)

Recognition
The Group recognises groups of insurance contracts it issues from the eatliest of the following:

The beginning of the coverage year of the group of contracts;
The date when the first payment from a policyholder in the group is due or when the first payment is recefved

if there is no due date;

= Fora group of anerous contracts, if facts and circumstances indicate that the group is onetous the Group
fecogrises a group of reinsurance contracts held;

*  1E the reinsumance contracts provide propottionate coverage at the later of the beginning of the coverage year
of the proup, or the initial recognition of any underlying contract; and

In all other cases, from the beginning of the coverage year of the group the Group adds new contrsets to the group
when they ave issued or initisted.

Contract boundary

The Group includes in the measurement of & group of insurance contracts all the fumure cash flows within the
boundary of each contmct in the proup. Cash flows are within the boundary of an insurance contract if they arse
from substantive rghts and obligations thar exist during the reporting year in which the Group can compel the
policyholder o pay the premiums, or in which the Group has a substantive obligation to provide the policyholder
with services.

A substantive obligation to provide services ends when:

*  The Group has the practical ability to reassess the risks of the particular policyholder and, as a result, can set a
price or level of benefits that fully reflects those dsks; or

Both of the following criteria are satisfied:

*  The Group has the practical ability to reassess the risks of the portfolio of insurance contraces that contain the
contract and, as a result, can set a price or level of benefits that fully reflects the risk of that portfolio; and
*  The pricng of the preminms for coverage up to the date when the nsks are reassessed does not tnke into sccount

the risks that relate to pears after the reassessment date,

A liability or asset relating  expected premiums or claims outside the boundary of the insurance contract is not
recognised. Such amounts relate to future insarance contracts.

Measurement - Premium Allocation Approach

Insurance contracts — inftial measurement

The Group applies the premium allocation approach (PAA) to all the insurance contracts that it issues and reinsurance

contricts that it holds, as:

*  The coverage year of each contract in the group is one year or less, including coverage arising from all premiums
within the contract boundary,

Or

*  For contracts longer than one year, the Group has modelled possible future scenarios and reasonably expects
that the measurement of the ligbility for remaining coverage for the group containing those contracts under the
PAA does not differ materally from the measurement that would be produced applying the general model. Tn
assessing materiality, the Group has also considered qualitacive factors such as the narare of the rsk and types of
its lines of business.

17

22



Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.S.C. and its Subsidiary

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

3. Material accounting policies (continued)
34 IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts {(continued)
Measurement - Premium Allocaton Approach (continued)

Insurance contracts = initial measurement (continued)

The Group does not apply the PAA if, at the inception of the group of contracts, it expects significant variability in
the fulfilment cash flows that would affect the measurement of the liability for the remaining coverage during the year
before a elnim is incurred. Varabillty in the fulfilment cash flows increases with:

*  The extent of future cash flows related to any derivatives embedded in the contracts,
*  The léngth of the coverage year of the group of contracts.

For a group of contracts that is not onerous at inidal recognition, the Group measures the Lability for remaining
coverage 45 the premiums, if any, received at initia] recognition, minus any insurance acquisition cash flows at that
date, with the exception of contracts which are one year or less where this is expensed, plus or minus any amount
arising from the derecognition st that date of the asset or liability recognised for insurance acquisition cash flows that
the Group pays or receives before the group of insurance contracts is recognised. There is no allowsnce for time value
of money as the premiums are mostly received within ane year of the coverage vear,

The Group measures jts reinsarance assets for a group of reinsurance contracts that it holds on the same basis as
insurance contraces thar it issues, however, adapted o reflect the features of reinsurance contracts held that differ
from insurance contracts issued, for example the generation of expenses ot reduction in expenses rather than revenue.

Insurance contracts — subsequent measurement

The Group measures the carrying amount of the liahility for remaining coverage at the end of each reporting year as
the liability for remaining coverage at the beginning of the year:

*  Plus premiums recelved in the year;

*  Minus capitalised insurance acquisition cash flows;

*  Plus any amounts relating to the amortisation of the acquisition cash flows recognised as an expense in the

reporting year for the group;

*  Plas any adjustment to the financing component, where applicable;

*  Minus the amount recognised as insurance revenue for the coverage year; and

*  Minus any investment component paid or wansferred to the lisbility for incurred claims.

The Group estimates the ability for incurred claims as the fulfilment cash flows related to incurred claims. The
fulfilment cash flows incorporate, in an unbiased way, all reasonable and supporable information available without
undue cost or effort about the amount, timing and uncertainty of those future cash flows, they reflect current estimates
from the perspective of the entity and include an explicit adjustment for non-financial risk (the risk acdjustment), The
Group does not adjust the future cash flows for the time value of money and the effect of financial risk for the
measurement of liability for incurred claims that are expected to be paid within one year of being incurred.

Insurance acquision cash flows are allocated on & straight-line basis to profit or loss.
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Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.S.C. and its Subsidiary

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

3 Muterial socounting policies (continued)
34 IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts {continued)
Reinsurance contraces

The subsequent measurement of reinsurance contmcts held follows the same principles as those for insurance
contracts issued and has been adapted o reflect the specific features of reinsurance held.

Insurance contracts — modification and derecognition
The Group derecognises insurance contmacts when:

*  The rights and obligations relating to the contract are extinguished (i.e, discharged, cancelled or expired);
Or

*  The contract is modified such that the modification fesults in a change in the measurement model or the
applicable standard for measuring 2 component of the contract, substantially changes the contract boundary, ar
requires the modified conmaer o be included in a different group. In such cases, the Group derecopnises the
initial contract and recognises the modified contract a5 a new contract.

When a modification is not treated as a derecognition, the Group recognises amounts paid or teceived for the
modification with the contract as an adjustment to the relevant lability for remaining coverage.

Presentation

The Group has presented separately, in the consolidated statement of financial position, the casrying amount of groups
of insurance contracts isseed that are assets, groups of insurance contracts issued that are labilities, reinsurance
contracts held that are assets and groups of reinsurance contracts held thar are liabilities.

Any assets or liabilities for insurance acquisition cash flows recognised before the corresponding insurance contracts
are included in the carrying amount of the relared groups of insurance contracts issued.

The Group disaggregates the total amount recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income into an insurance service result, compnising insurance revenue and insurance service expense,
and insurance finance income or expenses.

The Group disaggrepates the change in risk adjustment for non-financial risk berween a financial and non-financial
portion which will be presented in insurance finance income or expenses and in insurance service result respectively.
The Group separately presents income or expenses from reinsurance contructs held from the expenses or income
from insurance contracts issued.

Insurance revenue

The insurance revenue for the year is the amount of expected premium receipts (excluding any investment
component) allocated to the year. The Group allocates the expected premium receipts to each year of coverage on
the basis of the passage of time; but if the expected partern of release of sk during the covernge year differs
significantly from the passage of time, then on the basis of the expected tming of incusred insurance service expenses.

The Group changes the basis of allocation between the two methods above as necessary, if facts and circumstances
change, The change is accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate. For the years presented, all
revenue has been recognised on the basis of the passage of time,

Loss components

The Group sssumes that no contracts are onerous at initial recogniton unless facts and circumstances indicate
otherwise. The Group reassess this on quarterly basis and if ar quarter end, the facts and circumsances indicate that
a group of insurance contracts is onetous, the Group establishes a loss component as the excess of the fulfilment cash
flows that relate to the remaining coverage of the group over the carrying amount of the liability for remaining
coverage of the group. Accordingly, by the end of the coverage year of the proup of contracts the loss component
will be zero,
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Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.S.C. and its Subsidiary

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

3. Material accounting policies (continued)
34 IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)

Insurance finance income and expense

Insurance finance income or expenses comprise the change in the carrying amount of the group of insurance contracts
arising from:

The effect of the time value of money and changes in the time value of money; and
*  The effect of financial risk and changes in financial risk.

The Group do not disaggregate insurance finance income or expenses between profit or loss and OCL
Net income or expense from reinsurance contracts held

The Group presents separately on the face of the consolidated stacement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the amounts expected to be recovered from reinsurers, and an allocation of the reinsurance premiums paid.
The Group treats reinsurance cash flows that are contingent on claims on the underlying contracts as part of the
claims that are expected to be reimbursed under the reinsurance contract held, and excludes investment components
and commissions from an allocation of reinsurance premiums presented on the face of the consolidated statement of

profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
Classification of insurance comtracts

Insurance contracts issued by the Group are classified into two main categories, depending on the duration of risk
being: short-term insurance contracts and Jong-term insurance contracts.

Short-ternt inSurance contracts
These contracts are medical, motor, property, casualty, matine, engineering and short-duration life insurance contracts.

Medical insurance contracts protect the Group's customers against the rsk of incumng medical expenses. Medical
selection is part of the Group’s underwtiting procedures, whereby contributions are charged 1o reflect the health
condition and family medical history of the applicants. Pricing is based on assumptions, such as persistency, which
consider past experience and current trends. Contracts including specific risks and guarantees are tested for
profitability according to predefined proceduses before approval.

Marine insurance covers the loss or damage of ships, cargo, terminals, and any transport by which the propeny is
transferred, acquired, or held between the points of origin and the final destination,

Engineeting Insurance is an insurance policy that covers a wide range of engineening related rsks. It is a
comprehensive insurance that provides complete protection against risks associated with erection, resting, and
working of any machinery, plant or equipment,

Motor insutance comprises Comprehensive Insumnce and Third-Party Insurance. Comprehenasive Insurance covers
the policy holder for any loss or damage to the policy holder's vehicle caused either by themselves or a third parry. It
also covers any third party for loss or damage caused by the policy holder, Third Party Insurance, on the other hand
only covers the third party for any loss of damage caused by the policy holder.

Property insurance contracts mainly compensate the Group's customers for damage suffered to their properties or
for the value of property lost. Customers who undertake commercial activities on their premises could also receive
compensstion for the loss of earnings caused by the inability to use the insured properties in their business activities
(business interruption cover).

Casualty insurance contracis protect the Group's customers against the risk of causing harm to third parties as a result
of their legitimate activities. Damages covered include both contractual and non-contractual events,
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Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.5.C. and its Subsidiary

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

. § Material accounting policies (continued)
34 IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts {continued)
Short-term insurance contracts (continued)

Short-duration life insurance contracts (credit life) protect the Group's customers from the consequences of evenis
that would affect the ability of the cusmwmer or customer's dependents to maintain their current level of income.

Guaranteed benefits paid on occurrence of the specified insurance event are either fixed or linked to the extent of the
econamic loss suffered by the policyholder, There is no maturity or surrender benefits.

Products are reviewed by the business units on an annual basis to confirm, or otherwise, that pricing assumptions
remain sppropriate. Analysis is performed on earnings and Bability movements to understand the source of any
muaterial variation in actual results from what was expected. This confirms the appropriateness of assumptions used
in underwriting and pricing,

Long-renm insurance contracts

The Group has not written any long-term products during the year ended 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023
nil). Currently, the Group has no intention to grow this line, The existing portfolio will expire with the passage of
time. This portfolio include writes single premium savings plan (Everest Product) which is a hybrid between Universal
Life and taditional Endowment plans for petiods of 3, 5 or 7 years. The plan offers guaranteed maturity benefit and

death benefit as higher of policy value or single premium paid. Policy value is caleulated as the sum of general and
separate sccount values as at the date of valuation.

The general account value is invested in fixed deposits, The value of deposit as at the valuation date is taken to be
general account value

Separate account is invested in international equities by the reinsurer who carries the investment risk.

35 Investrment and other income

351 Inberest fncome

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and ar the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financinl asset to the asset’s net carrying amount,

352  Devided tmcome

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group's rights to receive payment have beea established.
353  Rewtal tuome

Rental Income from investment properties which are leased under operating leases are recognised on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease.

3.6 General and administrative expenses
Direct expentes are chaiped to the respective depammental revenue accounts. Indirect expenses are allocated to

departmental revenue accounts on the basis of gross written premiums of each department. Other administration expenses
are charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss as unallocated general and administrative expenses.
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Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.5.C, and its Subsidiary

MNotes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

3. Material accounting policies (continued)
3.7 Foreign currencies

The consolidated financial statements of each group entity are presented in the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the endty operatcs {its functional currency), For the purpose of the conselidated financial
statements, the results and financial position of a group entity are expressed in Amb Emimtes Dithams ("JAED™),
which is the functional currency of the Group and the presentation currency for the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of individual entities, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the tansactions. At the
end of each reporting petiod, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carded at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rutes prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retransiated.

Exchange differences are recognised in consolidaved starement of profit or loss in the year in which they anse,

3.8 Employee benefits
3.8.1  Deftned contribution plan

UAE. national employees of the Group are members of the Govetnment-managed retirement pension and social
security benefit scheme pursuant to UALE. labour law no. 7 of 1999, The Group is required to contribute 12.5% of
the “contriburtion calculation salary” of payeall costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The
employees and the Government contribute 5% and 2.5% of the “contribution calculation salary” respectively, to the
scheme. The only obligation of the Group with respect 1o the retirement pension and social security scheme is to
make the specified contributions. The contributions are chaiped to eonsolidated staternent of profit or logs.

382  Awmsal leave and lbave passg:

An accrual is made for the estimated Lability for employees' entitlement to annusl leave and leave passage as a result
of services rendered by eligible employees up to the end of the year.

383  FProvision for enployees end of service indesnity

Provision is also made for the full amount of end of service indemniry due to non-U.A.E. national employees in
accordance with the U.AE. Labour Law and is based on cutrent remunetation and their petiod of service at the end

of the reparting perdod.

The accrual relating to annual leave and leave passage is disclosed as 4 current liability, while the provision relating to
end of service indemnity is disclosed as a non-current linhiliry.

39 Property and equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is charged so a8 to write off the cost of assets over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method proportionately, The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at each year
end, with the effect of any chanpes in estimate accounted for on 2 prospective basis. Land is stated at cost less
impairrent if any.

The gain or loss arsing on the disposal or retirement of an item of property and equipment is determined 2s the
difference berween the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asser and is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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3. Material accounting policies (continued)

39 Property and equipment (continued)
The useful lives considered in the calculation of depreciation for the assets are as follows:

Years
Furniture and equipment 5
Computer equipment 5
Office fixture and ftings 10
Residential villa 15

310 Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. Investment properties are
measured inioally at cost, including transaction costs.

Cost includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the ume that cost is incurred if the
recognition coteria are met; and excludes the cost of day to day servicing of an investment property. Subsequent to
initial recognition, invesoment properties are stated ar fair value, which reflects market conditions at the reporting date.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investrment properties are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which they atise.

Investinent propertics are derccognised when eithet they have been disposed of or when the investment property is
permanently withdeawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal, Any gains or losses
on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recogrised in the consolidated statement of profic or loss
in the period of retirement or disposal.

Fair value is determined by open muarket values based on valuations performed by independent surveyors and
consultants,

311 Impaiement of non-financial assets

A the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the camrying amounts of its non-financial assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverahle amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impaiement loss (if any). Where
it is not possible to esnmate the recoverable amoune of an individual asser, the Group estmates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, cotporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects cutrent market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been sdjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its canying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its trecoverable amount. An impairment Ioss is
recognised immediately in consolidated statement of profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unir) is increased
o the revised esumate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recopnised for the asset {eash-
gencrating unit) in prior years, A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in consolidated statement
of profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as o revaluation incrense,
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8 Material accounting policies (continued)
312  Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as 2 result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required o settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligaton,

The amount recognised a5 a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporing period, mking into account the risks and uncerminties surrounding the obligation. Where
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligadon, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount
of the receivable can be measured relinbly.

313  Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantal period of time to get ready for their intended vse or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earncd on the tempormary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisadon.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in consclidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred,

3l Financial instrumenis

All financial assets are recognised and derecopnised on a tade date where the purchase or sale of a financial asset is
under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asser within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are ininally messored at fair value, plus transaction costs, except for those financial assers classified as
at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
classified as at FVIPL are recognised immedistely in profir or loss.

All recognised financial assets that ave within the scope of IFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value on the basis of the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. Specifically:

(0 debt instroments that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
floows, and thar hove contractual cash fows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding (SPPI), are subsequently measured ar amortsed costg

(i) debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is both to collect the contractual
cash flows and to sell the debr instruments, and that have contractual cash fows that are SPPL, are

subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI),

(i) all other debt instruments (e.g. debt instruments managed on a fair value basis or held for sale) and equity
investments are subsequently measured at FVIPL. However, the Group may make the following
imevocable elmmufdengnnmn at initial recognition of a financial asset on an asset-by-asset basis:

a. the Group may irrevocably dlect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
that is neither held for trading not contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which IFRS 3 applies, in other comprehensive income (OCI); and

b. the Group may irrevocably designate a debt instrument thar meets the amortised cost or FVTOCI
cotetia as measured at FVIPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch
(referred to as the fair value option),
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3 Material accounting policies (continued)
314  Financial instruments (continued)

Cash and bank and other receivables

Cash and bank and other receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest mte, exeept for short- term recetvables
when the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

The effective interest mte (EIR) is the e that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows of the financial
instrument through the expected life of the financial instrument or, where appropriate, & shorter period, m the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. The future cash flows are estimated taking into account all
the contractual terms of the instrument.

The calculation of the EIR includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are
incremental and directly attnbutable o the specific lending arrangement, transaction costs, and all other premiums or
discounts. For financial assets at FVTPL transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss at initial recognition.

Equity instruments at FVTOCI

Iavestments in equity instraments/funds at FVTOCI are inidally measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the comulative changes in fair value reserve. The cumulative gain or
loss will not be reclassified 1o profit or loss on disposal of the investments in equity instruments/ funds, but reclassified
to retained earnings. The Group has designated all investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading as
FVTOCL

Dividends on these investments in equity instraments are recognised in consolidated starement of profit or loss when
the Group's right to receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of
the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are never reclassified to profit or
loss,

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are:

i)  assets with contractual cash flows that are not SPPL, ot /and

(i)  assets that are held in a business model other than held to collect contractual cash flows or held to callect and
sell; or

(i) assets designated at FVTPL using the fair value option,

These assets are measured at fair valve, with any pains/losses adsing on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

Fair valne option: A financial instrument with a reliably measurable faie value can be designated as FVTPL (the fair
value option) on its initial tecognition even if the financial instrument was not scquired or incurred principally for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing, The fair value option can be used for financial assets if it eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency thar would otherwise arise from measuring assets or lialalites, or
recognising related gains and losses on a different basis (an "accounting mismatch™).
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3 Matetiul accounting policies (continued)
314  Financial instruments (continued)
Reclassifications

If the business model under which the Group holds financial ssses changes, the financial assets affected are
reclassified, The classification and measurement requirements related to the new category apply prospectively from
the first day of the firt reporting perod following the change in business model that results in rechssifying the
Group's financial assets. During the current financial year and previous sccounting period, there was no change in the
business model under which the Group holds financial assets and therefore no reclassifications were made,

Measurement of ECL

The Group considers brosder range of information when assessing the eredit risk, and measuring expected eredit
losses, including past events, current conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect the expected
collectability of the future cash flows of the instrument. 1n applying this forward looking approach, a distinction is
made berween:

®  Financial instrements chat have not deceriorated significandy in credit quality since inital recogrition or that have
low credit risk. (Stage 1); and

® Financial instruments that have deteriorated significantly in eredit quality since initial recognition and whose eredit
risk is not low. (Stage 2)

Stage 3 would cover financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date. The Group
considers a debt security to have low credit risk when their credit risk rating is equivalent to the globally understood
definition of “investment prade”,

12-month expected credit loss are recognised for the first category (Stage 1) while “life tme expected credit losses™
are recognised for the second category (Stage 2). Measurement of the expected credit losses is determined by a
probability - weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life of the financial instrument,

The Group makes use of a simplified approach in accounting for insurance receivables and for other recelvables
records life tme expected credit loss. These are expected shortfalls in the contractual cashiflows, considering the
potential for default at any point during the life of a financial instrument. In calculating, the Group uses its historical
experience, external indicators and forward looking information to calculate the expected credit losses using a
provision matrix.

The Group assesses impairment of insurance receivables on a collective basis as they possess shared credit risks
characteristics , they have been grouped based on the days past due.
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3 Material accounting policies (continued)

3.4  Financial instruments (continued)

Measurement of ECL (continued)

The Group employs statistical medels for ECL caleulations. ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of the present value of credit losses. These aze measured as the present value
of the difference berween the cash flows due to the Group under the contract and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive arising from the weighting of multiple future econamie seenarios, discounted at the asset's EIR.

These parameters will be derived from our intemally developed statistical models and other historical daa. They will
be adjusted to reflect forward-looking information.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is “credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated futute
cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. At each reporung date, the Group assesses whether financial assets
cartied at amortised costs are credit-impaived.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retaing substantially all the risks and rewards of ownesship and continues wo
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial esset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the procesds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost or measured at FVTFL, the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recopnised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset that is classified as FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the cumulative changes in fair value of secutities reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is reclassified to

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the consolidated financial statemenis
Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the in the consolidated financial statements as follows:

. for financial assets measured at amortised cost (insurance and ather receivables and cash and bank): as a
deduction from the gross carrying amount of the assets;

. for debr instruments measured at FVTOCT: no loss allowance is recognised in the consolidated strement of
financial position as the carrving amount is at fair value. However, the loss allowance is included as pant of
the revaluation amount in revaluation reserve and recognised in other comprehensive income;
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i Material accounting policies (continued)
315 Leases

The Group has applied IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach and therefore comparative information
has not been restated. This mesns comparative information is still reparted under 1AS 17 and IFRIC 4.

3151 Lemw

For any new contracts entered into on or after January 1, 2019, the Group considers whether a contract is, or coneains
a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a contract or part of 4 contmct, thar conveys the tght-to-use an asset (the underying
asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration’. To apply this definiion, the Group assesses whether the
contract meers three key evaluatons which are whether

- The coottact conting an identified asser, which is either explicitly ideatified in the contract or implicitly
specified by being identified at the time the asset is made available to the Group,

- The Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset
throughout the period of use, considering #s rights within the defined scope of the contract.

- The Group has the right to direct the vse of the identfied asset throughout the period of use. The Group
assesses whether it has the right to direct *how and for what purpose” the asset is used throughout the period
of use,

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

At lease commencement date, the Gioup recognizes 4 right of use asset and 2 lease liability on the consolidated
statement of financial pasition. The right of use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement
of the lease liability, any direct costs incarred by the Group, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the
asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any
incentlves received),

The Group depreciates the right of use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the earlier
of the end of the useful life of the right of use asset or the end of the lease term. The Group also assesses the right of
use asset for impairment when such indicators exist. At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease lishiliry
at the present value of the lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lesse if
that rate is readily available or the Group's incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease linbility are made up of the fixed payments (including in
substance fixed), variable payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee and payments arising from options reasonably certain to be exercised.

Subsequent to initial mensurement, the lability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest, It is
remeasured to reflect any resssessinent or modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments.

When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right of-use asset, or profit and
loss if the right of use asset is already reduced to zero.

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets using the practical expadients.
Instead of recopnising a dpht-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are recognised as an
expense in consolidated statement of profit ot loss on a straighe-line basis over the lease term.

On the consolidated statement of financial position, rght-of-use assets have been included in property and equipment
and lease liabilities have been included in as a separate line item as lease Hahilities

3152 Lessar

The Group’s accounting policy under IFRS 16 has not changed from the comparative period. As 1 lessor the Group
classifies its leases as either operting or finance leases. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substandally
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset and classified as an operating lease if it does
noft.
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3. Materal accounting policies (continued)

3.16  Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid 1o transfer a linhility in an orderly ransaction berween
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuaton technique. 1n estimating the fair value of an asset or 2 lability, the Group takes into account the
charactedstics of the asset or lability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. The Group uses valuation techniques that arc appropriate in the circumstances
and for which sufficient data are avallable to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimixing the se of unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements are categorized with in fuir value hierarchy, based on the lowest level of input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

In addition, for finandal reporting purposes, fair value messurements are categorized into Level 1, 2 ar 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the sipnificance of the inputs o the fair
value messurements in its entirety, which sre desenbed as follows:

® Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement dare;

® Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
lishiliry, either directly or indirectly; and

& Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the assets or liability.

317 Taxation

Income tax compnses current and defemed mx, Income tax is recognised in the profit and loss account except to the
extent that relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in which case it s recognised
directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income for the year determined in sccordance with the prevailing
law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is caleulated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to
apply to the profic for the year, if enacted. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered
necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments finalised during the current year for
such years.

Deferred taxation

Deeferred taxation is accounted for wing the statement of financial position liability method in respect of all temporary
differences ansing from differences berween the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit. Deferred mx liabilides are genenlly
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available againat which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax lozses and tax credits can be
utilised.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse based on
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date, Deferred tax is charged or eredited in
the profit and loss account, except in the case of iterns eredited or charged to statement of comprehensive income in
which case it is included in starement of comprehensive income. .
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4, Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are deseribed in Note 3 to these consolidared financial
statements, management is tequired to make judgments, estimates and assumptons about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources, The estimates and assocated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that ate considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates,

The estimates and undetlying assumptions are reviewed on in ongeing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future pesiods.

4.1 Critical accounting judgements

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see 4.2 below), that management
has made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amourits recogrised in the consolidated financial statements.

411 Classification of investments

Management designates at the time of acquisition of secusities whether these should be classified as art FVTOCI or
FVTPL, In judging whether investments in securitles aré as at FYTOCI or FVTPL, management has considered the
detailed criteria for determination of such classification as set out IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. Management s
satisfied that its investments in securities are appropriately classified.

412 Business model assessmment

Classification and measurement of financlal assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the business model test.
The Group determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together
to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including
how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance
of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the 2ssets are compensated. The Group monitors
financial assets measured at amortised cost of fair value through other comprehensive income that are derecognised
prior to their matutity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons aré consistent with the
objective of the business for which the asset was held, Monitoring is part of the Group's continuous assessment of
whether the business model for which the remaining financial assers are held continues to be appropriate and if it is
not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification
of those assets. No such changes were required during the penods presented.

4.1.3  Significant increase in credit osk

The measurement of ECL is a significant estimate that invelves determination of methodology, models and dats
inputs. The following components have a major impact on the credit loss allowance for debt instruments carried at
amortised cost, FVTOCI investments, bank balances and fixed deposits: definition of defaule, significant increase in
credit risk, probability of default ("PD"), exposure at default ("EAD™), and loss given default ("LGD") and the
hlsmncnllnss:xpcnmn:pﬂﬂgﬂnghud&tthﬂﬂ]: majot impact on the credit loss allowance for Insurance and other
receivables. The Group regularly reviews and validates the models and inputs to the models to reduce any differences
berween expected credit loss estimates and actual credit loss experience.

414  Classification of properties

In the process of chissifying properties, management has made vatious judgments. Judgments are needed to determine
whether a property qualifies as an investment property, property and equipment, propetty under development and/or
property held for sale. Management develops criteria so that it can exercise that judgment consistentdly in accordance
with the definitions of investment property, property and equipment, property under development and property held
for sale. In making its judgment, management has considered the detailed criteria and related guidance set out in IAS
2 — Inventaries, IAS 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment, and 1AS 40 — Investment Propesty, with regards to the
intended use of the property.
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4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
4.2 KEey sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumprions concerning the future, and other key sources of estmation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant misk of causing a material adjustment o the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

421 Insurance and reinsurance contracts

The Group applies the PAA to simplify the measurement of insurance contracts. When measuning linbilities for
remaining coverage, the PAA is broadly similar to the Group’s previous accounting treatment under IFRS 4. However,
when measunng liabilities for incurred claims, the Group now discounts cash flows that are expected to occur more
than one year after the date on which the claims are incurred and includes an explicit risk adjustment for non-financial
risk.

Liakbility for remaining coveruge

For insurance acquisition cash flows, the Group is eligible and chooses to capitalise all insurance acquisition cashflows
'I.'IF[I-[I. Pljmﬂﬂlﬁ

The effect of recognising insurance acquisition cash flows as an expense on initial recognition of group of insurance
contracts is to increase the liability for remaining coverage on initial recognition and reduce the likelihood of any
subsequent onetous contract loss, There would be an increased charge to profit or loss on initial recognition, dee 1o
expensing acquisition cash flows, offset by an increase in profit released over the coverage year, For groups of
contraces that are onerous, the liability for remaining coverage is determined by the fulfilment cash fows.

Licbility for incurred claines

The ultimate cost of ourstanding claims is estimated by using a range of stundard actuatial claims projection techniques,
such as Chain Ladder and Bornheutter-Ferguson methods.

The main assumption underlying these techniques is that a Group's past claims development expesience can be used
to project future claims development and hence ultimate claims costs, These methods extrapolate the development
of paid and incurred losses, avernge costs per claim (including claims handling costs), and claim numbers based on
the observed development of carlier years and expected loss ratios. Historical claims development is mainly analysed
by accident years, but can also be forther analysed by geographical area, as well as by significant business lines and
claim types. Large claims are usnally separately addressed, either by being reserved at the face value of loss adjuster
estimates or separately projected in order to reflect their future development. In most cases, no explicit assumptions
are made regarding futore rates of caims inflation or loss ratios. Instead, the assumptions used are those implict in
the historical claims development data on which the projections are based.

Additional qualitative judgement is used to assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in farure, (2g, to
reflect one-off occurrences, changes in external ot market factors such as public attitudes to claiming, economic
conditions, levels of claims inflaton, judicial decisions and legislation, as well as internal factors such as portfolio mix,
policy fearures and claims handling procedures) in order to arrive at the estimated ulimate cost of claims thar present
the probability weighted expected value outcome from the mnge of possible outcomes, taking secount of all the
uncertainties involved.

Other key circumstances affecting the reliability of assumptions include vatiation in interest rtes, delays in settlement
and changes in foreign corrency exchange rates.

4.2.2 Discount rates

Insurance contract lipbilities are calculated by discounting expected future cash flows at a risk free rate, plus an
illiquidity premium whese applicable. Risk free rates are determined by reference to the yields of highly liquid AAA-

rited sovereipn securities in the currency of the insurance contraet liabilities. The illiquidity premium is determined by
referente to observable market mees.
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Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.S.C. and its Subsidiary

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

4. Critical sccounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
42  Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

4.22 Discount rates (contnued)

EIOPA USD risk free Volatility Adjusted (Spot) mites were used with country risk premium/ illiquidity premium of
0.72%: 1s applied for discounting of future cash flows for 2024 and 0.72% for 2023 are listed below:

1year 3 years 5 years 10 years
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Liability for Ineurred Claims
AED 527% 5 g58s 5.15% 4,800 S1%  450% B168%  4.64%
uUsD 4.55% 523%  443% 4,19% 439% 3970 444% 3o
Liahility for reinsurance contracts issued
AED 5.27% 595%  515%  4.92% S5A1%  460%  5M6% 46
UsD 4,55% 5.23%, 4.43% 41004 439% 307% 4.44% 39

4.23 Impairment of inancial assets

When measuring ECL and IFRS 9, the Group uses reagonable and supportable forward locking information, which
is based on assumptions for the futere movement of different economic drivers and how these drivers will affect each
other. Loss given default is an esumate of the loss arising on default It is based on the difference berween the
contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, taking into account cash flows from
collateral and integral credit enhancements. Probability of defsult constitutes a key input in measuring ECL.
Probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of defanle over a given time hodzon, the calenlation of which
includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions,

The determination of whether the insurance receivables are impaired, entails the Group evaluating, the credit and
liquidity position of the insurance companies, historical recovery rates including detailed investigations carried out and
feedback received from the legal deparrment. The difference berween the esumated collectdble amount and the
carrying value is recognised as an expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Any difference between the
amounts actually collected in the future periods and the amounts expected will be recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss at the time of collection.

4.24  Valuation of unguoted equity instrurmernts

Valuation of unquoted equity investments is normally based on recent market transactions on an amm’s length basis,
fair value of another instrument that is substantally the same, expected cash flows discounted at current cates for
similar instruments or other valuation models. In the absence of an sctive marcket for these investments or any recent
transactions that could provide evidence of the current fair value, management estimates the fuir value of these
instuments using expected cash flows discounted at current rates for similar instruments or other valuation models.

4.25  Revaluation of investment properties

The investment properties ate carrled at fair value, with changes in the fair value being recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit ot loss, The management engaged independent valuation specialists 1o assess fair value during the year,
'Ih:ﬁ.trwlul:nfphtsofimdwdﬂmmudhmdmd::nmcpmhknppmmhthﬂmﬂmmmmmpnm
for similar propertes, The fair value of buildings was determined using income approach. In estimating the fair value of
the properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their current use.
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Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.S.C. and its Subsidiary

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

4, Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
4.2 Eey sources of estimation uncernainty (continued)

4.2.6 Risk adjustment for non-financial risk

The Group use Mack method or bootstrapping to determine its risk adjustment for non-financial osk. The bootstmp
effectively allows the Group to measure the uncemainty about the amount and timing of the cash flows that adse from
non-financial rsk since bootstrpping the triangles aims to llustrate the vadability of the paid claims,

The sk adjustment for non-finaneial rek is the compensation that the Group requires for bearing the uncereainty about
the amount and timing of the cash flows of groups of insurance contracts. The risk adjustment reflects an amount that an
insurer would rationally pay w remove the uncertainty that future cash flows will exceed the expected value amount.

The Group has estimated the risk adjustment using a confidence level (probability of sufficiency) approach at the 80th
percentile. That is, the Group has assessed its indifference to uncerminty for all product lines (as an indication of the
compensation that it requires for bearing non-financial risk) as being equivalent o the B0th percentle confidence level less
the mean of an estimased probability distdbution of the future cash flows. The Group has estimated the probability
distibution of the future cash flows, and the additonal amount above the expected present value of future cash flows:
required to meet the target percentiles.
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Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.S.C. and its Subsidiary

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

6. Investment properties

Investment propertes comprise the following at fair value:

2024 2023
AED AED
Plots of land 60,000,000 71,250,000
Buildings 789,055,989 776,600,000
849,055,989 B47,850,000

Movement during the year was as follows:
2024 2023
AED AED
Fair value at the beginning of the year 847,850,000 842,562,500
Additions 4,205,989 2,546,136
Change in fair value during the year (Note 18) (3,000,000) 2,741,344
Fair value at the end of the year 849,055,989 847,850,000

The fair value of the Group's investments properties as at 31 December 2024 has been ardved at on the basis of valustions
carried on the respective dates by independent competent valuers who have recent market experience in the valuation of
properties in the United Arsb Emirates,

The fair value of plots of land and buildings was determined using market approach. In estimating the fair value of the
properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their carrent use.

The Group's investment properties are classified as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2024 (2023: Level
3,

Investment property amounting o AED 849 million {2023%: AED 847,8 million) is morgaged to a bank tawands credit
facllities granted to the Group (Note 15),

The rental proceeds from Al IKhan, Al Nahda and Al Buhairah Comiche Towers are assigned to a bank against credit
facilities granted to the Group (Note 15),

The property rental income earned by the Group from its investment propesties, which are leased out under operating
leases, and direct operating expenses arising on the investment property are as follows:

2024 2023

AED AED
Rental income 48,155,728 43 668,609
Direct operating expenses (18,091,206) (19.476,520)
Income from investment properties (Note 18) 30,064,522 24,192,089
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Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.8.C. and its Subsidiary

Motes to the consalidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

T lnvestments in securities at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

2024 2023
AED AED
Equity investments at FVYTOCI
Quoted — at fair value 52,935,943 56,089,091
Unquoted — at fair vale 3,478,098 3478008
56,414,041 59,567,189
Movement durng the year was as follows:
2024 2023
AED AED
Fair value ac the beginning of the year 59,567,189 58,259,180
Purchases during the year - 3,089,749
Disposals durdng the year - (3,032,570}
Change in fair value (3,153,148) 1,250,830
Fait value at the end of the year 56,414,041 59,567,189
— Within LLAE, ________ Outside UAE, Total
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
AED AED AED AED AED AED
Quoted 52,935,943 56,089,091 - - 52,935,943 56,089,091
Unguoted 3,478,098 34TR09H - - 3,478,098 3 478,098
56,414,041 50,567,189 - - 56,414,041 59,567,189

8. Statutory deposit

In accordance with the requirements af Article (38) of the UAE Federal Law No. (48) of 2023, the Group maintains 2
bank deposit of AED 10 million (2023: AED 10 million) a5 a stmevtory deposit. This deposit cannot be withdrawn without
prior approval of the CBUAE and yields interest rate per annum of 5.40% (2023: 5.25%).
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Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.S.C. and its Subsidiary

Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

9. Insurance and reinsurance contracts

The breakdown of groups of insurance and reinsurance contracts issued, and reinsurance contracts held, that are in an asset posivon
and those in a liability position is set out in the table below:

2024 2023
MNotes Asgsets  Liabilities Met Assets Lishilities Met
AED AED AED AED AED AED
Insurance contracts issued
Motor a1 - 19425629  (19,423,629) . 279,544 (279,544)
Marine 9.2 - B2,355884  (B2,355,884) - 627702 (62,792,702)
FGA 93 - 36305345  (36,305,345) 12462413 . 12,462.413
Medical 94 - 582245224  (582,245,224) - 466,560,195  (466,560,195)
Life 95 - 10,661,045  (10,661,045) - BOSIETE  (B051.878)
Total insurance contracis
issued - 730,991,027  (730,991,127) 12462413 537,684,319 (525221 .906)
Reinsurance contracts held
Motar 96 57,075,325 . 57,075,325 32739185 50068777  (26,329,392)
Marine 9.7 48,810,684 - 48,810,684 30943273 - 30943273
FGA 9.8 74,980,724 26,032,768 48,947,956 38,671,744 - 3BETITA4
Medical 0.9 329,926,364 293,820,843 36,105,521 310,636,044 246,352 553 64,284,391
Life 910 11,401,696 3,067,982 8,333,714 9212804 3361276 5,851,528
Total reinsurance contracts
held 522,194,793 322,921,593 199,273,200 422203950 308782606 113421344

Roll-forward of net asset or liability for insurance contracts issued showing the liability for remaining coverage and the
liability for incurred claims

The Group disaggregates infommation 1o provide disclosures in tespect of major produet lines separarely for Motor, Marine, FGA,
Medical and Life. This disaggregation has been determined based on how the Group is managed.

The roll-forward of the nes asset or liability for insurance contracts issued, showing the babilicy for remaining coverage and the
liability for incurred claims, is disclosed in the table on the following page:

38
43



Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.S.C. and its Subsidiary

MNotes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

. Insurance and reinsurance conraces (continued)

Roll-forward of net asset or liability for insurance contracts issued showing the liability for remaining coverage and the

linbility for incurred claims (continued)
Contracts measured under the PAA

91 Motor

Insurance contrect linbilites as at 1 January

Incarred clalma and other expenscs
Amortisaton of insumnce acquisition cash flows
Losses on onerous contracts and reversals
Changes to liabilitkes for Incarred claims
Insurance service result
Insurance fnance expenses
Total changes in the staternent of profit o loss
Cash fows
Premiums recelved
Clatms and other expenses
Insurance acquisition cash flows
Total cash flows

Met iInsurance contract liabilities as at 31 December

2023
Insurance contract [iabilides an at 1 January

Insurance revenue
Insurance service expenses
Incurred claims and other expenses
Amortisation of Insurance acquisition cash fows
Losses on onerous contracts and reversals
Changes 1o labilites for incarred claims
Insurance service result
Insurance Aoance expenscs
‘lotal changes in the smrement of profit or loss
Gt flows
Premiums received
Clalms and other expenses
Insueance acquisifion cash flows
Toml cash flows
Met Insurmnce contract labilides as ar 31 December

Linhilities for remaining

Liabilides for incurred

coverage claims
Estimates of
the present

Excluding valoe of Risk

logs Laosa fuure sdjustme
component Companent cagh flows nt Total
ARD AED AED AED AED
(165,152,113) (@) 159,221,140 6,210,519 279,544
{240,057,394) c - - (240,057,399)
. - 390,141,393 547,886 395,589,279
21'9?5;-‘29 = = = nm.m
- - (41,500,247) (5,466,119) (46,966,366)
(218,082,265) - 33,641,046 (18,233) 130,540,648
- - 5,982,963 233,369 6,216,132
{218,082,265) - 354,624,100 215,136 136,756,980
237,687,572 - - 237,687,572
. - (333,325,338) (333,325,338)
(21,975,129) - . - (21,975,129)
215,712,443 - (333,325,338) - (117,612,895)
(167,521,935) (2) 180,519,911 6,425,655 19,423,629
(155507,782) 11,986,139 191357483 6679083 54 354,873
(197,355,225) - (197,355,225)
- - B5Ma64 4824402 303359006
22,509,622 - - - 22,599,622
- (11,986,141) r - (11,986,141)
= (B.991847) (5567.956) (14,559,503
(174,755,603) (11986,141) 289542817 (743554) 102,057,519
- - 7875870 75040 8150010
(174,755,603 (11986,141) 207418487 [468,514) 110208420
187,770,894 - 187,770,894
- (329,455,000 (322,455,000)
(22,399,629 . . (22509622
165,171,272 - {329,455 030) - (164283 758)
(165,152,110 (2) 150221140 6210519 279, 544
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Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.S.C. and its Subsidiary

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

9 Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

Roll-forward of net asset or liability for insurance contraces issued showing the liability for remaining coverage and the

liability for incurred clabms (contdnued)
Contracts measured under the PAA (continued)

92 Marine
Linbilities for remaining  Liabilities for incurred
coverage claims
Estimates of
the present
Excluding value of
loss Loss future RRisk
2024 component component cash flows adjustment Total
AED AED AED AED AED
Insurance contrace liabalities as ar 1 January 36,008,909 - 25,577,887 1,205,906 62,792,702
Insurnes revenue (31,567,709) - - - (31,567,709)
Insumnee service expenses
Incurred claims and ather cxpenses - - 37,436,408 1,262,121 38,698,529
Amortisation of Insurance acquision cash fows 2,285,739 - - - 2,285,739
Losses on oncgous contraces and reversals - - - - -
Changes o liahilides for incurred elaims - - 6,308,847 (637,901) 5,670,946
Insurance service result {29,281,970) - 43,745,255 624,220 15,087,505
Insurance finance expenses - - 1,114,709 52.554 1,167,263
Total changes in the statement of profir or loss __(25,281,970) - 44,859,964 676,774 16,254,768
Cash flows
Premiums recetved 12,273,558 - - - 32273558
Cladms and other expenses - - [26,679,402) - (26,679,402)
Insurance acquisidon cash Jows (2,285,739) - - - (2,285,739)
Total cash flows 29,907,816 = (26,679,402) - 1,308,414
Net insurance contract liabilities as at 31 December 36,714,755 - 43,758,449 1,882,680 82,355,884
2023
Insumnce contract Habilides an at | Janancy A0, 560,005 32102 32734339 1381720 74,708,156
Insurance revenue (32431 377) - - - (324313TD
Insurance service expenses
Incureed claims and other expenses - - 31989810 1,063,004 33052814
Amoctisaton of insurance acquisidon cash Bows 3,035,146 - - 3,035,146
Losses on onerous contracts snd reversals E (32,102 - = (32,102)
Changes to laksdlides for incusred clabms . - (23261433 (1,203 5100 (24,354,943
Insurance service resube {29,396,231) (32,102 8,728,377 (230,506) (20,930,462
Insurance finance oxpenses - - 1,295 677 54,692 1,350,349
Total changes in the statement of profit or loss {29,396,231) (32,102 10,024,054 (175.814) {(19.580,00%)
Carsh flops
Premiums recoived 27 880,281 : - - 27580281
Cluims and other expenises - - (17,180,498) (17,180,496)
Insumsnce acquisidon cash Aows (3,035,146) - - (3,035,146)
Toml cash Aows 24 B45,135 - (17,180 .495) - 7,664,639
Met Insurance caneract Babdlides as ar 31 December 36,008,909 - 25577887 1205906 62,792,702
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Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.S.C. and its Subsidiary

Motes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

9. Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

Roll-forward of net asset or liability for insurance contracts issued showing the lability for remaining coverage and the

liability for incurred claims (continued)
Contracts measured under the PAA (continued)

0.3 FGA

Insucance contract liabilites as ar 1 Januacy

Insurance revenue
Insurance service expenses
Incurred clubms and other cxpenies
Amordsadon of insurince acquisition cash flows
Losses on onercus copwacts and reversals
Changes to liabilithes for incurred elaims
Insurance service result
Insurance finance expenses
Total changes in the statement of profit or loss
Cash flows
Premiums received
Claims and other expenses
Insurince acquisiton cash fows
Toral cash Rows
MNet insurance contrace linbilities as ar 31 December

2029
Insurance contence labilites as ar 1 January

Insurance revenue
Insurance service expenses
Incurred eluims and ather expenses
Amortisaton of insurance acquisition cash fows
Losses oo onerous contracts snd reversals
Changes o liabilives for incureed elaims
Insurinee service resalt
Insunince finance cxpenses
Total changes in the statement of profit or loss
Cash flows
Premiums recefved
Claims und prher expenses
Insurance acquisition cash flows
Towl cash flows
Net insurance contract sssets as at 31 December

Liabilities for remaining  Liabilities for incurred

coverage claims
Estimates of
the present
Excluding value of
loss Loss furure Riake
component component  cash flows  adjustment Total
AED AED AED AED AED
(59,114,394) (4) 44,106,839 2,545,146 (12,462,413)
(142,835,988) - . .
- - 105,224,312 3,781,996 109,000,308
3,600,869 - - - 3,600,869
. - (11,694,871)  (1,632,389) (13,327,260)
(139,235,119) - 95520441 2,149,607 (43,556,071)
. - 1,668,117 95,384 1,760,501
138,347,791 - - - 138,307,
- = (i4,143,594) = (44,143,504)
(3,600,869) - = - (3,600,869)
134,706,922 - (44,143,594) - 90,563,328
(63,642,591) (4) 95,157,803 4,790,137 36,305,345
{47 350,684} 315284 61,651,982 31912 17,807,589
{109,684,765) - - - (109,684,765)
- - 46,628,793 1B6T 450 48496283
3,393,41 - . 39334
- (315288 - - (315.288)
. - (33432 046) (2,046,396) (36,078,742)
(106,291 4243 (I15288) 13196447 (778.906) (94,189,1TH
- - 2 584 708 133040 2717748
(106,201 4243 (35288) 15,781,155 (645 B66) (91,471,425
97,921,060 - - - 97921 060
- - (33326,298) - (33,326,208)
(3393,341) - - = 1
04,527 719 - (33326.298) - BL20L AN
{59,114,394) (¥ 44,106,839 2545146 (12,462,413
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Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.S.C. and its Subsidiary

Notes to the consolidated financial staternents (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

9. Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

Roll-forward of net asset or liability for insurance contracts issued showing the liability for remaining coverage and the

liability for incusred claims (continued)
Contracts measured under the PAA (continued)

9.4 Medical

2024

Insurance contract Hahilities as ot 1 January

Insurance revenue
Insurance service expenses
Incurred clalms and other expenses
Amartisation of insurance acquisition cash Jows
Logses on onerous contracts and reversals
Changes to liabilides for incurred elaima
Insurance service result
Insurance finance expenses
Total changes in the statement of profic or loss
Cash flows
Premiums received
Claims and other expenses
Insurance acquisition cash Aows
Total cash flows
Met insurance contract liabilities as at 31 December

2021

Insurance contract [inbilices as ar 1 January

Incurred clabms and other expenies
Amortisadon of insurance nequisition cash Bows
Losses on oncrous contracts and reversals
Changes to labilides for incurred chadms
Insusance service result
Insumance finance expenses
Toml changes in the samement of profit ar loss
Cach ffaws
Premiums received
Clalms and odher expenses
Insurance acquisidon cash fows
Total cash flows
Met insurance coneret labilides as gt 31 December

Liabilities for rermnuining Linbilities for incorred

coverige claims

Estimates of

the present

Excluding value of

loss Laoas furure Risk

component component  cash flows  adjustment Total
AED AED AED AED AED
39,161,664 - 418,150,419 9248112 466,560,195
(1,019,550,375) - - (1,019,550,375
- 909,088,586  B0I7,975 917,106,561
30,932,5M - - 30,932,501
= (662,153) (7,390,399) (8,052,552
(988,617,574) - 908,426,433 627,576 (79,563,865)
- - 10,330,809 228,478 10,553,287
(988,617,674) -~ 018757242 856,034 (69,004,378)
1,051,906,693 - - - 1,051,906,693
- - (836,284,585) - (836,284,585
(30,932,501) = = - (30,932,501
1,020,974,192 - {(836,284,585) - 184,689,607
71,517,982 - 500,623,076 10,104,166 582,245,224
23,177,062 18567 338289485 GGUR405 368,183,600
{B38,441,302) - (838,441,302
- B58,641,874 BOUTA3Z 866649304
19,827,734 . L 19,827,734
- {18,567 - - (18,567)
- - (15530.957) (5652882) (21,192,830
(B18613568)  (18,567) 843101917 2354550 26,824,332
- - 9851378 195 067 10,046 445
(818613568)  (18,567) B52953,295 2540617 36,870,777
854,425 904 - - B54.425 004
: (773,092,361) . (13092361,
(19,827,734) . - (19837734
834,598,170 (773,092361) - 61505809
39,161,664 418,150,419 0248112 466,560,195
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Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.S.C. and its Subsidiary

Motes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

0. Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

Roll-forward of net asset or liability for insurance contracts issued showing the liability for remaining coverage and the

liability for incurred claims (continued)

Contracts measured under the PAA (continued)

95 Life
Liabilities for remaining  Linhilities for incorred
COVETage claims
Estimares of
the present
Excluding value of
loss Loss furure Risk
2024 component component  cash flows  adjestment Total
AED AED AED AED AED
Insurance contract liabilitics as at 1 January (5,715,407} 1 13,706,896 60,388  A.051878
Insurnnce revenne {14,890,925) - - - (14,890,925)
Insurance service expenses
Incureed clalms and other expenies - - 13,510,118 26,703 13,536,821
Amorisation of insurance acquisition cash fows 709,439 - - - 709,489
Losses on onergus conmcts and reversals - - - - -
Changes to lishilities for incurred claims - = (1,013,799) (23,364)  (1,037,163)
Insurance service result (14,181, 436) - 12,496,319 3,339 (1,681,778)
Insurance fnance expenses - - 431,032 1,900 432932
Total changes in the statement of profit or loss {14,181,436) - 12,927,351 5,230 (1,248B46)
Cash fows
Premiums recelved 15,233,090 - - - 15233000
Cluitns and other expenses - - (10,665,588) - (10,665,588)
Insumnce acquisition cash Aows (709,489) - - - {709,489)
Total cash flows 14,523 601 - (10,665,588) - 3,858,013
Met insurance contract liabilivies as a1 31 December (5,373,242) 1 15,968,659 65,627 10,661,045
2023
Insurance contract linbilides as at 1 January (2,949 384 22193 16105407 04938  13.243,154
Insurance revenue (12,729,192 - - (12,729,192)
Insurance service expenses
Incureed claims and other expenses - - 10,797,633 24645 10822278
Amortisation of insurance acquisition cash fAows hild 461 . . - 44 461
Losses on onerous contracts and reversals (22,192 & - (22,192
Changes o lishilides for incurred cluims - - {6.545690) 3,115 (6,576,805)
Insurance service sesih (12,284,731) {22,192y 4,251 943 (6,470 (8,061,450
Insurance Anance expenses - - 476,073 1.920 477,993
Total changes in the statement of profit or loss (12,284,731} (22,192) 4728016 {44500 (7,583,457
Canh ot
Premiums received 0963169 - - 0953 169
Cluims and other expenses . {7.126,527) (7,126,527)
Insurance acquisition cash Bows (444,461) = = (444 461}
Toml cash Aows 9,518,708 - ([@126,527) - 2302181
Met inpurunce canteact Habilives as ar 31 December (5,715,407 1 13,706,896 60,388 8,051,878
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Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.S.C. and its Subsidiary

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

9, Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

Raoll-forward of net asset or liability for reinsurance contracts held showing the assets for remaining coverage and the
amounts recoverable on incurred claims

Contracts measured under the PAA
0.6 Muoior
Agsets for remaining Amounts recoverable an
covernge incurred claims
Estimates of
the present
Execluding value of
loss recovery Loss future Risk
2024 component  component  cash flows  adjustment Total
AED AED AED AED AED
Beinsurance contract assets as at | January - - 31,146,463 1,592,722 32,739,185
Reinsurance contract liabilities as at 1 Jaouary (59,068,777) - - - (59,068,777)
MNet reinsurance contract assets (59,068,777) - 31,146,463 1,592,722 (26,329,592
An alloeation of reinsumnce premiums {43,641,078) - - - (45,641,078)
Amounts recoverable from reinsurers for incurred claims
Amounts recoverable for incurred cliims and other
expenses - - 01,493,508 952,961 02,446,469
Changes to amounts tecoverable for ineurred claims - - 7,764,050 (557,156) 7,206, 894
Amorrdsagon of insurance acquisicon cash fows 16,502,041 - - - 16,502,041
Losses on onesous contracts and reversals of those
losses — net = = - = -
Net income or expense from reinsurance contracts held (27,139,037) 99,257,558 195 805 72,514 326
Reinsurance finance income - - 1,089,195 55,697 1,144 892
Effect of changes in non-performance dsk of reinsurers & = - - -
Total changes in the staiement of profit or loss (27,139,037 - 100,346,753 451,502 73,659,218
Cash fows
Premiums paid 112,821,025 - s - 112,821,025
Relnsurpnce acquisicion eash fows (16,502,041) - - - (16,502,041)
Amounts received - - (B6,573,285) - {B6,573,285)
Total cash flows 96,318,084 - (86,573,285) ~ 9,745,699
Met reinsurance contract liabilities as at 31 December 10,111,170 - 44,919,931 2044224 57,075,325
Reinsurance contact asscts a5 at 31 December 10,111,170 - 44,919,931 2044224 57,075,325
Relnsurance contract Babilides as at 31 December - . = " -
Net relnsurance eontrace assets oy at 31 December 10,111,170 - 44,919,931 2,044,224 57,075,328
44
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Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.S.C. and its Subsidiary

Motes to the consalidated financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

9. Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

Roll-forward of net asset or Hability for reinsurance contracts held showing the assets for remaining coverage and the

amounts recoverable on incurred claims (continuec)
Contracts measured under the PAA (continued)

0.6 Motor (continued)
Asgers for remaining Amounts recoverable on
COVErAgD incurred chiims
Esumates of
the present
Exeluding loss value of
LECOVETY Liss furre Risk
023 companent  component cash lows  adjustment Towl
AED AFED AED AED AED
Reinsurance contract assets as at | January 42673315 6,745,506 75,723,810 2a44.400 127,787,081
Reinsurance conteact liabilities as at | January - - - - -
Met reinsurance contract assets 42 673315 6,745,506 75,723,810 2R44.400 127,787,031
An allocation of reinsurance premivms (81,892,267 - - - (B1.892267)
Amounts recoverable from relnsurers for incureed cladms
Amounts recoverable for incuered claims and other
expenses - 63,201,987 212376 64,114,363
Changes 1o amounis recoverable for incurred claims - - 0894246  (2037,506) 7.836,740
Amuorrisaton of insurance acguisivon cash fows (38,580 444) - - - (38580448
Losses on onerous contraces and reversals of those
losses - net - (6,745506) - . {6,745 506)
MNet income ot expense from reinsurance contracos held (1204727110 (6,745,5006) TR026,233 (10451300 (55267114)
Reinsurance finance income - - 2676007 93,452 2,769,459
Effect of changes in non-performance rsk of reinsurers - - - - E
Tomwml changes in the smiement of profit or loks {120472,711)  (6.745,506) 75,772,240  [1.05]678) (52497655
Cah flaws
Premiums paid (19,849 523} - - - (19,849,5285)
Reinsurance sequisition eash flows 38,580 444 - - - 38,580,444
Amounts recehved . (120,349,587 - (120349587
Total cash fows 18,730,619 - (120349 587 - [101,618.968)
Blet reinsurince conteace assers as at 31 December (59 068,777 - 3,044,463 1592722 (26329 592
Reinsurance contmact assets as ar 31 December - - 3,046,463 1592722 32739145
Retnsurance contract lishiliges as at 31 December (59,068,777 - - - (59068770
WNet reinpurance contrace linbilides as at 31 Docember (59,068 777} - 31,146,463 1592722 (26,329,502
45
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Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.S.C. and its Subsidiary

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

92 Insurance and relnsurance contracts (continued)

Roll-forward of net asset or liability for reinsurance contracts held showing the assets for remaining coverage and the

amounts recoverable on incurred clalms (continwed)
Contracts measured under the PAA (continued)

97 Marine
Agsers for remaining Amounts recoverable on
COVErge incurred claims
Estimartes of
the present
Excluding vzlue of
loss recovery Loss future Risk
2024 component  component cash flows adjustment Tatal
AED AED AED AED AED
Reinsurance contract assets as at | Jamary 3,200,629 - 26,115,527 1,626,917 30,943,273
Reinsurance contrace Habilities as at 1 January - - - - -
Met reinsurance CONMEACT As5ts 3,200,829 - 26,115,527 1,626,917 30,943,273
An sllocation of reinsumnce premiums {17,159,030) . - = {17,159,030)
Amounts recoverable from reinsurers for incureed claims
Amounis recoverable for incurred cliims and other
expenses - - 15,028,575 1,084,255 16,109,830
Changes 1o nmounis recoverable for ineurred elaims - - 5,057,850 (756,652) 4,301,207
Amortisaton of insurance acquisiton cash fows 4,121,099 - - - 4,121,099
Losses on onerous contracts and reversals of those
losscs - nex = - = = =
Net income of expense from relnsurance contracts held (13,037,931 - 20,083,434 327,603 7,373,106
Reinsuranee finance income - - 632,472 39,290 671,762
Effect of changes in non-perfonmance risk of reinsurers - - - - -
Total changes in the sthtement of prafit or loss {13,037,931) - 20,715,906 366,893 B,044,868
Cash fows
Premiums paid 17,741,481 - - - 17,7414
Relnsurance acquisition cash flows (4,121,009} - - = (4,121,099)
Amounts received - - (3,797,839) = (3,797,839)
Totul cash flows 13,620,382 - (3,797,839} - 9,822 543
Met reinsurance contract assets as at 31 December 3,783,280 - 43,033,594 1,993,830 48,610,684
Beinsurance conrmact assers 25 at 31 December 3,783,280 - 43,033,594 1,993,810 48,510,684
Heinsurance contrace liabilites 15 ac 31 December = - - - -
Met reinsurance cantract asscts as at 31 December 3,783,280 - 43,033,594 1,993,810 48,810,684
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Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.S.C. and its Subsidiary

Notes to the consolidated financial statemenis (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

9, Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

Raoll-forward of net asset or liability for reinsurance contracts held showing the assets for remaining coverage and the

amounts recoverable on incurred claims (continued)

Contracts measured under the PAA (continued)

9.7 Marine (contnued)

Assers for remaining Amouants recoverahle on
covernge incurrod claims
Esdmates of
the present
Excluding loss value of
FECOVEDY Loss future Risk
2023 companent  coOMpONEnt cash flows  adjustment Toml
AED AED AED AED AED
Reinsurance contract assets as at 1 |anuary JACBLTS 4,738 AT 62892 1564429 42040733
Reinsurance contrace liabilides ns at 1 Japuary - - - - -
Met reinsurance contract asscts JADB AT 4738 37,062 852 1,564420  42040,733
An allocation of reinsurance premiums {18,924.063) - - - {18.224,063)
Amounts recoverable from relnsurers for incurced claima
Amounts recoverable for incurred cliims and other K
expenses - 5,168,097 810923 5,970,020
Changes to amounts recovershle for incurred claims . {6,689,657) {BO0,223)  (7.489,B82)
Amorusagon of insurance acquigivon cash flows 2815477 - - ZB15ATT
Losses on anerous contacts and reversals of those
Insses - net - (4,738) - - {4,738
Met income of expense from reinsummnce contracts held (16,108,586) [4,736) (1,521,563 10,700 (17,624,186)
Reinsurance finance income - - 123692 51,788 1,278,711
Effect of changes in non-performance dsk of refnsurets = - - s =
Total changes in the statement of profit of loss (16,108,586) {4,738) (294,639 62488 (16,345475)
Canly flons
Premiums paid 18,716,218 - - - 18716218
Reinsurance acquisidon cash flows (L815477) - (ZB1547TT)
Amounts received - (10,652,726) {10,652,726)
Totl cash fows 15,900,741 - {10,652,726) - 5,248,015
Met reinsurance contract nssety as at 31 December 3200829 - 26,115,527 1626917 30,943,273
Remnsurance contrace assets 25 at 31 December 3200820 26,115,527 1626917 30943273
Reinsurance conteace liahilites as ar 31 December - = - - .
Met réinsurance coneract assets a3 at 31 December 3300,82.? 26,115,527 1626917 3943273
&7
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Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.S.C. and its Subsidiary

MNotes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

9. Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

Roll-forward of net asset or liability for reinsurance contracts held showing the assets for remaining coverage and the

amounts recovernble on incurred claims (continued)

Contracts measured under the PAA (contdnued)

0.8 FGA

2024

Reinsurance contract sssets as at | Janoary
Reinsurance contrace Babilities as at 1 January
Met reinsurance Contiact assets

An allocation of reinsurance premioms
Amouns recoverable from reinsurers for incutred clalms
Amounts recoverable for incurted claims and other

expenses
Changes to amouns recoverable for incurred elaims
Amartzation of insurance acquisiion cash flows
Losses on operows contracts and reversals of those
lpsses - net
Net income or expense from relnsurance contraces held
Reinsurance finance income
Effeet of changes in non-performance risk of reinsurers
Total changes in the statement of profit or loss
Cash fows
Premiums paid
Reinsuranee acqulsition cash fows
Amounts reccived
Total cash flows

Met relnsurance contract assets as at 31 December

Retnsurance conmact assers as at 31 December
Reinsurance contmact liabilides as ar 31 December

Met reinsurance contract assets 48 at 3 December

Asseis for remaining Amounits recoverable on

COVETAE incurred claims

Estimates of

the present

Excluding waloe of

loss recovery Loss furure Risk

component  component cash flows adjustment Taotal
AED AED AED AED AED
8,981,908 - 27,962,850 1,726,986 38,671,744
8,981,908 - 27,962,850 1,726,986 38,671,744
(137,213,053) - - - (137,213,053)
- - 73,815,658 2,768,509 76,584,167
. - (4551,017)  (896,488)  (5,447,509)
16,974,695 - - - 16,974,695
(120,238, 358) - 69,264,641 1,872,021  (49,101,696)
- - 909,665 55,932 965,597
(120,238, 358) - 70,174,306 1,927,953  (98,136,099)
102,198,377 = - - 102,198,377
(16,974,695) - - - (16,974,695)
z - (26,811,371) - (26,811,371
85,223,682 - (26811,371) - ss413n
(26,032, 768) - MJI25TES 3,654,000 48,047,956
- - 71,325,785 3,654,939 74,980,724
(26,032,768) - - - (26,032,768)
(26,032, 768) - 71,325,785 3,654,939 48,947,956
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Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.S.C. and its Subsidiary

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

9. Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

Roll-forward of net asset or liability for reinsurance contracts held showing the assets for remaining coverage and the

amounts recoverable on incurred cladms (continued)
Contracts measured under the PAA (continued)

0.8 FGA (continued)

Assets for remalning Amouants recoverable on
coverge incurred clubms
Estimates of
the peesent
Excluding loss value of
recovery Loss furaee sk
2023 COMPOnENT  COMponent cush flows  adjstment Toml
AED AED AED AED AED
Reinsurance contract assets as at | January - 61,223 44,067 214 2255144 46383581
Reinsurance contract liabilides as ac 1 January (27,9309 508) - - - (27935,508)
Net relnsurancs coNtract Assers (27,939 508) $1,223 44067 214 2255144 18444073
An sllocanon of reinsurance preminms (108,267,325} - . - (100,267 325)
Amount recoverable from reinsurers for neurred clalms
Amounts recoverable for incurred cliims and other
expenseh 18,400,088 1018432 19427520
Changes to armounts recoverable for incurred elnims - - (17199,718) (1,633,149 (18,832.867)
Amoetisaton of insurance acquisiton cash fows 12,508,899 - - - 12508899
Lostes on onerous contracts and reversals of those
losses - ney - {61,223) - - (61,223
Met income or expenise from eeinsurance contracts held (87,758, 426) (61,223) 1,209,370 (614,717)  (87,224,996)
Reimsurance finance income - - 1,694 000 86,559 1,780,559
Effeet of changes in non-perfommanee risk of reinsurers - - - - -
Total changes in the sttement of prafit or loss (R7,758,426) (61,223} 2903370 (528,158)  (BS 444437
Coeh flows
Premioms paid 137,188,741 - - 137,188,741
Relnsurance acquisition cash Jows (12,508 859) i - (12,508,899
Amounts received . (19,007,738 (19,007,734)
Toal cash Hows 124,679,842 (19,007,734} - 105672108
Met relnsurance contract isscts as at 31 December §,981,908 27962 850 1126986  A8.671.744
Reinsurance contract assers as art 31 December B.981.908 27,562,850 1,726,986 38,671,744
Reinsurance contract labilites as ar 31 December = - - -
Met reinsurance contract nssees as at 31 December A.981 908 27.962 B850 1726986 18,671,744
49
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Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.S.C. and its Subsidiary

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

9, Insurance and reinsumnce contracts (continued)

Roll-forward of net asset or liability for reinsurance contracts held showing the assets for remaining coverage and the

amounts recoverable on incurred claims (continued)
Contracts measured under the PAA {contnued)

9.9 Medical

2024

Reinsurance contract assets as at | Januacy
Reinsurance contract liahilities as at 1 January
Net reinsurance contract Habilities

An sllocation of reinsurance premiums

Amount recovernhle from relnsurers for incurred claims
Amounts recoverable for incurred claims and other
expenses
Changes to amounts recoverable for incurred claims
Amortisadon of insurance pequisinon cash Hows
Losses on onerous contmcts and reverials of those
losses - net

Net income or expernise from reinsurance contraces held

Remsurance fnance income

Effect of changes in non-performance tisk of relnsurers

Total changes in the statement of profit or loss

Cash Hows
Premiums paid
Reinsurance acquisition cash flows
Amounts received

Total cash flows

Met reinsurance contract assets as at 31 December

Reinsurance contract assers 28 at 31 December
Reinsurance conreace lizhilives as ar 31 December

Met reinsurance contiact asacts as at 31 December

Agges for remalning Amounts recoverable on
caverage ingurred claims

Estimates of

the present

Excluding valne of

loss recovery Loss furure Risle

component component cash flows  adjustment Total
AED AED AED AED AED
- - 303,544,682 7,092,262 310,636,944
(246,352,553) - - - (246,352,553)
{246,352.553) - 303,544,682 7,092,262 64,284 391
m:aﬂl’ﬁﬂ = = et ﬂmsmrzgn
- - 601,731,622 5239094 606,970,716
. - (3521,412) (5,736,440) (29,257,852)
Hr’q'ﬂisuﬂ - - L= ﬂ:m
(628,388 455) - 578,210,210 (497,346)  (50,675,621)
- - 7,299,518 170,551 7,470,069
(628,388,485) - 585,500,728  (326,795)  (43,205,552)
660,419,003 - - - 660,419,003
(79,498,808) " - - (79,498,808)
- - (565,893,513) - (565,893,513)
580,920,195 - (565,893,513) - 1506,682
(293,820,843) - 323,160,897 6,765,467 36,105,521
- = 323,160,897 6,765,467 329,926,364
(293,820,843) - > - (293,820,843)
_(293,820,843) - 323,160,897 6,765,467 36,105,521
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Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.S.C. and its Subsidiary

Mates to the consolidated financial staterments (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

9 Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

Roll-forward of net asset or liahility for reinsurance contracts held showing the assets for remaining coverage and the

amounts recoverable on incurred claims (continued)

Contracts measured under the PAA (continued)

99  Medical (continued)

2023

Reinsurance contract assets as at 1 January

Reinsurance contract Babilities a8 at 1 January

Met reinsurance contract liabilites

An allocaton of reinsurance premivms

Amaunts recoverable from selnsurers for Incurred clalms
Amounts recoverable for incurred cliims and other
expenses
Changes m amounts recoverable for incurred claims
Amordsaton of insursnce acquisiion cash flows
Losses on onerous contracts and reversals of those
losses - net

Met income of expense from reimurance conteacts held

Reinsurance finance income

Effect of changes in non-perfoemanice rsk of reinsurers

Total chanpes in the satement of profit or loss

Cash flowy
Premiums paid
Reinsurance acguisition cash fows
Amounis recetved

Toul cash fows

Mer relnsurnnce contract liabilites as at 31 December

Reinsurance contmet gssets as ot 31 December
Reinsurance contract habiliges as at 31 Decemnber

Met reinsurance conteace assets as at 31 Decembey

Agsers for remaining Amouns recoverthle on
COVEInge incurred claims

Esdmatcs of

the present

Exeluding loss value of

recovery Loss furare Risk

COmponent  component cash flows  adjustment Total
AED AED AED AED AED
- 16,181 232,199,174 459,702 236,813,147
(244,371.670) . . (244,371 6700
(244, 371,670) 16,181 232,199,174 4597702 (7,558,523)
(629,193,954) - - - (629,193954)
609,543,138 6,086,006 615,629,234
B - (3,202,280) (3,720,569)  (6,922,849)
52814117 = : 52814117
= (16,181) - - (16,181)
(576,379,837 (16,181) 605340858 2365527 32310357
- - 6,511,912 128,943 6,640,855
(576,379,837 (16,181) 612852770 2404470 38951222
627,213,071 - - 627,213.071
(52,814,117 - - (52,814,117)
. - (541,507.262) (541,507,262)
574,398,054 - (541,507 262) - 32,891,692
{246,352, 553) - 03544682 7092262 2 64.284301
- - 303,544,082 702262 310,636,944
(246,352,553) - - (246,352,553
(346,352, 553) = 303,544 6BZ 7,002,262 64,284 391

=]
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Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.S.C. and its Subsidiary

Motes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

9, Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

Roll-forward of net asset or liability for reinsurance contracts held showing the assets for remaining coverage and the
amounts recoverable on incurred claims (continued)

Contracts measured under the PAA (continued)

9.10 Life
Asgsets for remaining Amounts recoverable an
coverage incurred claims
Estimates of
the present
Excluding value of
loss recovery Loss future Risk
2024 component component  cash flows  adjustment Total
AED AED AFD AED AED
Reinsurance contzact e55¢1s as at | January - - 9,169,541 43,263 9,212,804
Reinsurance contmee lisbilivies as at 1 Janvary (3,361,276) - - - (3,361,276)
MNet reinsurance contract assets {3,361,276) - 9,169,541 43,263 5,851,528

An allpcarion of reinsemnce premiums (14,701,049 - - - {14,701,049)
Amonums recoverable from reinsurers for incurred claims
Amounts recoverable for incurmed claims and adher

expenses - - 10,623,917 17,569 10,641,486

Changes to amounts tecoverable for incurred claims - - (225,641) (14,490)  (240,131)

Amortisaton of insurance sequisiton cash flows 2,791,106 - - - 2,791,106

Lasses on onerous contracts and reversals of those

losses — net - - - - =
MNet income af expense from reinsurance coniracts held {11,909,943) - 10,398,276 3079 (1,508,588)
Rednsumnce finance income - - 279,302 1,317 280,619
Effect of changes in non-performance tsk of reinsurers - - - = =
Total changes in the statement of profit or loss (11,909,943) - 10,677,578 4396 (1,227.969)
Caslh fows

Premiums paid 14,594, 343 - - - 14,994,343

Reinsurance acquisiion eagh flows {2,791,106) - - - (2791,106)

Amounts recetved - - (B,493,082) - (B493,082)
Toatal cash flows 12,283,237 - {B8,493,082) - 3,710,155
Met reinsurance contract assets as ot 3 December {3,067 ,982) - 11,354,087 47,659 8,333,714
Reinsurance contract 253ets as at 31 December - - 11,354,057 47,659 11,401,696
Reinsurance conrmer liabilines as ar 31 December (3, 067,982) - - - (3,067,982)
Met reinsurance contract sssets as at 31 December {3,067,982) - 11,354,037 47,659 EA33,714
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Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.8.C. and its Subsidiary

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

9, Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

Roll-forward of net asset or Hability for seinsurance contracts held showing the assets for remaining coverage and the
amounts recoverable on incurred claims (continued)

Contracts measured under the PAA (continued)
910 Life (continued)

Assers for remaining Amounts recovershle an
COVELRgE incutred clidm
Estmates of
the present
Excluding loss walue of
recovery Loss future Risk
2023 COMPONENt  COMPOnNEnt cash flows  adjustment Toml
AED AED AED AED AED
Reinsurance contract assets as at 1 Janoary - 891,806 12841 676 51883 13885365
Reinsurance contract Uabilides as at 1 January {1,697,316) - - - {1,697316)
Ner reinturance contract astets 1,697,316 001 806 12 841,676 51,883  12188,040
An alloeation of reinsurance premiums (10,784,519 - (10,784.519)
Amounts recoverable from reinmurers for incurred cladms
Amounts recoverable for incurred claims and other
expenscs = i 7,690,774 14,984 7,705,758
Changes to amounts recoverable for incurred claima - - (4,322,711) (25116) (4347827
Amortisation of insurance acquisidon cash fows 2,345,946 . = 2345 946
Losses on onerous contraces and seversals of those
losses - net - (991,808} - - (991 806)
Met income or expense from reinsurance contracts hald (B.438,57%) (001,806 3,368,063 (10,132)  (6,072,448)
Reingurance finince income - - 374,569 1,512 ITH,081
Effect of changes in non-performance risk of reinsurers - - - - =
Totl changes in the statement of profic or loss (8438575 (991,806 3,742,632 (86200  (54606367)
Cach flana
Premiums paid 9,120,550 - - - 9,120,554
Relnsurance nequisiton eash flows {2,245,946) - - - (2345 046
Amounts received - = (7414,767) - (TA414.76T)
Total cash flows G, 7744013 - (T 414,767) - (640,154
Met relnsurance contract assets as at 31 December £.361,276) - 9,169,541 43,263 5851328
Reinsurance contract asscts as at 31 December - = 9,169,541 43263 9212804
Reinsurance contract linbilites ns at 31 December (3.361,276) - - - (3361.276)
Net eeinsurance contract assets ad ot 31 December {3,361,276) - 9,169,541 43,263 5851 528
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Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.S.C. and its Subsidiary

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

10, Other receivables

2024 2003
AED AED
Staff recervables 3,393,984 3421 499
Rent receivables 23,697,192 21,887,258
Prepayments and othess 15,541,226 12,899 968
42,632,402 38,208,725

11 Bank balances and cash
2024 2023
AED AED
Cash on hand 221,284 106,100

Bank balances

Current dccounts 105,497,314 56,218,276
Call accounts 1,031,821 1,627,854
Margin deposits 1,087,390 1,089,390
Fixed deposits 316,447,330 256,689,378
Bank balances and cash 424,285,139 315,730,998
Less: Depasits under lien (Mote 15) (276,447,330) (198,882 934)
Less: Deposits with oniginal marurity of more than three months (40,000,000) (42,806,444
Less: Margin deposits (1,087,390) (1,089.390)
Cash and cash equivalents 106,750,419 72,952,230

The interest rate on fixed deposits with banks ranges from 3.89% 1o 5.75% (2023: 3% 1w 5.80%) per annum. All fixed
deposits are held in local banks in the United Arab Emirates.

12, Share capital
2024 2023
AED AED
Authotised, issued and fully paid:
250 million ordinary shares of AED 1 each
(2023: 250 million ordinary shares of AED 1 each) 250,000,000 250,000,000

13, Reserves
131  Smmrory reserve

In accordance with UAE Federal Decree Law No. (32) of 202], the Parent Company has established a stamtory reserve
by appropration of 10% of profit for each year until the reserve equals 50% of the paid-up share capital. This reserve is
not available for distribution except as stipulated by the Law. No transfet was made during the year (2023: AED nil).

13.2  Voluntary reserve

The voluntary reserve is established through mansfers from profit for the year as recommended by the Board of Directors
in accordance with Articles of Assodation. During the year, the Board of Directors approved the wansfer of AED
100,000,000 from the voluntary reserve 1o the accumulated losses. This decision was aimed at decressing the ratio of
accumulated losses to the Company's share capital. The reallocation from the voluntary reserve was executed with the
Group's best interests in mind.




Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.S.C. and its Subsidiary

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

13. Reserves (continoed)

133 Reinsurance reserve

In sccordance with Insurance Companies register of the Central Bank of the T.A.E. ("CBUAE") Board of Directors’
Decision Mo, 23 Asticle 34, an amount of AED 4,607,833 (2023: AED 4,076,657) was trnsferred from sccumulated losses
to teinsurince reserve, The reserve is not available for distribution and will not be disposed of without prior approval from

Central Bank of the U.AE. {"CBUAE").
14. Provision for employees’ end of service indemnity

Movements in the net Lability were as follows:

2024 2023
AED AED
Balance at the beginning of the year 43,118,479 41 822 684
Amounts charged during the year 5,142,269 2439778
Amounts paid during the year (1,475,998) (1,143.983)
46,784,750 43118479
15. Bank borrowings
2024 2023
AED AED
Bank overdrafis 125,475,926 120,232,272
Term loans 174,599,267 158,750,666
300,075,193 278,982,938
The bank borrowings are repayable as follows:
On demand or within one year 213,409,193 181,103,738
In the second year 61,718,000 11,214,000
In the third and subsequent years 24,948,000 86,665,200
300,075,193 278,982 9138
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months
{shown under current liahilities) (213,409,193) (181,103,738)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months
(shown under non-currént lahilities) B, 666,000 97,879,200

Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand and catry out intetest rates ranging from CSAF plus 0.5% to 2.5% plus 3 months

EIBOR (2023 0.5% to 2.5% plus 3 months EIBOR) per annum.
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Notes

to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

15, Bank bormowings (contdnued)
The term loans description, maturity dares, and classification ace set in the table below:
Notes Maturity 2024 2023
AED AED
Loan 1 {1 31 Ocrober 2025 8,333,333 18333333
Loan 2 (i) 2 February 2028 15,832,600 20,833,000
Loan 3 {in) 30 June 2028 47,880,000 57,960,000
Loan 4 () 31 December 2026 50,000,000 50,000,000
Loan 5 v 28 Pebruary 2025 1,333,333 9,333,333
Loan 6 (vi) 2 February 2024 - 416,000
Loan 7 {vii) B Masch 2024 - 1,875,000
Loan 8 (vid) 31 May 2025 7,766,667 :
Loan 9 (i) 31 July 2025 29,353,334 =
Loan 10 (x) 30 September 2025 5,100,000 ;
Loan 11 (xd) 31 October 2025 9,000,000 -
174,599,267 158,750,666
Main features of banle borrowings:

* Bank loans are obmined to finance the construction of investment properties and o meet its operating capital

15,

tequiremen
= Bank overdraft is pavable on demand.

)

(i)

(iii)

Bank lpan for the amount of AED 75,000,000 was obtained in November 2017 to be repaid on monthly
instalments of ARD 833,333 commencing from May 2018 till October 2025 with interest rate 2.75% plus 1-
month EIBOR,

Bank loan for the amount of AED Wﬂm.ﬂmwﬁuhuhmdhhhylﬂﬂ AEILD 25,000,000 is mbeupmdm
monthly instalments of AED 694 444 commencing from January 2020 tll December 2021, whereas remaining
balance is to be repaid in two installment of AED liﬁﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂmhnnﬁnyﬂ&ﬂ&h{lym On Febeuary
2023 the loan was restructured amounting to AED 25,000,000 and is to be repaid in 59 monthly installments
of AED 416,700 and the temaining balance of AED 414,700 is to be repaid on February 2028 which bears
interest rate of 2.5% plus 3-month EIBOR.

Bank loan for the amount of AED 63,000,000 was obiained in July 2023. An amount of AED 15,120,000 is
to be repaid on eighteen monthly instalments of AED 840,000 commencing from July 2023, AED 11,214,000
is 1o be repaid on twelve monthly insmiments of AED 934,500 commencing from January 2025, AED
11,718,000 is to be repaid on twelve monthly instalments of AED 976,500 commencing from January 2026,
AED 12,726,000 is to be repaid on twelve monthly instalments of AED 1,060,500 commencing from January
2027, AED 6,300,000 is to be repaid on three monthly instalments of AED 2,100,000 commencing from

January 2028, whereas the remaining balance of AED 5,922,000 is 1o be repaid on three monthly instalments

()

(¥)

(vi)

of AED 1,974,000 commeneing from April 2028 and bears interest rate of 235% plus 3 month EIBOR.

Bank loan for the amount of AED 50,000,000 was obtained in December 2023 to be repaid in one bullet
payment in December 2026 and bears interest rate of (1.65% plus fixed deposir rate (5.80%),

Bank loan for the amount of AED 10,000,000 was obtained in November 2023 m be repaid on monthly
instalments of AED 666,667 commencing from December 2023 dll February 2025 with interest rate 275%
plus 1-month EIBOR.

Bank loan for the amount of AED 2,500,000 was obmined in February 2023, AED 2,292.400 is to be repaid
on monthly instalments of AED 208 400 commencing from March 2023 il January 2024 and the
balanee of AED 207,600 is to be repaid on February 2024 which bears interest mte of 25% plus 3-month

EIBOR.

ar
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

15. Bank borrowings (continued)

{vii)  Bankloan for the amount of AED 7,500,000 was obmined in March 2023 to be repaid on manthly instalments
of AED 625,000 commencing from April 2023 vill March 2024 with incerest rate 2.5% plus 3-month EIBOR.

{vii) Bank loan for the amount of AED 23,300,000 was obtined in February 2024 m be repaid on monthly
instalments of AED 1,553,333 commencing from March 2024 till May 2025 with interest tate 2.75% plus 1-
month EIBOR.

(ix) Bank loan for the amount of AED 62,900,000 was obtained in April 2024 to be repaid on monthly instalments
of AED 4,193,333 commencing from May 2024 oll July 2025 with interest rate 2.75% plus 1-month EIBOR.

(x) Bank loan for the amount of AED 8,500,000 was obtained in June 2024 to be repaid on monthly instalments
of AED 566,667 commencing from July 2024 ull September 2025 with interest rate 275% plus 1-month
EIBOR.

{xi) Bank loan for the amount of AED 13,500,000 was obtained in July 2024 to be repaid on monthly inscalments
of AED 900,000 commencing from August 2024 tll Ocober 2025 with interest mte 275% plus 1-month
EIBOR.

At 31 December 2024, bank borrowings were secured by lien on fixed deposits amounting to AED 276.4 million
(2023: AED 198.8 million) (Note 11), mortgnge of investment properties with fair value of AED 849 million (2023
AED B47.8 million) and assignment of rental proceeds from certain investment properties (Note 6),

Borrowing agreements included financial covenants, of which some of them were breached during the year. Hence,
the loan the has been reclassified from non-cutrent to current potion accordingly.

Classification of bank borrowings between current and non current is as follows:

2024 2023
AED AED
Current partion 213,409,193 181,103,738
Non-current portion 86,666,000 97,879,200
300,075,193 278,982 938
16. Lease Liabilities

Lease liabilitles are presented in the consolidared statement of financial position as follews;
2024 2023
AFD AED
Current 1,072,832 4,435 857
Mon-current 1,158,861 244 541
3,231,693 6,880,398

The Group has leases for the offices all in UAE. Each Jease is reflected on the consolidated statement of balance position
as 3 nght-of-use asset and a lease liability. The Group classifies its nght-of-use assets in @ consistent manner to its property

and equipment (Note 5).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 Decemnber 2024

16. Lease Liabilities (continued)

Right-of-use assets Number of Range of Average Number of Number of

rght-of-use remaining remaining leases with leases with

assets leased term lease term extension termination

options optons

Offices 2to 3 years 2 years 19 19
The movement in lease liahilities during the yeat was as follows:

2024 2023

AED AED

Balance at January 1, 6,880,398 0,281,797

Additions / remeasurement 1,489,801 2B41 817

Terminaton (923,025) (BO3,807)

Interest charge during the year 206,412 372384

Payment of lease liabilities during the year (4,421,893} (4,811,793

Balance ar December 31, 3,231,693 6,880 398

The incremental rate used for lease liabiliries is 4% (2023: 4%). Forure minimum lease payments at

December 31, 2024 were as follows:

Minimum lease payments due
Within 1 year 1-3 year Totad
AED AED AED
December 31, 2024
Lease payments 2,163,498 1,197,020 3,360,518
Finance charges (90,666) (38,159) (128,825)
Net present value 2,072,832 1,158,861 3,231,693
December 31, 2023
Lease payments 4,630,335 2498117 7128452
Finance charges (194,478) (33,576) (248,054)
Net present value 4,435 857 2444 541 6,580,398
17. Orther payables
2024 2023
AED AED
Rent received in advance 19,295,394 13,728 274
Accrued expenses and other payables 17,735,196 18,498 245
Due to employees 18,257,426 15,668,588
55,288,016 47,895,107
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MNotes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

18. Investment and other income

2024 2023

AED AED

Interest income on deposits 15,786,662 12 308,056
Dividend from investments 2,989,308 3324127
Change in fair value of investment properties (Note 6) {3,000,000) 2,741,344
Income from investment properties (Note 6) 30,064,522 24.192.089
Gain on eancellation of |leass 36,123 56,021
Other income 36,276 139,308
45,912,801 42760945
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Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.S.C. and its Subsidiary

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

23.  General and administrative expenses
Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging the following expenses:

2024 2023

AED AED

Staff costs 44,580,074 37,599,792
Guovernment and regulatory fees 8,958,377 7,120,829
Professional fees 9,266,005 7,890,782
Depreciaton of property and equipment (note 5) 4,663,722 4,990,052
Insurance 5,931,030 42246 644
Communication, rransportation and utlities 2,523,512 2,690,870
Bank charges 3,920,781 1,759.274
Director's Remuneration® (note 32) 3,600,000 1,800,000
Repairs and maintenance 363,228 147373
Other expenses 7,950,275 6,798,864
91,766,004 75,024 480

General and administrative expenses amountng to AED 85,895,658 (2023: AED 68,232,158) is allocared to the
underwriting activities, excluding the ditector’s remunetation and management expenges, which is fully unallocated.
Unallocated portion is amounting to AED 5,870,346 (2023: AED 6,792,322).

*Throughout the year, Board of Directors' remunemtion amounting to AED 1.8 million for the year ending 31
December 2024 has been proposed for approval at the Annual General Assembly. In doing so, management has
considered the stipulations of the Federal Law No, (32) of 2021 regarding remuneration limits in case of losses.
However, as the Group used to record the annual BOD’s remuneration subsequent to the year-end, once it has been
spproved by the sharcholders, the renumeration related to the year ended 31 December 2023 of AED 1.8 million has
also been reorded within the current fiseal year resulting in a duplication of the expenses. Management believes that
the impact of 2023 renumeration is not significant to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

24.  Basic and diluted loss per share

2024 2023
Loss for the year after tax (in AED) (36,927,232) {132,762.469)
Number of outstanding shares 250,000,000 250,000,000
Basic and diluted loss per share after tax (in AED) (0.15) {0.53)

Basic loss per share after tax has been caleulated by dividing the loss for the year after tax by the number of shares
outstanding at the end of the reporting period. Diluted loss per share after tax as of 31 December 2024 and 31
December 2023 are equivalent to basic loss per share after tax a5 the Group did not issue any new instrument that
would impact earnings per share after tax when executed.

25. Related party transactions
Related parties include the Group’s major Shareholders, Directors and businesses controlled by them and their families

over which they exercise significant management influence as well as key management personnel.

At the end of the reporting period, amounts due from/to related parties included under due from policyholders and
gross outstanding claims were as follows:

2024 2023
AED AED
Board members and entitics under common contral
Due from policyholders 5,802,532 6,551,395
Gross outstanding claims 764,949 418,763

The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees have been given or received, and
no expense has been recognised in the year for bad or doubtful debts in respect of the amounts owed by related

parties.
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a5, Related party transactions (contnoed)

Transactions:
Dhuring the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with related parties:

2024 2023

AED AED
Board members and entities under commeon control
Gross premioms (part of insurance revenue) 5,913,032 5195331
Claims paid (part of insurance service expenses) 7,861,488 4,511,245
Compensation of board of directors /key management personnel

2024 2023

AED AED
Short-term benefits 5,169,934 4,547 784
Long-term benefirs 360,330 305,950
Board of divectors remuneration 1,800,000 1,800,000

* In addition, the General Manager is also provided with accommodation.
26. Contingencies and commitments

Contingencies

Lagal procedings

The Group is invalved in various legal proceedings and claims arising in the ordinary course of business, While the
outcome of these maters cannot be predicted with certpinty, management does not believe that these marers will
have a materal adverse effect on the Group's consolidited financial statements if settled unfavorably.

2024 2023
AED AED

Commitments
Letters of guarantee 111,663,190 118,963,721

27, Insurance sk

The dsk under any one insurince contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the
amount of the resuldng claim, By the nature of an insurance contract, this risk is mandom and therefore unpredicable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of probability is applied to pocing and provisioning, the
principal rsk that the Group faces under its insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments exceed
the carrying amount of the insurance lishilines. This could occur because the frequency or severity of claims and
benefits are preater than estimated, Insurance events are random and the actual number and amount of elaims and
berefies will vary from year 1o year from the estimate established using statistieal techniques,

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability about
the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the board by
a change in any subset of the portfolio, The Group has developed its insurance underwritng strategy to diversify the
type of insurance risks accepted and within each of these categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks
to reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

The Group manages risks through its underwriting strategy, adequate reinsurance arcangements and proactive claims
handling. The underwriting stratepy attemnpts to ensure that the underwritten risks are well diversified in terms of type
and amount of tisk, industry and geography, Underwriting limits are in place to enforee appropiate risk selection
coter.
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27. Insurance risk (continued)
271 Froguency and severity of elais

The Group has the right not to renew individual policies, re-prics the risk, impose deductibles and reject the payment
of a frandulent claim. Insurance contracts also entitle the Group to pursue third pamies for payment of some ar all
costs (for example, subrogation).

Property insurance contracts are underwritten by reference to the commercial replacement value of the properties and
contents insured, and claim payment limits are always included to cap the amount payable on oceurrence of the insured
event. Cost of rebuilding properties, of replacement or indemnity for contents and time taken to restart operations
for business interruption are the key factors that influence the level of claims under these poliaes. Property insurance
contracts are subdivided into four risk categories: fire, business interruption, weather damage and theft. The insurance
risk arising from these contracts is ot concentrated in any of the territories in which the Group operates, and there
is a balance between commercial und personal properties in the overall portfolio of insured buildings.

The reinsurance arrangements include excess and catastrophe The effect of such reinsurance arrangements
is that the Group should not suffer net insurance losses of a set limit defined in each armngement for each policy,
The Group has survey units dealing with the mitigation of dsks sumo claims. This unir investigates and
recommends ways to improve dsk claims, The risks are reviewed individually at least once in 3 years and adjusted to
reflect the latest information on the undeelying facts, current law, jurisdiction, contractual terms and conditons, and
other factors. The Group actively manages and pursues easly settlements of claims o reduce its exposure o
unpredictable developments.

The following tables disclose the concentration of insurance lisbilities by line of business. The amounts are the carrying
amount of the insuranee liahilities (gross and net of reinsurance) arising from the insurance contraces:

2024
Giross Reinsurance Net
AED AED AED
Motor 19,423,629 (57,075,325) (37,651,696)
Marine 82,355,884 (48,810,684) 33,545,200
FGA 36,305,345 (48,947,956) (12,642,611)
Medical 582,245,224 (36,105,521} 546,139,703
Life 10,661,045 {8,333,714) 2,327,331
730,991,127 (199,273,200) 531,717,927

2023
Grross Reinsurance Net
AED AED AED
Movor 279,544 26,329,592 26,609,136
Marine 62,792,702 (30,943,273 31,849,429
FGA (12462413 (38,671,744 (51,134,157
Medical 466,560,195 (64,284,391) 402,275,804
Life 8,051,878 {5,851,528) 22050 350
525,221,906 (113,421 344) 411,800 562
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27, Insurance risk (continued)
272 Somrcer of uncertainty in the extimation of futwre claim payments

Claims on insurance contracts are payable on a chims-occurrence basis. The Group is lisble for all insured events that
occurred durng the term of the contmct, even if the loss is discovered after the end of the contract term, As a result,
linbility claims are settled over a long period of time and element of the claims provision includes incurred but not reported
claims (IBNR). The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainry than the estimation of the
eost of sentling claims alteady notified to the Group, where information about the claim event is available TANR claims
may not be apparent to the insured until many years after the event that gave rize to the claims. For some insumnce
contracts, the IBNR proportion of the total liability is high and will typically display grester variations between initial
estimates and final outcomes because of the greater degree of difficulty of estimating these labilities. In estimating the
linbility for the cost of reported claims not yet paid, the Group considers information available from loss adjusters and
information on the cost of settling claims with similar characteristics in previous periods. Group has involved external

actuarial values as well Lagge claims are sssessed on n case-by-case basis or projected separately in order to allow for the
possible distortive effect of their development and incidence on the rest of the portfolio.

The estimated cost of claims includes direct expenses to be incurred in settling elaims, net of the expected subrogation
viloe and other recoveties. The Group takes all reasonable steps o ensure that it has approprare information
reparding its elaims exposures. However, given the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it is likely that the
final outcome will prove to be different from the original Tability established.

The amount of insurance claims is particularly sensitive to the level of court awards and to the development of legal
precedent on matters of contract and tort. Insutunce contracts are also subject to the emergence of new types of latent
claims, but no allowance is included for this at the reporting date,

Where possible, the Group adopts multiple techniques to estimate the required level of provisions. This provides a
greater understanding of the trends inherent in the experience being projected. The projections given by the various
methodologies also assist in estimating the range of possible outcames. The most appropriate estimation technique is
selected taking into account the chamcteristics of the business class and the extent of the development of each accident
year.

In calculating the estimated cost of unpaid claims {bo:h reported and not), the Group's estimation techniques arc s
combination of loss-ratio-based estimates and an estimate based upon actual claims experience using pmd:muncd
formulae where greater weight is given to actunl clnims experience as time passes. The initinl loss-ratio estimate is an
important assumption in the estimation technique and is based on previous years' experience, adjusted for factors
such as premium rate changes, anticipated market experience and historical elaims inflarion. The initia] estimate of the
loss ratios used for the cutrent year (before reinsurance) are analyzed below by type of risk where the insured opemtes
for current and prior year premiums eamed.

2024 2023

Gross loss Net loss Gross loss Wet loss
ratio tatio ratio miio

Type of risk
Motor 136%e 116%s 125% 149%,
Marine 67% 132% 11% 51%
FGA T 31345 B 59%
Medical B6% 94"%% OB% 101%

Life BO% 644%s 2% 22%
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27, Insurance risk (continued)
272 Sonrei of mucertainty in the estimation of futnre eloim paymenty (continmied)
A hypothetical 1% change in the loss ratio, net of relnsurance, would impact insurance service result as follows:

24 23

AED AED
Impact of change in loss ratio by +/- 1%
Mator 2,200,112 1,847,765
Marine 189,820 (14,296
FGA 168,225 51,192
Medieal 2,924,376 2,106,871
Life 12,186 2926

273  Prooe wsed to decide on assrempéions

The nisks associated with these insurance conteacts are complex and subject to @ number of variables that compheate
quantitative sensitivity analysis. Internal data is derived mostly from the Group's quarterly claims reports and screening
of the actual insurance contracts carried out at the end of the reporting penod to derive dam for the contmacts held.
The Group has reviewed the individual contracts and in particular the industries in which the insured companies
operte and the actual exposure years of clams. This information is used to develop scenarios related to the lateney
of claims that are used for the projections of the ultimate number of claims.

The choice of selected results for each accident year of each class of business depends on an assessment of the
technique that has been most appropriate to observed historical developments. In certain instances, this has meant
thart different techniques or combinations of techniques have been selecred for individnal accident years or proups of
sccident years within the same class of business, The Group has also invelved an independent external actuary in the
valuation of technical reserves of the Group.

274 Concentration of inmrance rirk

Substantially all of the Group's underwriting activities ate carried out in the United Arab Emirates,

In commeon with other insurance companies, in order to minimise financial exposure arising from large insurance
claims, the Group, in the normal course of business, enters into srrangement with other parties for reinsurance
purposes.

However, the Group decided to waive the reinsurance quota share treaty in motor among others for the current year
because of very less margin remains after actual loss ratio evident in Iast couple of years.

To minimise its exposure to significant losses from teinsurer insalvencies, the Group evaluates the financial condition
of its reinsurers and monitors concentrations of credit risk arising from similay grographic regions, activities or
economic charucteristics of the reinsurers. Reinsurance ceded contracts do not relieve the Group from its obligations
to policyholders. The Group remains liable to its policyholders for the pottion reinsured to the extent that any
reinsurer does not meet the obligations assumed under the reinsurance agreements,

275 Sewsitivity of underwriting profit and fosses

The contribution by the insutance operations is a loss of AED 422 million for the year ended 31 December 2024
(2023: loss of AED 139.5 million). The Group expects to increase the contribution by insurance operations to the
profitability due to the reasons mentioned below.

The Group has an overall retention level of 40% (202% 33%) and the same is mainly contrbuted by motor and
medical class of business, The Group tries to arrange appropriate excess of loss reinsurance cover to guard against
major financial impact.

The Group eamns a gross commission income of AED 119.9 million (2023: AED 31.9 million). These commissions
arise primarily from the reinsurance placements and are 4 recurring source of income.
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27. Insurance risk {continued)

Sensitivity

The ability for incurred claims is sensitive to the key assumptions in the table below. It has not been possible o
quantify the sensitvity of ceritain assumptions such as legiskitive changes or uncertainty in the estimation process. The

following sensitivity analysis shows the impact on gross and net lisbilides, net profit and equity for reasonably possible
movements in key assumptions with all other assumptions held constant.

The correlation of assumptions will have a significant effect in determining the ultimate impacts, but to demonstrate
the impact due to changes in esch assumption, assumptions had to be changed on an individual basis. It should be
noted that movements in these assumptions are non-finear. The method used for deriving sensitivity information and
sigmificant assumptions did not change from the previous year.

Impacton Impact on Impact on Impact on

net profit net profit equity equity net
Change in gross of net of grose af of
2024 assumpdons  reineurance  reinsurance  reinsurance  reinsurance
AED AED AED AED
Liability for Incurmred claims +10% (83,616,940)  (34,153,257)  (83,616,940)  (34,153,257)
Risk adjustment +10% (2,326,857) (831,661)  (2,326,857) (B31,661)
Discount rate +1% 4,679,482 2,280,079 4,679,482 2,280,079
Liability for Incurred claims -10% 83,591,209 34,280,726 83,591,200 34,280,726
Risk adjustment -10%% 2,326,857 831,661 2,326,857 831,661
Discount rate -1% (4,796,456)  (2,329,973) (4,796,456) (2,329,973)
2023
Liability for Incurred claims +10%% (66,085330)  (26,291,424)  (66,085330) (26,291 424)
Risk adjustment +10% 1,927,118 682,157 1,927,118 682,157
Discount rate +1% 3,450,699 1,535,645 3,450,690 1,535,645
Liability for Incurred claims -10% 66,068,943 26,275,037 66,068,943 26,275,037
Risk adjustment -10% {1,927,118) (682,157} (1,927,118 (682,15T)
Discount mte -1% (3,530,1200 (1,783,465) (3,330,120 (1,783,465)

28. Capital dsk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital, which the Group considers to be the equity as shown in the consolidated

statement of financial position, are:

* o comply with the insurance capital requirements required by UAE Federal Law No. (48) of 2023, concemning
Financial Regulations of Insurance Companies issued by the Central Bank of United Arab Emirates and regulation of
its operations;

® to protect its policyholders’ interess;
to safeguard the Group’s shility to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other smkeholders; and

* 1o provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing insurance contracts commensurately with the level of rsk.

In UAE., Insurance Companies register of the Central Bank of the UAE. ("CBUAE") specifies the minimum
amount and type of capital that must be held by the Group in addition to its insurance liabilities. The minimum
required capital (presented in the table below) must be maintained at all tmes throughout the year.
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28,  Capital sk management (continued)
The mble below summarises the mmimum required capital of the Group and the total capital held.

2024 23
AED AED
Total capital held 250,000,000 250,000,000
Minimum tegulatory capital 100,000,000 100,000,000

The Insurance Companies tegister of the Central Bank of the UAE, ("CBUAE") has issued resolution No. 42 for
2009 setting the minimum subscribed or paid up capital of AED 100 million for establishing insurance firms and
AED 250 million for reinsurance firtns. "The resolution also stipulates that at least 75 percent of the capital of the
insurance companics cstablished in the UAE should be owned by UAE or GCC national individuals or corporate
bodies.

The table below summatises the minimom requited capital of the Group and the total capital held:

2024 2023

AED AED
Minimium Capital Requitement (MCR) 100,000,000 100,000,000
Solvency Capital Requirernent (SCR) 306,677,859 296,743,776
Minimum Guasantee Fund (MGF) 151,345,709 101,603,404
Basic Own Funds 100,000,000 100,000, 000
Ancillary Own Funds 40,937,121 63,769,523
MCR Solvency Margin — Surplm - -
SCR Solvency Margin — (186,209,299) (164,859,015
MGF Solvency Margin - {Dcﬂtil}.-" surplus (30,877,149) 30,281,268

As of 31 December 2024, the Group has a deficit in the Solvency Margin Requirements and Minimum Guarantee
Fund Requirements as stipulated by the Central Bank of the UAE. by an amount of AED 186,209,299 and AED
30,877,149 respectively, The Group’s ability to comply with the solvency requirements depends on implementing an
effective business plan.

28.1  Gearing raffo

The Group revicws the capital structure on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the Group considers the cost
of capital, and the risks associated with capital.

The gearing ratio at the year-end was as follows;

2024 2023

AED AED

Debt (i) 300,075,193 278,982,938
Bank balances and cash (i) (434,285,139) {325,730,998)
(134,209,946) {46,748,060)

Equity (i1} 456,471,240 496,551,620
Net debt to equity rato (0.29) (0.09)
Gross debt to equity ratio 0.66 0.56

[ Debt is defined as bank borrowings (note 15)

(i) Bank balances and cash includes statutory deposit (note 8 & 11).

(i} Equ.!ty comprises of capital, reserves, cumulative changes in fair value and (accumulated losses)/ retained
earnings.
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29, Financial instruments

The Group is exposed to a range of financial risks through its financial assets, financial Labilities, reinsurance assets
and insurance lighilities. In particolar, the key financial tisk is that in the long-term its investment proceeds are not
sufficient to fund the obligations arsing from its insurance and investment contracts. The most importnt components
of this financial risk are interest rate risk, equity price risk, foreign currency risk and credit risle

291 Material accounting policies

Details of the material accounting policies and methods adopted, including the eriteria for recogaition, the basis of
mieasurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recopnised, in respect of each class of financial asset,
financial lability and equity instrument are disclosed in Note 3 to the consolidated fnancial statements.

292  Caregores of financial instruments

31 December 2024
Amortised cost FVTOCI Total
AED AED AED
Financial assets
Financial assets carried at FV'TOCI - 56,414,041 56,414,041
Statutory deposits 10,0040, 000 - 10,000,000
Other receivables (excluding prepayments) 23,697,192 - 23,697,192
Cach at banks 424,063,855 - 424,063,855
Total financial assets 457,761,047 56,414,041 514,175,088
At amordsed
coRt
AED
Financial liabilities
Bank borrowings 300,075,193
Other payables 35,992 622
Total financial linbilities 336,067,815
31 December 2023
Amortised cost FVTOC] Total
AED AED AED
Financial asscts
Financial assets carried at FVTOCI . 59,567,189 59,567,189
Smtutory deposits 103,000,000 = 10,000,000
Other receivables 21,387 258 - 21,887,258
Cash at banks 315,624 898 - 315,624,898
Total finencial assets 347,512,156 50.567,189 407,079,345

g
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29, Financial instrumente (continued)
202  Caregories of financial instruments (continued)

Ar amortised
COst
AED

Financial liahilities
Bank horrowings 278982938
Other payables 34,166,833
Totul financial liahilities 313,149771

203  Fafr value measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asser or paid to transfer a lability in an oederdy transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. As such, differences can arise between book values and the Fuir
value estimates. Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Group is a going concern without
any intention o requirement to materially cureail the seale of its operaton or o undertake o transaction on adverse
[Erms.

293,17 Fair vaive of finawcial instromwts carmed af amortised cost

t considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liahilities recognised at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

2032 Valuation technigues and asssompiions apyplied for the parposs of measuring farr nalwe

The fair values of financial and non-financial assets and financial lisbilides are determined using similar valuation
techniques and assumptions ae used in the annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2023,

29.3.3  Fair valie measurements recopnise in the sonsolidoted stotenent of financial position

Some of the Group's financial assets are mensured at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The following mble gives
information about how the fair values of these financial assets are determined:

Financial Fair value as at Retationship of
assets 31 December 31 December Valuation Significant  unobservable
2024 2023  Fairvalue  techniques and  unobservable  inputs to fair
AED AED hierarchy key inputs input value
Quoted  equity 52,935,943 56,089,091 Level |  Quoted bid prices Mone NiA
sccuritics in an acove macker.
Unquoted 3,475,098 3478098 Level 3 Net asscts Metassers  Higher the net
cquity securities valuation method walue assers, value of
the investees,
higher the Fair
valoe:

56,414,041 59,567,180
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29, Financial instruments (continued)
29.3  Fair value measurements (continued)
29.3.3  Fair value measnrements recoppised in the conrolidated tatewent of finaucal position (contined)

The following table provides an analysis of financial assets and non-financial assets that are measured subsequent to
initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable:

* Level1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markers for identical
assets or linhilites;

&  Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are oburervable for the asser or lability, either directdy (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);
and

*  Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that ar¢ not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

31 December 2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AED AED AED AED
Financial assets at FVTOCI
Quoted equities 52,935,943 - - 52,935,943
Unguoted equities - - 3,478,008 3,478,098
Investment properties - - 849,055,989 849,055,989
52,935,943 - 852,534,087 905,470,030
31 December 2023
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AED AED AED AED
Financial assets at FVTOCIT
Quoted equitics 56,089,091 - - 56,089,001
Unqguoted equities & = 3478008 3,478,098
lnvestment properties - B47.850,000 847 850,000

56,089,091 - 851328008 907417189

Reconciliation of F1 TOCT investments, movements i Jevel 3 for assets measnred at fair valwe:
Opening  Additions/ Change in Closing

balance Dispoaal fair value balance
31 December 2024 AED AED AED AED
Investment properties 847,850,000 4,205,989 (3,000,000) 849,055,989
Finaissial assefs at FITOC]
Unquoted equities 3,478,098 - - 3,478,098
31 December 2023
Investment propertics H42 562 50K 2 546,156 2741 344 B4T7 850,000
Fenancial azrets at FITOCT
Unguoted equities 3,478,008 - - 3,478,008

There were no transfers between the levels during the year.
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29, Financial instruments (continued)

294  Market risk

The Group's sctivities expose it primarily to the financial risks of chanpes in foreign currency exchange rates and
interest rates.

Market risk exposares are megsured using sensitivity analysis. There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to
market risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the nsk.

295  Foreign currency risk

There are no significant exchange rate risks as substantially all financial assets and financial liabilities are denominated
in Arab Emirates Dithams, other G.C.C. currencies or US Doallats 1o which the Dirham is pegged.

296  Credit risk

Credit tisk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligadons resulting in financial loss w
the Group,

The Group has adopted 2 policy of dealing with creditworthy counterparties #s a méans of mitigating the risk of
financial loss from defauls The Gtoup's exposute and the eredit ratings of its counterparties are continuously
monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties. Credit
exposare is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by Management anmually.

Reinsurance is used to manage insurance risl. This does not, however, discharge the Group’s liability as primary insurer.
1f a reinsurer fails to pay a claim for any reason, the Group remains liable for the payment to the policyholder. The
creditworthiness of reinsurers is considered on an annual basis by reviewing their financial strength prior 1o finalisation
of any contract.

The Group maintains records of the payment history for significant contract holders with whom it conducts regular
business. The exposure to individusl counterparties is also managed by other mechanisms, such as the nght of offset
where counterparties are both debtors and creditors of the Group. Management information reported to the Group
includes details of provisions for impaitment on insurance reccivables and subsequent write-offs, Exposures to
individual policyholders and groups of policyholdets are collected within the ongoing monitoring of the controls.
Where thers exists significant exposure to individual policyholders, or homogenous proups of policyholders, a fnancial
analysis equivalent to that conducted for reinsurers is carried out by the Group.

Insurance receivables consist of a lagge number of customers, spread dcross diverse industries and geographical areas,
Ongoing credit evaluntion is performed on the financial condition of insurance receivable.

For insurance receivables, the Group has appbed the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at
lifetime ECL. The Group determines the expected credit losses on these items by using 2 provision matrix, estimated
based on historical credit loss expedence based on the past due smatus of the debtors, adjusted as appropnate to reflect
current conditions and estimates of future economic conditions. Accordingly, the credit risk profile of these assets is
presented based on their past due status in terms of the provision matrix. Notes 3.14 indude further details on the
expected credir loss for these assets respectively.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposute spread over a large number of counterparties
and customers. The Group defines counterparties as having similar characteristics if they are related endtes, The
credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies,

The carrying amount of financial assets tecorded in the consolidated financial statements, which s net of
impairment |osses, represents the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk.

T4

79



Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.S.C. and its Subsidiary

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

2, Financial instruments (continued)

296  Credit risk {continued)

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the consolidated statement

of financial position:
2024 2023
AED AED
Financial assets carried at FVTOCT 56,414,041 59,567,189
Statutary deposits 10,000,000 10,000,000
Reinsurince contract assats 522,194,793 422 203 950
Insoranece eontract assets - 12462 413
Orther receivables 23,697,192 21,887,258
Cash at banks 424,063,855 315,624 898
Total credit risk exposure 1,036,369,881 841,745,708

At the end of the reporting year, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit rsk, from insurance receivables situated

outside the U AE. were a5 follows:
2024 2023
AED AED
Inside UAE 440,904,438 379616 818
Outside UAE 45,589,623 16,482,577

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of counterparties
and customers. The Group defines counterparties as having similar characteristics if they are relatedenniges. The credit
nsk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by internaional
credit-rmting agencies,

The table below presents an analysis of bank balances and fixed deposts by rating agency designation at the end of the

reporting year based on Moody’s mting or its equivalent for the main banking relationship:

2024 2023

AED AED

A 99,398,452 64,521,941
BBB 324,643,972 251,081,526
Untated 21,431 21,431
424,063,855 315,624,898
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

2, Financial instruments {continued)

29.7  Liquidity rsk

Ultimate respongibility for beuidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework fot the management of the Group’s short, mediom and long-term
funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves
by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and

liahilites.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group's financial instruments. The contracrual maturities
of the financial instruments have been determined on the basis of the remaining period at the reporting date to the
contractudl maturity date. The maturity profile s monitored by management to ensure adequate liquidity is
maintsined. The maturity profile of the financial assets and financial labilides at the reporting date based on
contractual repayment arrangements was as follows:

Within 1 year o More than
1 year 5 years 5 years Total
AED AED AED AED
31 December 2024
Financial assets
Financial assets carried at FVTOCI - 56,414,041 - 56,414,041
Statutory deposits - - 10,000,000 10,000,000
Cash at banks 424,063,855 - - 424,063,855
Cither recedvables 23,697,192 - - 23,697,192
447,761,047 56,414,041 10,000,000 514,175,088
Financial Babilites :
Bank barrowings 213,409,193 86,666,000 - 300,075,193
Other payables 35,992,622 - - 35,992,622
249 401,815 86,666,000 - 336,067,815
31 December 2023
Financial assets
Financial assers earred at FVTOCI - 59,567,189 - 59,567,189
Statutory deposits - - 10,000,000 10,000,000
Cash at banks 315,624,808 - - 315624898
Oither receivables 21,887 254 - - 21,887,258
337,512,156 59,567,189 10,000,000 407,079,345
Financial liabilities
Bank borrowings 181,103,738 o7 879,200 - 278982938
Other payables 34,166,833 - - 34,166,833
215270571 97,879,200 - 313,149771
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Motes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

29, Financial instruments (continued)

29.8  Interest disk

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk relates to its bank deposits and bank borrowings. During the year, bank
deposits cartied interest at the rage of 3.89% to 5.75% per annum {2023 3% to 5.80% per annum). Bank loans
carried an interest rate in the range from CSAF plus 0.5% to 2.5% plus 3 months EIBOR per annum (2023: 0.5% 1o
2.5% 1o plus three months EIBOR. per annum).

If interest cates had been 50 basis points lower throughout the year and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2024 and equity as at 31 December 2024 would increase by AED
1,489,780 (2023: increase by AED 1,381,329).

The Groop generally tdes to minimise the interest tate risk by closely monitoring the market interest rates and
investing in those financial assets in which such risk Is expected to be minimal,

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk on:

(1) Tiability for incutred claims; and
{if) Asset for incurred claims.

299 Egquity price risk
298,81 Semsitivity anadysis

At the end of the reporting period, if the equity prices are 10% higher/lower as per the assumptions mentioned
below and all the other varables were hekd constant, the Group's other comprehensive income and equity would
have increased/decreased by AED 5.6 million (2023: AED 5.9 million),

29.9.2 Method and asswmptions for sensitivity awalysiz
. The sensitivity analysis has been done based on the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date.

® At the end of the reporting perind, if equity prices are 10% higher/lower on the market value uniformly for
all equities while all other variables are held constant, the impact on consolidated statement of profit or loss
and equity has been shown above,

* A 10% change in equity prices has been used to give a tealistic assessment as a pliusible event.
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Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.S.C. and its Subsidiary

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

31 Gross written premiums

Details relating to gross written premium ate disclosed below to comply with the requirements of CBUAE and are not
calculated as per the requirements of IFRS 17,

31 December 2024

Direct written premiums

Assumed business
Foreygn

Local

Total assumed business
Gross written preminms

31 December 2023

Direct written premiums

Assumed business
Forelgn

Local

Total assumed business
Gross written premiums

All types of

Life Fund Medical  Property & Business
Insurance Accumulation Insurance Liability Combined
AED AED AED AED AED
17,564,861 - 1,097,667,835 417,120,374 1,532,353,070
- - 7,909,552 7,909,552

- - - 7,909,552 7,909,552
17,564,861 -  1,097,667,835 425,029,926 1,540,262,622
All types of

Life Fund Medical Properny & Business
Insurance Accumulation Insurance Liability  Combined
AED AED AED AED AED
12,174,789 - B44837388 358,743,607 1,215,755,784
- - 8,000,110 8,000,110

- - - 8,000,110 8,000,110
12,174,789 - B44837388 366,743,717 1,223,755,804

32 Dividend end Director’s remuneration

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 26 February 2025 has not proposed any dividend in respect of the year ended
December 31, 2024 (2023 AED nil) for approval of the members at the Annual General Meetng, Further, Shareholders
already approved the Board of Directors remuncration of AED 1,800,000 for 2023 during the year (2022: AED 1,050,000).

33, Corporate tax

Consolidated statement of profit or loss

Current tax

Consolidated statement of other comprehensive income

Current tax
Deferred tax

2023

Dluring the year, no current tax expense is recognised due to taxable losses in the current period.
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Al Buhaira National Insurance Company P.§8.C. and its Subsidiary

Motes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

33 Corporate tax {continued)

Relationship berween tax expense and accounting profic;

2024 2053
AED AED

Loss before taxation {36,927,232) -
Tax (@ 9% -

The Group have taxable losses and accordingly is ebigible for deferred tax credit. However, management of the Group has
decided not 1o record the same on a prudent basls.

M. Approval of the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements wete apptoved by the Board of Directors and authonzed for issue on
235 March 2025

35, Subsequent events

Therz have been no events subsequent to the consolidated stacement of fnancial position date that would significantly
affect the amounts reporied in the consclidated financial statements for the yesr ended 31 December 2024
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dl~FBubaira Pational Ingurance Co.

1. Statement on the Procedures Taken to Complete the Corporate Governance System During 2024, and Its

Implementation

Based on the applicable legal and regulatory references, Al Buhaira National Insurance Company has implemented

several measures aimed at improving its corporate governance system and enhancing compliance with best practices.

These measures include:

(A) Enhancing Corporate Governance

Board Commitment to Corporate Governance: The Board of Directors held seven meetings during the year, where
strategic and operational issues were discussed, and new policies were adopted to ensure compliance with

regulatory systems.

Strengthening the Role of Committees Emanating from the Board of Directors: The Audit Committee held nine
meetings, while the Risk Committee held four meetings to monitor the company's performance and ensure

effective control over operational and financial activities.

Restructuring Committees and Enhancing Independence: Adjustments were made to the committee structures to
ensure complete separation between the tasks of the Audit Committee and the Risk Committee, thereby

enhancing decision-making governance within the company.

(B) Compliance and Transparency

Enhancing Disclosure and Transparency: The company is committed to the regular disclosure of financial and
operational data in accordance with regulatory standards, with the publication of financial reports to ensure that

shareholders and stakeholders have access to important information.

Appointing a Company-wide Compliance Manager: To ensure full compliance with regulatory requirements, a
compliance manager was appointed to oversee the implementation of regulatory policies and submit periodic

reports to the Board of Directors.

Improving Communication Channels with Shareholders: By regularly publishing financial reports and providing
opportunities for active participation in general assemblies, the company aims to enhance confidence in corporate

governance.

(C) Internal Control and Risk Management

Enhancing Risk Management Systems: The internal control system has been updated, and a Risk Management

manager has been appointed to establish mechanisms for identifying, assessing, and mitigating risks effectively.

Adopting an Updated Governance Framework: This framework includes clear policies and procedures governing
the Board of Directors, committees, and executive management, ensuring the effectiveness of oversight and

supervision,

Corporate Governance —ABNIC Page 2 of 33
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* Developing Internal Audit Mechanisms: To ensure adherence to operational procedures, evaluate the

effectiveness of internal controls, and submit periodic reports to executive management and the Board of

Directors.

(D) Legal References for Governance Compliance

Al Buhaira National Insurance Co. relied on the following legal references in preparing this report and developing
its governance system:

Decision No. (3/R.M) of 2020 by the Chairman of the Securities and Commodities Authority.

Decision No. (02/R.M) of 2024 by the Chairman of the Securities and Commodities Authority regarding the
Corporate Governance Guide for Public Shareholding Companies.

Federal Decree-Law No. (48) of 2023 on the Regulation of Insurance Business.

Federal Decree-Law No. (32) of 2021 concerning commercial companies.

Circular No. (24/2022) from the Central Bank of the United Arab Emirates regarding the governance of
insurance companies.

(E) Approved Manuals and Policies

As part of its commitment to best governance practices, the company has adopted several regulatory policies and
procedures, including:

Corporate Governance Framework.

Charters of Board Committees (including Audit, Risk, Nomination and Remuneration, and Investment
Committees).

Conflict of Interest Policy.

Code of Professional and Ethical Conduct
Fair Treatment of Policyholders Policy
Insurance Fraud Prevention Policy
Complaints and Suggestions Handling Guide

Additional regulatory frameworks supporting compliance and corporate governance

(F) Results and Future Outlook

These measures and procedures reflect Al Buhaira National Insurance Company's commitment to applying the

highest standards of corporate governance, enhancing transparency and internal control, and ensuring compliance

with all regulatory requirements. The company also reaffirms its ongoing commitment to protecting the rights of

shareholders and stakeholders and to bolstering market confidence in its operations and activities.

Corporate Governance ~ABNIC Page 3 of 33
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2. Transactions of the Board Members in Securities During 2024

The company adheres to Article (14) of the Board of Directors of the Securities and Commodities Authority’s Decision
No. (2) of 2001 regarding the trading, settlement, transfer of ownership, and custody of securities. The transactions

of the Board of Directors and their first-degree relatives are as follows:

Sheikh Faisal bin Khalid bin Sultan Chairman 31,354,236 NA NA

Al-Qasimi

Sheikh Abdullah bin Mohamed Ali Vice 33,671,426 NA NA
Al Thani Chairman

Sheikh Khalid bin Abdullah bin Member 446,429 NA NA

Sultan Al-Qasimi

Sheikh Ahmad Abdulla Member NA NA NA
Mohammed Ali Al Thani

Sheikh Saoud Nasser Rashid Member NA NA NA
Abdulaziz Al Moalla

Mr. Rashid Ali Rashid Dimas Al- Member 8,758,150 NA NA
Suwaidi

Mr. Salem Abdulla Salem Al Member 47,262,150 NA NA
Hosani

Mr. Abdullah Salem Abdullah Al Son 4,000,000 NA NA
Hosani

Mr. Abdulla Mohamed Salih Al Member NA NA NA
Zarooni

Miss. Noura Mahmoud Mohamed Member NA NA NA

Al Mahmoud Al Ali

Corporate Governance ~ABNIC Page 4 of 33
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3. Board Composition:

e The current Board of Directors consists of nine members, and the Board appoints from among its members
a Chairman and a Vice-Chairman. The term of membership on the Board is three years from the date of
commencement of the Board's powers, and a member may be re-elected. The Vice-Chairman acts as

Chairman in his absence.
* All members of the Board are non-executive.

(A) Chairman and members of the board of directors:

Chairman Non- Non-
independent executive

Sheikh Abdullah bin Mohamed Ali Al Thani Vice Chairman, Non- Non-
independent executive

Sheikh Khalid bin Abdullah bin Sultan Al-Qasimi Board Member Non- Non-
independent executive

Sheikh Ahmad Abdulla Mohammed Ali Al Thani Board Member Independent Non-
executive

Sheikh Saoud Nasser Rashid Abdulaziz Al Moalla Board Member Independent Non-
executive

Mr. Rashid Ali Rashid Dimas Al-Suwaidi Board Member Non Non-
independent executive

Mr. Salem Abdulla Salem Al Hosani Board Member Non Non-
independent executive

Mr. Abdulla Mohamed Salih Al Zarooni Board Member Independent Non-
executive

Miss. Noura Mahmoud Mohamed Al Mahmoud Board Member Independent Non-
Al Ali executive
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(B)Experience and qualifications of the members of the Board of Directors

Sheikh Faisal bin Khalid bin
Sultan Al-Qasimi

Chairman of Al-Qassimi Group in Sharjah

Chairman of Travel Agents Society.

(Former) Board Member of invest Bank.

Chairman of Al-Buhairah National Insurance Co.

(Former) President of Amiri Court in Sharjah.

(Former) Chief Commander of Amiri Guard in Sharjah
(Former) President of Sharjah Ruler’s Office.

(Former) Chairman of Emirates Insurance Society.
(Former) Executive Council Board Member of Insurance
and Reinsurance Coordinating Body.

(Former) Member of the Board of Directors of the
Insurance Authority.

BA Degree in
Business
Administration
from California

State University

Since the year
1986.

Sheikh Abdullah bin
Mohamed Ali Al Thani

Chairman of Air Arabia in Sharjah
Chairman of Sharjah Golf & Shooting Club
(Former) Head of Civil Aviation in Sharjah

Vice Chairman of Al-Buhaira National Insurance Company.

MA Degree in
Business
Administration
from USA

Since the year
1995

Sheikh Khalid bin Abdullah

Member of the executive council - Sharjah

Chairman of the Department of Ports, Customs and Free

B.Sc. in Industrial

Since the year

- Board Member of Al Buhaira National Insurance
Company.

bin Sultan Al-Qasimi Engineering 2004

Zones Environment from

Board Member of Al-Buhaira National Insurance Company. | arizona University
Sheikh Ahmad Abdulla - Member of the board of directors of Sharjah Air Bachelor of 2022
Mohammed Ali Al Thani Navigation Services Co. LTD (SASCO). International

- (Former) Chairman of the board of directors of Business

Sharjah club.

- Board member of Al Buhaira National Insurance Co.
Sheikh Saoud Nasser Rashid - General Manager of Umm Al Quwain General Bachelor of 2022
Abdulaziz Al Moalla Investment Company. Business

Cormporate Governance ~ABNIC
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- Board Member of the Kuwaiti Emirati Holding Co.
- (Former) Board Member of Sharjah Insurance

Company

Administration —
UK

MSc Human
Resources — UK

Mr. Rashid Ali Rashid Dimas
Al-Suwaidi

Owner & Chairman of The Board of Directors of Deemas
Contracting, Trading, Ready Mix Concrete and Brick
Company.

General Manager & Commissioner of The Friends of
Patients Committee - Sharjah

Former Member of The Board of Arbitrators of Sharjah
Courts.

{Former) Member of The Board of Contractors Association
Board Member of Al-Buhaira National Insurance Company
Former Member of The Federal National Council

Former Board Member of The Emirates Insurance
Association

Founder And Former Board Member of Federal
Commercial Bank (Currently ADCB)

Former Member of The Municipal Council of Sharjah
Municipality

Former Board Member of Sharjah Chamber of Commerce
& Industry.

Former Chairman of the parents & teachers council -
Sharjah

Vice president of the Zakat Fund — Abu Dhabi.

GSCE

Since the year
1978

Mr. Salem Abdulla Salem Al

Hosani

- Vice Chairman Medical Projects Co.

- Chairman Umm Al Quwain General Investment co.

- Former Shuaa Capital Co.

- Former Al Ittehad Insurance co.

- Former Union Arab Bank.

- Former National Bank of Umm Al Quwain.

- Former Gulf Cement Co.

- Former Sharjah Insurance co.

- Former Ras Al Khaimah co. for manufacturing of white
cement and construction materials.

- Chairman of the board of directors of Al Salem Co.
LTD.

Bachelor of
Business

Administration

Beirut Arab
University

2022
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- Chairman of the board of directors of the Coast

Centre for shares.

- Owner of the Coast Real Estate Centre.

- Former Vice Chairman of the board of directors of
Khatif Holding Co. (Kuwait).

- Board Member of Al Buhaira National Insurance Co.

Mr. Abdulla Mohamed Salih | - Board of directors’ member of National Bank of Umm Al

Al Zarooni

Bachelor of 2022

Quwain. Accounting — UAE

- Board member of Marsa Um Al Quwain Co.

CPA Washingt
- Former Deputy Chief Executive Officer of Abu Dhabi ety

National Bank. L
- Board of directors’ member of Al Buhaira National
Insurance Co.
Miss. Noura Mahmoud | - (Former) Project Manager — Sharjah Electricity & Water Bachelor’s degree 2022

Mohamed Al Mahmoud Al Authority (Government Projects)

Ali - Board Member of Al-Buhairah National Insurance Co.

in management
information

systems

(C) Positions of Members of the Board of Directors in Other Public Joint-Stock Companies

Sheikh Faisal bin Khalid bin Sultan Al-Qasimi None
Sheikh Abdullah bin Mohamed Ali Al Thani Chairman of Air Arabia in Sharjah
Sheikh Khalid bin Abdullah bin Sultan Al-Qasimi None
Sheikh Ahmad Abdulla Mohammed Ali Al Thani None

Member of the Board of Directors of the Kuwaiti Emirati Holding

Sheikh Saoud Nasser Rashid Abdulaziz Al Moalla Company (listed in Kuwait)

Mr. Rashid Ali Rashid Dimas Al-Suwaidi None

- - ~Medi = -
Mr. Salem Abdulla Salem Al Hosani Vice Chairman of the Board edical Projects Company

Chairman of the Board - Umm Al Quwain General Investment co.

Corporate Governance —ABNIC Page 8 of 33



Al~Bubaira Rational Insurance Co. CHANED QP h o X 3 e S

Mr. Abdulla Mohamed Salih Al Zarooni Board member of National Bank of Umm Al Quwain.

Miss. Noura Mahmoud Mohamed Al Mahmoud Al Ali None

(D) Positions Held in Other Important Regulatory, Governmental, or Commercial Positions

Sheikh Faisal bin Khalid Suitan Al-Qasimi None

Sheikh Abdullah bin Mohamed Ali Al Thani Chairman of Air Arabia in Sharjah

Sheikh Khalid bin Abdullah Sultan Al-Qasimi Member of the executive council - Sharjah

Chairman of the Department of Ports, Customs and Free Zones

Sheikh Ahmad Abdulla Mohammed Ali Al Thani None
Sheikh Saoud Nasser Rashid Abdulaziz Al Moalla None
Mr. Rashid Ali Rashid Dimas Al-Suwaidi None

None

Mr. Salem Abdulla Salem Al Hosani

Mr. Abdulla Mohamed Salih Al Zarooni Board member of National Bank of Umm Al Quwain.

Miss. Noura Mahmoud Mohamed Al Mahmoud Al Ali | None

(E) Statement of the percentage of female representation on the Board of Directors for 2024:

Ms. Noura Mahmoud Mohammed Al Mahmoud Al Ali was elected as an Independent Non-Executive Member of the Board
of Directors of Al Buhaira National Insurance Co. during the General Assembly held on April 21, 2022. She holds a

bachelor’s degree in management information systems.
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(F) Statement of the reasons for not nominating any female candidate for membership on the Board of Directors:

Not applicable.

(G) Statement on Remuneration, Allowances, and Fees Received by the Board of Directors:

The General Assembly of Al Buhaira National Insurance Company approved a remuneration of 200,000 AED per board

member for the year 2023, in accordance with Article (38) of the Company's Articles of Association.

(H) Process for Determining and Approving the Board Members' Remuneration:

1. Proposal of Remuneration: The Nomination and Remuneration Committee proposes the amount of remuneration
due to the board members.

2. Approval by the Board of Directors: The proposal is presented to the Board for review and recommendation.

3. Final Approval: After the Board's approval, the proposed remuneration is submitted to the General Assembly for
final approval.

(1) Details of the Board Members' Remuneration:

e For 2023: The total remuneration paid to the board members amounted to AED 1,800,000.
* Proposed for 2024: A total amount of AED 1,800,000 has been proposed as remuneration for the board

members, and this proposal will be presented to the General Assembly at its next meeting for final approval.

Important Notes:

e Board members do not receive any additional allowances for attending meetings, salaries, or other fees.

(J) Allowances for Attendance at Committee Meetings:

e Committee Chairman: Receives AED 10,000 per meeting attended.
¢ Committee Member: Receives AED 7,000 per meeting attended.

« Total Allowances for Committee Meetings: AED 202,000 for 2023 and AED 242,000 for 2024.
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(K) Statement detailing the allowances for attending the sessions of board-affiliated committees held by Board
members in 2024

1 Miss. Noura Mahmoud udit Committee 7,000 1
Mohamed Al Mahmoud Al
Ali

2 Mr. Abdulla Mohamed Audit Committee 80,000 8
Salih Al Zarooni

3 Mr. Abdulla Mohamed Nomination and 7,000 1
Salih Al Zarooni Remuneration

Committee

4 Mr. Abdulla Mohamed Risk Committee 7,000 1
Salih Al Zarooni

5 Mr. Ghassan Al Saheb Audit Committee 56,000 8

6 Sheikh Ahmad Abdulla Risk Committee 40,000 4
Mohammed Ali Al Thani

7 Sheikh Ahmad Abdulla Audit Committee 14,000 2
Mohammed Ali Al Thani

8 Sheikh Saoud Nasser Nomination and 10,000 1
Rashid Abdulaziz Al Moalla Remuneration

Committee

9 Sheikh Saoud Nasser Risk Committee 21,000 3

Rashid Abdulaziz Al Moalla

(L)Board Meetings Held During the Fiscal Year 2024

The number of board meetings held during the fiscal year 2024, including the dates on which they were convened
and the number of times all members attended in person, along with the names of members who attended by
proxy:

The Board of Directors of Al-Buhaira National Insurance Company held seven (7) meetings during the fiscal year
2024,
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1 0 5 12/02/2024 | e Sheikh Abdullah bin Mohamed Ali Al Thani

e Sheikh Ahmad Abdulla Mohammed Ali Al Thani
e  Mr. Rashid Ali Rashid Dimas Al-Suwaidi

e Mr. Salem Abdullah Salem Al Hosani

2 0 7 28/03/2024 | o Sheikh Abdullah bin Mohamed Ali Al Thani
Mr. Rashid Ali Rashid Dimas Al-Suwaidi

3 1 5 15/05/2024 Sheikh Khalid bin Abdullah Sultan Al-Qasimi
Sheikh Ahmad Abdulla Mohammed Ali Al Thani
Mr. Rashid Ali Rashid Dimas Al-Suwaidi

Mr. Salem Abdullah Salem Al Hosani

4 1 5 12/08/2024 Sheikh Faisal bin Khalid Sultan Al-Qasimi
Sheikh Abdullah bin Mohamed Ali Al Thani
Sheikh Ahmad Abdulla Mohammed Ali Al Thani

Mr. Salem Abdullah Salem Al Hosani

* e @& @

Sheikh Ahmad Abdulla Mohammed Ali Al Thani

5 0 8 30/10/2024

Sheikh Abdullah bin Mohamed Ali Al Thani
Sheikh Ahmad Abdulla Mohammed Ali Al Thani
Mr. Rashid Ali Rashid Dimas Al-Suwaidi

Mr. Abdullah Mohammed Salih Al Zarooni

6 0 5 13/11/2024

7 0 6 25/12/2024 | e Sheikh Abdullah bin Mohamed Ali Al Thani
e Sheikh Ahmad Abdulla Mohammed Ali Al Thani
e  Mr. Rashid Ali Rashid Dimas Al-Suwaidi

(M) Board Resolutions Passed in 2024

Number of Board Decisions Passed by Circulation during the Fiscal Year 2024, along with their Dates of Issuance:
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ltemNo. | Board Resolution Passed Resolution Date
1 Passed Resolution No. (1) for the year 2024 15 May 2024
2 Passed Resolution No. (2) for the year 2024 4 December 2024

4. Board Committees

(A) Audit Committee

Declaration:

The Audit Committee Chairman, Mr. Abdullah Mohammed Salih Al Zarooni, confirms his responsibility for the
committee’s system within the company, his review of its working mechanism, and his assurance of its effectiveness.

Members:
e Mr. Abdullah Mohammed Salih Al Zarooni — Chairman (Independent)
¢ Miss. Noura Mahmoud Mohamed Al Mahmoud Al Ali — Committee Member (Independent)

e Mr. Ghassan Al Saheb — Committee Member (From outside the company)

Note: In the last quarter of 2024, the committee was restructured with Sheikh Ahmad Abdulla Mohammed Ali Al
Thani being replaced by Miss Noura Mahmoud Al Ali.

Tasks of the Audit Committee:

e Financial Audit and Governance: Monitor the integrity of financial data and ensure compliance with accounting
standards, including disclosure and periodic reports.

e Supervision of the External Auditor: Follow up on the independence of the external auditor and discuss the
scope and effectiveness of the audit, in addition to reviewing the auditor’s work plan and inquiries.

* Internal Control and Risk Management: Review financial control and risk systems, ensure the effectiveness of
internal control, and coordinate between internal and external auditors.

* Cooperation with Management and the Board of Directors: Coordinate with executive management and the
Board of Directors on accounting and financial matters, ensuring that inquiries are answered.

e Recommendations and Reports: Provide recommendations to the Board of Directors on corrective actions when

needed, ensuring compliance with applicable rules and law

e Audit Committee Meetings
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The Audit Committee held nine meetings during the year 2024 on the following dates:

Audit Committee Meeting Attendance Record

r.AbuIa T

Mohamed
Salih Al
Zarooni
Sheikh
Ahmad
Abdulla Member - - - 1 - - 1
Mohammed
Ali Al Thani
Mr.
Ghassan Al Member 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Saheb

Chairman 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Audit Committee Attendance Record (New Committee)

Mr. Abdulla Mohamed Salih Al Zarooni Chairman 1
Miss. Noura Mahmoud Mohamed Al Member 1
Mahmoud Al Ali

Mr. Ghassan Al Saheb Member 1

Annual Audit Committee report:

The audit committee has performed the tasks below:

e Reviewed all significant matters in the quarterly and year-end financial statements with senior management and
the auditors and recommend to the Board of Directors for their approval. Oversaw the compliance with the
regulatory requirements and the financial reporting standards. Conducted periodic review of the Company’s

financial and accounting policies & procedures.
e Reviewed significant accounting and reporting issues, including:

1. Changes in accounting policies (if any).
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Ongoing financial and other concerns.

Significant audit adjustments.

Compliance with accounting criteria set by SCA.

Adherence to listing and disclosure rules and other financial reporting legal requirements.
Complex or unusual transactions or highly judgmental areas.

Making sure that the company’s policies, procedures, and control systems are reviewed and
updated annually.

N U AWN

* Reviewed and approved the mission and action plan of the external auditor and any material inquiries raised by
the auditor in respect of accounting records, financial accounts or controls, and their response.

® Discussed with the external auditor any audit issues or difficulties encountered during the audit and assess
management’s response relating to:

1. Restrictions on the scope of the external auditor activities.

2. Restrictions on the external auditor’s access to requested materials.

3. Significant disagreements with the Management.

4. Any unadjusted material audit differences for financial statements that the external auditor noted or
proposed.

5. Coordinated with the Board of Directors, Executive Management and the AGM-Finance to meet with the
External Auditors at each reporting period.

6. Reviewed and approved plans, budget, staffing and organizational structure of the Internal Audit function
and related Internal Audit activities.

* Reviewed and made recommendations for the appointment of external auditors to the Board of Directors, their
remuneration and any questions relating to their resignation or removal.

* Reviewed the effectiveness of Company’s risk management framework, assessment and responses to vital risk
faced by the Company.

e Reviewed all High-risk observations included in the reports submitted to the Committee by the Internal Audit
Department and the responses of Senior Managements to such reports.

¢ Evaluated the performance of the Internal Audit Department for the year.

e We had meetings separately with the Head of Internal Audit on a periodic basis to discuss any matters that the
Committee or Internal Audit believed should be discussed privately.

e Reviewed the effectiveness of Internal Audit activities and compliance with the Resolution of the Chairman of
Securities and Commodities Authority’s Board of Directors’ Decision No. (3/Chairman) of 2020 Concerning
Approval of Joint Stock Companies Governance Guide.

e Provided the Head of the Internal Audit the right of direct access to the Chairman of the Committee and the
Committee.

* Reviewed the effectiveness of Company’s Internal Control systems, including Information Systems, and
Technology Security and Control.
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e Discussed the Company’s Policies and Procedures with Senior Management to ensure their performance of
duties towards the development of Policies and Procedures.

¢ Reviewed with senior management and the Head of the Internal Audit Charter, plans, activities, staffing, and
organizational structure and related topics of the internal audit process.

® Review the management letter from the external auditors, if any, and ensure the Senior Management takes
corrective actions.

e Ensured that each Related Party Transaction is reported properly in the Company’s financial statements in
accordance with the applicable international accounting standards.

(B) Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Declaration:

The Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Sheikh Saoud Nasser Rashid Abdulaziz Al Moalla,
confirms his responsibility for the committee’s system within the company, his review of its working mechanism,
and his assurance of its effectiveness.

Key Objectives and Responsibilities:

e The committee plays an active role in reviewing the policies for recruitment, employee retention, training, and
termination, including determining the roles and required skills for appointments at the senior management
level.

* Furthermore, the committee works to develop and implement plans and initiatives aimed at recruiting UAE
nationals and at delivering the best possible services to the company’s clients through strategic planning.

Members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

Sheikh Saoud Nasser Rashid Abdulaziz Al Moalla Committee Chairman Independent
Mr. Rashid Ali Rashid Dimas Al-Suwaidi Committee Member Non-Independent

Mr. Abdulla Mohamed Salih Al Zarooni Committee Member Independent

Responsibilities of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee;

e Ensure the continuous independence of its independent members.
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e Develop and annually review the policy for granting bonuses, benefits, incentives, and salaries to Board
members and employees; the committee also verifies that the remuneration provided to the company’s senior
executive management is reasonable and commensurate with performance.

 Identify the company’s competency needs at the senior management and employee levels and establish the
corresponding selection criteria.

e Develop, monitor, and annually review the company’s human resources and training policy.

* Organize and follow up on the nomination procedures for Board membership in accordance with applicable laws
and regulations, pursuant to Decision No. (7/R.M) of 2016 issued by the Chairman of the Securities and
Commodities Authority’s Board regarding institutional discipline and corporate governance for public joint-stock
companies

» Review the Board’s structure and submit recommendations regarding any changes that could be implemented
for the next Board cycle.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting (2024):

Sheikh Saousser ashiAbduIaziz Al

Moalla Chairman 1
Mr. Rashid Ali Rashid Dimas Al-Suwaidi Member -
Mr. Abdulla Mohamed Salih Al Zarooni Member 1

(C) Executive Committee

Declaration:

The Executive Committee Chairman, Sheikh Khalid bin Abdullah bin Sultan Al-Qasimi, confirms his responsibility for
the committee’s system within the company, his review of its working mechanism, and his assurance of its
effectiveness.

Main Responsibilities:

Develop and implement effective strategies that align with the objectives approved by the Board of Directors,
identify opportunities and challenges, and formulate action plans to ensure sustainable growth. Additionally, the
Executive Committee is committed to applying best governance practices and complying with the regulatory
standards in the United Arab Emirates.

Members:
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e Sheikh Khalid bin Abdullah bin Sultan Al-Qasimi Chairman  Non-Independent
¢ Sheikh Ahmad Abdulla Mohammed Ali Al Thani Member  Independent
e Miss. Noura Mahmoud Mohamed Al Mahmoud Al Ali Member Independent

Note: As the Executive Committee was formed in late 2024, no meetings were held in 2024; meetings are scheduled
to commence in 2025.

(D) Investment Committee

Declaration:

The Investment Committee Chairman, Sheikh Khalid bin Abdullah Sultan Al-Qasimi, confirms his responsibility for
the committee’s system within the company, his review of its working mechanism, and his assurance of its
effectiveness.

Main Responsibilities:

Develop an investment strategy and policy to be presented to the Board of Directors for approval, and establish the
investment guidelines—including asset allocation, review and monitoring of investments, and oversight of strategic
investment activities.

Members:

» Sheikh Khalid bin Abdullah bin Sultan Al-Qasimi Chairman  Non-Independent
e Mr. Salem Abdulla Salem Al Hosani Member Non-Independent
Meeting Attendance:

The Investment Committee held one meeting during 2024:

Sheikh Khalid bin Abdullah bin Sultan Al-Qasimi Chairman 1
Mr. Salem Abdulla Salem Al Hosani Member 1

(E) Risk Committee
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Declaration:

The Risk Committee Chairman, Sheikh Ahmad Abdulla Mohammed Al Al Thani, confirms his responsibility for the
committee’s system within the company, his review of its working mechanism, and his assurance of its effectiveness.

Main Responsibilities:

The company operates a diversified portfolio across various sectors, adopting a strategy to limit risks within its
capacity while maintaining the benefits of diversification. The risk strategy protects policyholders, enhances capital
adequacy, and supports the company’s objectives by setting appropriate risk limits and selecting risks based on

precise criteria.

Members:

e Sheikh Ahmad Abdulla Mohammed Ali Al Thani
e Sheikh Saoud Nasser Rashid Abdulaziz Al Moalla

e  Mr. Amjad Naseif

Chairman Independent

Member Independent

Member From outside the company

Note: The committee was restructured, and Mr. Abdulla Mohamed Salih Al Zarooni was replaced by Mr. Amjad

Naseif.

Risk Committee Meeting Attendance Record:

The Risk Committee held four meetings during 2024:

Sheikh Ahmad Abdulla Mohammed Ali Al Thani Chairman 1
Sheikh Saoud Nasser Rashid Abdulaziz Al Moalla Member -
Mr. Abdulla Mohamed Salih Al Zarooni Member - 1
Risk Committee Meeting Attendance Record (New Committee)
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Name | Siae B | Title: |
Sheikh Af;rhad Abdulla Mohammed Ali Al _Tha_ni Chairman 1 | ) 1 )
Sheikh Saoud Nasser Rashid Abdulaziz Al Moalla Member

Mr. Amjad Naseif Member - =

(F) Insider Trading Oversight Committee

Declaration:
The Chairman of the Insider Trading Oversight Committee, Mr. Khaled Attia, confirms his responsibility for the
committee's framework within the company, and that he has reviewed its operating mechanism to ensure its

effectiveness.

Committee Formation:

The Insider Trading Oversight Committee was formed in accordance with the Securities and Commodities Authority
(SCA) Board of Directors’ Decision No. (7/R.M) of 2016. It comprises two employees with expertise in stock trading,
tasked with monitoring and overseeing insider transactions. The committee gained knowledge of its mandates and
responsibilities during the Governance Forum held on January 30, 2018. Its oversight is periodic, particularly during
periods when insiders are prohibited from trading the company's shares.

Committee Members:

e Mr. Khalid Attieh — Investment Officer
e Mr. Bilal Nafee — Chief Accountant

Terms of Reference and Responsibilities of the Insider Trading Oversight Committee:

* Review and monitor insider trading policies.
¢ Review reports on trading transactions carried out by insiders.
e Study and provide prior approval for requests to trade in shares and securities.

Responsibilities of the Insider Trading Oversight Committee

o Draft declarations for insiders and supervise their contracts.

Inform the Abu Dhabi Securities Market and the Securities and Commodities Authority of any breaches of the

requirements of the insider trading policy.

e Review insider trading reports at the end of each quarter of the fiscal year.

e Monitor the insider trading policy annually to ensure compliance with disclosure and transparency rules and
governance requirements.

Summary of the Committee's Work Report for 2024:
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e There were no insider purchase or sale transactions during 2024.
» The insider trading policy is monitored annually to ensure compliance with disclosure and transparency rules
and governance requirements.

(G) Statement of the Tasks and Responsibilities Executed by a Board Member or the Executive Management
During 2024, Based on a Delegation from the Board, with Specification of the Duration and Validity of the
Delegation Tasks Delegated:

First: Tasks Delegated by the Board of Directors to Executive Management:

Pursuant to the resolution of the Company's Board of Directors, the Executive Management was delegated to carry
out the following tasks:

1-Management of the Company's Core Operational Activities

e Execute all business activities related to the company’s primary operations, as stipulated in the Articles of
Association, including:

® Insurance and reinsurance operations.
= Payment of accident compensation.
* Making decisions that benefit the company.

2-Making Strategic Decisions

* The Executive Management is required to consult with the Board of Directors when making decisions
related to the company’s strategic policies.

3-Human Resources Management

= Appoint employees and determine their salaries.
= Evaluate employee performance according to approved standards.
* Terminate employees in accordance with company regulations.

4-Follow-up and Issuance of Financial Reports

=  Prepare periodic financial reports and submit them to the Board of Directors for review and for taking
appropriate decisions,

s Second: Delegated Banking and Signing Authorities:

~
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Management of all banking
Sheikh Faisal bin Khalid bin Sultan Al relationships and transactions in 3
Qasimi accordance with the principle of VBals
dual signature.
Management of all banking
. . . relationships and transactions in
?E:Lkih Abduliah bin Mohamed Ali Al accordance with the principle of 3 years
dual signature.
Management of all banking
Sheikh Khalid bin Abdullah bin Sultan relationships and transactions in 3 vea
Al Qasimi accordance with the principle of years
dual signature.
Management of all banking
C oA N relationships and transactions in
g&w’:?dsih'd Ali Rashid Dimas Al- accordance with the principle of S jiears
dual signature.
Management of all banking
, ) relationships and transactions in
Mr. Nader Tawfiq Qaddumi (CEQ) accordance with the principle of 3 years
dual signature.
Sheikh Khalid bin Abdullah bin Sultan | Signing on behalf of the
Al Qasimi (Member of the Board of company for all official 3 vears
Directors and Chairman of the transactions and for all kinds of y
Executive Committee) contracts
Signing on behalf of the
' . company for all official
Mr. Nader Tawfiq Qaddumi (CEO) transactions and for all kinds of Sgears
contracts

(H). Statement of details of transactions with related parties (stakeholders) during 2024, including the following:
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| Explanation of t e L
Wl Sia‘temwi%oﬂhe Related In o ature of the MR i
SR. | Party i Eﬂi‘ﬂoﬂ@p .' e . s
Shareholders &/or Board Prowdlng Insurance
1 | Al Qasimi Group Members Services 63,019.80
Sheikh Abdulla Bin Mohammad | Shareholders &/or Board Providing Insurance
2 | Al Thani Members Services 60,991.18
Sheikh Khalid Bin Abdulla Al Shareholders &/or Board Providing Insurance
3 | Qasimi Members Services 95,281.38
Shareholders &/or Board Providing Insurance
4 | Orient Group Members Services 1,319,331.50
Shareholders &/or Board Providing Insurance
5 | Deemas Group Members Services 872,679.13
Shareholders &/or Board Providing Insurance
6 | Mahmoud Al Farhan Group Members Services 9,5603.73
Shareholders &/or Board Providing Insurance
7 | Shattaf Group Members Services 56,060.74
Shareholders &/or Board Providing Insurance
8 | Bin Kamel Group Members Services 1,878.48
Shareholders &/or Board Providing Insurance
9 | Al Kayed General Trading Members Services 4,709.25
,riu_! = = _5:'. II-” ' "'J- - | | i . Ll 2| mhg o L05 1@

5. Assessment of the Board of Directors:

In line with our commitment to best governance practices and compliance with regulatory requirements, an annual
assessment of the performance of the Board of Directors, its members, and its committees was conducted by Talal
Abu-Ghazaleh Co. International, acting as an independent evaluation entity. This assessment is in accordance with
the company’s policy, which mandates an independent evaluation of the Board and its committees every three
years to ensure objectivity and enhance governance effectiveness. The assessment also aims to identify areas that
require additional resources or expertise, thereby contributing to improved institutional performance and the more
efficient achievement of strategic objectives. The evaluation report was received without any concerning
observations, and in collaboration with the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, any opportunities for
improvement will be addressed to further enhance institutional performance and achieve the highest levels of
efficiency and transparency.

Comprehensive Summary of the Report:

(A) Evaluation Methodology:

The evaluation was carried out in two main phases:

One-to-One Evaluation:
Each Board member was assessed based on a set of defined criteria, with individual results ranging from 86% to
98% and an average score of approximately 92%.

Comprehensive Board Evaluation:
The overall performance of the Board, its committees, and the executive management was evaluated across five
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key dimensions: the Board of Directors, the General Assembly, the rights of shareholders and stakeholders, the
Board’'s committees, and governance disclosures. The detailed evaluation of the Board yielded a score of 98.8%,
resulting in an overall average performance of 95%.

(B) Results and Assessment:

e The evaluation demonstrated that the performance of the Board was positive and collaborative, significantly
contributing to the achievement of the company’s objectives.

* Regarding the implementation of governance standards, the General Assembly, shareholder rights, and
governance disclosures achieved a score of 100%, while the Board and its committees scored 96 % and 97%,
respectively,

(C) Recommendations and Opportunities for Improvement:

Although the results are satisfactory, it is recommended that the Board implement specific improvements to achieve an
ideal performance score of 100%. Key areas for enhancement include:

» Strengthening the strategy for financial and operational planning and establishing more precisely measurable
performance indicators.

* Improving meeting attendance mechanisms and enhancing training and development programs for Board
members.

* Enhancing internal coordination between Board members and its committees to ensure effective and prompt
decision-making.

(D) Conclusion:

The report shows that the performance of the Board of Directors of Al-Buhaira National Insurance Company in 2024
was satisfactory and effective, with an overall rating of 95%. This reflects a strong commitment to governance
standards and regulatory procedures. The results also highlight the Board’s dedication to continuous improvement,
along with specific recommendations to enhance performance and achieve an ideal level of efficiency and
transparency.

6. The Complete Organizational Structure of the Company

The Executive Management Team is responsible for managing all the company's core business operations. The Chief
Executive Officer is supported by the executive team, who are responsible for managing the daily operations of Al
Buhaira National Insurance Company in accordance with the annual business plan approved by the Board of
Directors. The CEQO's duties and responsibilities encompass all aspects of the company's daily operations, including,
but not limited to, representing the company before governmental and non-governmental agencies, interacting with
other entities, executing contracts on behalf of the company, and overseeing the monitoring and management of
the annual budget.
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(A)Detailed Statement of the Names of the Company's Senior Executives, Their Appointment Dates, and Their Total

Salaries:

| Ciecutive
Officer

19/08/1986

904,800 | 142,800 None

Assistant General
Manager —- Fire and
General Insurance
Department

01/10/1995

489,756 | None None

Assistant General
3 | Manager — Finance
Department

11/06/1988

420,000 | None None

Assistant General
4 | Manager —
Reinsurance

12/09/1998

359,424 | None None

Marine Department

Manager 12/02/2012

5

434,676 | None None

7. _External Auditor

(A)Providing an overview of the company’s auditor to shareholders:

Grant Thornton has a long legacy in the region which spans over 55 years. The UAE practice is supported by over 700
locally based professionals who are represented by over 50 nationalities, given diversity is a core fundamental to

providing a holistic yet varied perspective to the client’s challenges.

(B)External Auditor’s Fees:

Name of the audit firm

Grant Thornton Audit and Accounting Limited

Name of the partner auditor

Dr. Osama El|-Bakry

the company’s accounts

Number of years spent as the company’s external 6
auditor
Number of years the partner auditor spent auditing | 3

Total value of audit fees for 2024 (in AED)

AED 420,000 including quarterly reviews.

Details and the nature of other services provided by
the company’s auditor (if any). If there are no other
services, this shall be stated explicitly.

The non audit service includes the regulatory Agreed
Upon procedures performed in accordance with the
CBUAE Regulations.

No other non-audit services are being provided to the
insurance company.
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The value of fees and costs incurred for other special | AED 150,000.
services other than auditing the financial statements
for 2024 (in AED), if any. If there are no other fees,
this shall be stated explicitly.

Statement of other services that an external auditor | Ernst & Young provided services for reviewing the

other than the company auditor provided during effectiveness of internal controls over financial
2024 (if any). If there are no services provided by reporting (ICFR).

another external auditor, this shall be stated

explicitly.

(C)Reservations:

No reservations were noted by the external auditor in the interim or annual financial statements for the fiscal year
ended 31 December 2024,

8. Internal Control System

(A) Board Acknowledgement of Responsibility for the Company's Internal Control System and its Review of its
Operational Mechanism and Ensuring its Effectiveness.

The Board of Directors acknowledges and affirms its responsibility for the company’s internal control system and
regularly reviews its functioning to ensure it works effectively.

The Board confirms that this system is designed to protect the company’s assets, ensure compliance with applicable

laws and regulations, and enhance integrity and transparency in both financial and operational reporting.

Additionally, the Board sets the goals, tasks, and responsibilities of the Internal Control Department, ensuring that it
has sufficient independence to perform its duties effectively. This department reports directly to the Board.

Ultimately, the Board remains responsible for the internal control system and for ensuring its effectiveness, in line
with the guidelines issued by the Securities and Commodities Authority for public joint stock companies, as well as
the regulations of the Central Bank of the United Arab Emirates.

(B) Operating Mechanism of the Company's Internal Control Department:

* Consistency and accuracy of financial and accounting information and data.

= The degree of protection provided to the company's assets.

= The extent to which the internal control mechanism aligns with the policies and plans set by the company's
management.

* The development of preventive controls to avert undesirable events and the establishment of policies to address
any deficiencies.

=  Supervision and inspection.
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(C) Functions of the Internal Control Manager:

= Prepare the annual internal control plans in coordination with senior executive management.

* Submit detailed reports to senior executive management regarding the internal control system and propose
periodic performance improvements.

* Implement the approved control plans in line with the company’s strategy.
* Communicate with employees via email and memos to raise awareness about internal controls.

(D) Experience and Qualifications of the Internal Control Manager (Mr. Javid Saleh Khateeb — Appointed 01/03/1993):

* Bachelor’s degree in business sciences from Bombay University (1984).
* Participated in numerous training courses and conferences related to financial internal control.
* Diverse experience in commercial companies in Bombay.

® Over 25 years of specialized experience in financial control and management within the insurance sector.

(E) Compliance Officer

The Compliance Officer, upon commission from the Board of Directors, is responsible for verifying the extent of the
company's and its employees' compliance with the applicable laws, regulations, and rules.

Compliance Officer Experience and Qualifications: (Mr. Ahmed Galal Mohamed Eissa — Appointment Date

01/03/2024):

Mr. Ahmed possesses extensive experience in compliance, corporate governance, and operational policies and
procedures. He has a proven track record of improving operational efficiency and productivity, with distinguished
expertise in the banking and insurance sectors. He has held positions in compliance and financial crime combating in
leading financial institutions such as:

e  First Gulf Bank (currently First Abu Dhabi Bank)
e RAKBank {(National Bank of Ras Al-Khaimah)
e Salama Insurance Company

Education & Certifications:

e Bachelor of Commerce, Accounting Department, Tanta University, Egypt.
e Certified Anti-Money Laundering Specialist (CAMS) certification.
¢ Certified Financial Crime Specialist (CFCS) certification.

(F) Internal Audit Department

Mr. Mehdi Raza Mamdani was appointed to the Internal Audit Department in May 2024. The Internal Audit Charter
for the company has been prepared and approved by the Board of Directors.
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Experience and Qualifications of the Internal Audit Manager (Mr. Mehdi Raza Mamdani)

* Diverse experience encompassing auditing, risk management, and accounting activities.

* Holds a Bachelor of Commerce from Karachi University, Pakistan.

* Holds a master’s degree in economics from Karachi University, Pakistan.

* Is a Chartered Management Accountant (CIMA) certified by the Institute of Management Accountants, United
Kingdom.

* Is also a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Pakistan (Part-qualified).

(G) How the Internal Control Department deals with any major company issues or those disclosed in the annual

reports and accounts. (If no major problems have occurred, this should also be stated

The company adopts a proactive strategy to ensure effective compliance and governance, with the internal control
department conducting regular reviews. In the event of any major issue arising, it is addressed according to
approved procedures, which include escalating the matter to the Audit Committee (which held nine meetings during
the year for this purpose), conducting an internal investigation, and developing an appropriate corrective action
plan.

(H) Number of reports issued by the Internal Control Department to the Board of Directors.

10.

Reports from the internal audit department are submitted to the audit committee under the Board of Directors,
where the committee presents its report to the Board for review, discussion, and taking necessary actions to
address pending matters. As for the internal control department, there are no reports issued for this year.

Financial Violations

No financial violations were recorded for Al Buhaira National Insurance Company during the fiscal year ended 31
December 2024. Nonetheless, the company maintains a stringent control system to ensure full compliance with all
regulatory requirements imposed by the UAE Central Bank and the Securities and Commodities Authority.

Corporate Social Responsibility and Environmental Contributions

For 2024, the company contributed to local community development and environmental preservation as follows:

+« Ramadan Campaign for the Zakat Fund:
In collaboration with the Zakat Fund and Abu Dhabi University, the company supported the Ramadan campaign
by assisting in the education of 1,000 eligible students through an annual provision of AED 60,000.

* Basmat Program:
In partnership with Dubai Health Insurance (affiliated with the Dubai Health Authority), the company supported
the Basmat program, which focuses on prevention, early detection, and treatment of cancers (breast, cervical,
colorectal).
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11. General Information

(A) Share Price Information for 2024

(Closing price, highest price, and lowest price at the end of each month)

2024 1 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8
2024 2 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8
2024 3 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8
2024 4 3 3 3 3
2024 5 3 3 3 3
2024 6 3 3 3 3
2024 7 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8
2024 8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8
2024 9 2.52 2.52 2.52 2.52
2024 10 2.52 2.52 2.52 2.52
2024 11 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7
2024 12 2.96 2.9 2.96 2.9

(B) Historical Trading Data
09/01/2024 2.8 0 0.00% 2,500 7,000 2.8 2.8 2.8
29/01/2024 2.8 0 0.00% 30 84 2.8 2.8 2.8
16/04/2024 3 0.2 7.14% 1 3 3 3 3
06/05/2024 3 0 0.00% 173 519 3 3 3
04/07/2024 2.8 0.2 -6.67% 5 14 2.8 2.8 2.8
09/09/2024 2.52 -0.28 -10.00% 8 20 2.52 2.52 2.52
05/11/2024 2.7 0.18 7.14% 16 43 2.7 2.7 2.7
20/11/2024 2.7 0 0.00% 1 3 2.7 2.7 2.7
04/12/2024 2.7 0 0.00% 2 5 2.7 2.7 2.7
09/12/2024 2.97 0.27 10.00% 96 273 2.7 2.97 2.7
10/12/2024 2.9 -0.07 -2.36% 342 998 2.96 2.96 2.9

(C) Distribution of Shareholders by Ownership Volume as of 31/12/2024

Local 57.92% [ 21.98%

0] 79.90%

Arab 10.10% 0.00% 0 10.10%

Foreign 0.01% 10.00% 0 10.01%
Total 68.02% 31.98% 0.00% 100.00%
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(D)Shareholder Ownership Distribution as of 31/12/2024

Less than 50,000 624,201 0.25%
From 50,000 to 500,000 35 5,863,173 2.35%
From 500,000 to 5,000,000 16 28,837,608 11.54%
More than 5,000,000 10 | 214,675,018 85.87%

(E) Shareholders Owning 5% or More of the Company Capital as of 31/12/2024

Salem Abdullah Salem AI Hosanl 47,262,150 18.9%
Sheikh Abdullah bin Mohamed Ali Al Thani 33,671,426 13.47%
Sheikh Faisal bin Khalid Sultan Ai-Qasimi 31,354,236 12.54%
FAB Private Bank (Suisse) SA 25,000,000 10.00%
Umm Al Qawain General Investments 24,500,000 9.80%
Suha Elmi F Nabulsi 23,229,905 9.29%

(F) Statement on the Procedures Taken Regarding Investor Relations Controls, Including the Following:

In line with the company's decisions in this regard, the task of managing investor relations has been assigned to Mr,
Salah Daou as Investor Relations Officer. Mr. Salah Daou was chosen due to his fulfilling the required conditions,
including familiarity with regulations and laws, and the ability to communicate effectively with investors, which
enhances the level of transparency and professionalism in dealing with all relevant parties.

Investor Relations Officer: Mr. Salah Daou

Contact: Tel. 065174472, Email: Salah@albuhaira.com

The web link to the Investor Relations page on the company's website: https://www.albuhaira.com/investor-
relations

(G) Special Resolutions at the General Assembly in 2024

No special resolutions were presented at the General Assembly in 2024.

(H) Board Meeting Rapporteur

The Board Meeting Rapporteur is Mr. Mohamed Amin Al-Jazzar, who was appointed on 03/03/2021. He holds a law
degree from the Lebanese University and has over nineteen years of experience in the legal departments of
insurance companies.
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(1) Substantial Events in 2024

e During 2024, as part of the company's commitment to enhancing efficiency and governance, the Board of
Directors decided to restructure its committees to improve decision-making processes and overall performance.

(1) Related Party Transactions (5% or More of Capital)

No transactions with related parties amounting to 5% or more of the company’s capital were executed during 2024.

(K) Localization Ratio

e In 2022, the localization ratio was 10%.
s In 2023, itincreased to 16%.
¢ For 2024, the ratio is 19%, and the company is working to further increase this percentage.

(L) Innovative Projects and Initiatives in 2024

» Digital Transformation: Launch of the electronic insurance portal and development of a smart application for
managing policies and services.

» Digital Marketing: Enhancing digital presence through Google, Facebook, Instagram, and Linkedin to increase
awareness and attract customers.

¢ Artificial Intelligence: Integration of chatbots for customer service and development of RPA systems to automate
processes.

* Cybersecurity: Upgrading security firewalls and implementing MOM systems to protect data and assets.

 Digital Operations and Sustainability: Reducing paper usage by transitioning fully to digital operations and
implementing environmental and cybersecurity awareness programs.

Conclusion

Al Buhaira National Insurance Company reaffirms its commitment to the highest standards of corporate
governance and transparency, thereby enhancing the confidence of shareholders, customers, and the
community. The company will continue to develop its governance policies to promote sustainability and
ensure compliance with international standards. This report has been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Securities and Commaodities Authority and the Central Bank of the UAE.
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1 Overview of Sustainability
® § Achievementsin 2024

Welcome to Al Buhaira National Insurance Company’s (ABNIC) Sustainability Report for 2024. At
ABNIC, sustainability is not just a commitment—it is an integral part of our values and operational
philosophy. We recognize the profound impact our activities have on the environment, our communities,
and our long-term business growth. With this awareness, we strive to make responsible choices at every
level, ensuring that each decision we make contributes positively to the world around us.

This report highlights the meaningful steps we are taking to reduce our environmental footprint and create
lasting value for our stakeholders. We firmly believe that even the smallest actions can lead to significant
change, and through this report, we aim to share our initiatives, their impact, and why they matter—to us
and our stakeholders.

To reinforce our commitment, we established a Sustainability Committee in 2023, dedicated to embedding
sustainability across all aspects of our operations. The committee is driving strategic changes, integrating
sustainable practices for building an equitable workplace, and reducing our environmental impact.
Initiatives such as SHRED IT, along with measures to optimize electricity and water consumption, reflect our
proactive approach to environmental responsibility and operational efficiency.

Our dedication extends beyond compliance; we are committed to playing a meaningful role in the UAE’s
vision of achieving net-zero emissions by 2050. Through targeted sustainability initiatives, we are working
to minimize our carbon footprint, invest in renewable energy, & promote a culture of environmental
responsibility. By aligning our efforts with the UAE’s Energy Strategy 2050, we are actively contributing to
the nation’s ambitious environmental goals, ensuring a greener, more resilient future for all.

2

f' Our Insurance Revenue increased by 17% from 2023 to 2024

Key Highlights and
Milestones

Through SHREDIT, eliminating data securely and contributing to the
conservation of approximately 2.24 trees

Sustainability Committee functioning since calendar year 2023

C ( AED 4.8M invested in digitalization - 18.69 % rise in 2024 over 2023

’IZj/
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ABNIC: Insurer you can trust

Al Buhaira National Insurance Company (ABNIC) is a well-established and trusted name in the UAE’s
insurance market, distinguished for its reliability, high standards, and excellent customer service. Since
our listing in 2005 on ADX, with an initial capital of AED 250 million, we have grown stronger and have
established a strong reputation as a trusted name in the insurance industry. Our operations are built on
ethical governance, sustainable growth, commitment to Corporate Social Responsibility, and contributing
to societal development. Supported by advanced technologies, we have streamlined our processes to
deliver efficient and accessible services tailored to our customers’ needs. Additionally, our strong
partnership with the Emirates Insurance Association further strengthens our reputation in the industry of
being a responsible organisation.

& @

Vision Mission Values
To provide the right To be the preferred Security, Honesty, Integrity,
insurance services insurance provider in Excellence, Leadership and
coupled with integrated the region. Dependability are the core values
solutions that meet that drive our business strategies
customer needs. and key decisions.

Al-Buhaiwa Natienal Insurance Co

INSURANCE FOR

EVERY LIFE STAGE
WEREWITHYOU =&

ALL THE WAY

—

Al-Bubaira National Insurance Lo

Protect yourself with
our ICP-approved Basic
Health Insurance in the

Northern Emirates.
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Our Portfolio

ABNIC provides underwriting for a wide range of insurance types, including Property, Engineering,
Energy, Liability, Aviation, Marine Hull & Cargo, Group Life, Motor, Travel, Medical, Home, among others.
Our core values and commitment to exceptional customer service, supported by the dedication of our
team, enable us to confidently provide a comprehensive range of personal and commercial insurance
solutions. This includes six personal product lines and over 30 commercial product lines, all delivered with
efficiency and synergy.

, Personal Insurance N

$
@ Motor insurance Yacht insurance éﬁé Jet ski
—= insurance
NAAANAANAs
ravel insurance insurance

AN\
ﬁaﬁeﬁ Medical insurance

r Commercial Insurance N

@% Group medical @ Group life
009 090
< am

] Motor fleet

insurance insurance insurance

’ Marine and Aviation Insurance \
ot : ﬁ Marine hull
Aviation insurance % Marine open cover INSUrance

PAVANVANN

]
H Hauliers liability % Ship repair legal
©—0O liability

@ Goods in transit @E Protection & [%‘1 Builder risks
i

16) Indemnity (P&I)

Marine cargo
insurance

F

m
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Property Insurance ~

@)
Property all risks insurance Fire and allied perils Burglary
00
] Hotel comprehensive insurance Strata insurance

Liability Insurance \

. Professional indemnity
Employees liability @g for Architects, Lawyers,
Accountant, etc.

Workmen's
compensation

@9 Product liability

Q Directors’ and
(8&% Officers’ liability

& Public liability

Medical Malpractice

le @ U@

Engineering Insurance \
AN

yw (©) i
@1& Contractor’s All risks g‘ \ Boiler & pressure plant
Electronic

- % .
Erection all risks @ Machinery breakdown - equipment

1 Contractor’s plant &
machinery
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Deterioration of stock Fidelity guarantee S Personal accident
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Our presence and shareholding overview

» Operations across ELEVEN branches

> Services across Sharjah, Dubai, Abu Dhabi, Al Ain, Ajman, Fujairah, Khor Fakkan, Umm Al-
Quwain, and Ras Al Khaimah

Shareholding Overview

Sheikh Faisal bin Khalid bin Sultan Al Qasimi 12.54%
13.47%

18.90%

Umm Al Quwain General Investment Company PJSC  [EcX:]e)/4

FAB Private Bank (Suisse) SA 10%

Suha Alami Fawzi Al-Nabulsi 9.29%

Others 26%

ABNIC operates as a public company, with foreign ownership at 10.01% (from 49%), UAE nationals
holding 79.90% (from 100%) and Arab Countries at 10.10% (from 49%).

The ABNIC Advantage

» Hassle-Free Claims

» Proven Excellence since 1978.

¥ Strong financial stability, liquidity, and ample capital
¥ Recognized and awarded by the insurance Authority
2 Forward-thinking and innovative insurance options
2 Comprehensive coverage to meet diverse needs

2 Round - the - clock support medical claims assistance
> Digital services for a seamless experience

Page | 10
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Financial Overview

Parameter
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Insurance revenue

Insurance service expenses

Insurance service result before
reinsurance contracts held

Allocation of reinsurance premiums

Amounts recoverable from reinsurance
for incurred claims

Net expenses from reinsurance
contracts held

Insurance service result

Investment and other income

Total investment income

Insurance finance income for insurance
contracts issued

Reinsurance finance expense for
reinsurance contracts held

Net insurance financial result

General and administrative expenses

Finance costs

Finance costs - lease

Total

Loss for the year

Tax payments

Community investments

Total Salaries & Benefits

*In this year’s report, we have considered only our Insurance sector entity for reporting

879,881,171

(1,022,783,579)

(142,902,408)

(682,584,155)

778,255,012

95,670,857

(47,231,5517)

33,429,894

33,429,894

(1,477,369)

662,481

(814,888)

(7,418,897)

(1,186,227)

(650,822)

(19,255,946)

(33,872,491)

37,550,000

942,812

36,670,335

1,190,641,861

(1,196,342,629)

(5,700,768)

(841,062,128)

707,183,749

(133,878,379)

(139,579,147)

42,760,945

42,760,945

(22,743,465)

12,845,665

(9,897,800)

(6,792,319)

(18,881,763)

(372,384)

(26,046,466)

(132,762,468)

49,517,041

1,223,755

37,599,792

1,448,902,391

(1,469,728,830)

(20,826,439)

(920,601,503)

899,203,030

(21,398,474)

(42,224,913)

48,912,891

48,912,891

(20,136,315)

10,532,939

(9,603,376)

(5,870,342)

(24,935,077)

(206,412)

(31,011,832)

(33,927,231)

62,542,734

1,540,263

39,371,232
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Awards, Accolades and major Conferences

4
®

In this calendar year, we were honored to receive the “Growth Mindset Award 2024” from Canon.
This prestigious recognition marks a significant milestone in the early stages of our digital
transformation journey and highlights our dedication to adopting innovative practices. The award
not only celebrates our current achievements but also serves as a catalyst, motivating us toward
the realization of our future goals and furthering our commitment to continuous growth and

development.

'
-

\
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A governance discussion titled ‘Revolutionizing- Emerging Trends and Innovations in the Middle
East’ was also held, where the Head of IT, ABNIC shared valuable insights on the impact of
emerging technologies within the insurance industry. This session was a key part of Avasant
Empowering Beyond Middle East 2024, bringing together a diverse group of experts from various
fields. Their collective perspectives provided a comprehensive view of the ongoing innovations
and trends shaping the future of the Middle East, offering attendees a deeper understanding of the
region's evolving technological landscape.

~N

ABNIC was proudly represented at GAIF34 in Muscat, Oman, by our Reinsurance Senior
Management team. Over the course of four days, our team engaged in insightful meetings and
discussions with insurance and reinsurance experts from around the world, building valuable
connections and gaining industry knowledge.
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Sustainabilit
02 Strategy Y

Sustainability is deeply intertwined with our growth story and we recognize its importance in driving long-
term success and creating value for our stakeholders. Our sustainability strategy, supported by a strong
governance framework, guides our operations and reflects our commitment to ethical and responsible
practices.

Sustainability Strategy

At ABNIC, our aim is to grow sustainably and to weave sustainable practices into every aspect of our
operations by regularly assessing, identifying, and reducing the impact of our activities. As stated,
sustainability is a cornerstone of our growth strategy, driven by our focus on three core pillars:

Environmental Stewardship:

¢ Adopting energy-efficient practices to minimize our carbon footprint.
¢ Encouraging waste reduction and responsible use of resources.
e Supporting initiatives that promote environmental conservation.

Social Responsibility: @/

¢ Creating a diverse and inclusive workplace that also emphasizes
employee health and well-being.

¢ Participating in community development projects and charitable
activities. W

Responsible Governance:

Upholding fair and ethical business practices throughout the value chain.
Investing in innovation and technology to enhance operational efficiency.
Collaborating with suppliers and partners who share our dedication to
sustainability.

Offering financial education and insurance solutions that support economic
stability.
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Stakeholder
e«¥ Engagement

At ABNIC, we value meaningful and transparent dialogue with our stakeholders, conducting thorough
materiality assessments to ensure our initiatives align with global sustainability objectives. We prioritize
the input of all stakeholders, recognizing that their feedback is vital for informed decision-making and the
development of an effective sustainability strategy. By actively collaborating with our stakeholders and
addressing key issues, we aim to foster transparency, accountability, and a lasting positive impact that
contributes to a sustainable future. A critical part of this process involves identifying areas of impact and
collectively designing strategies and solutions.

We maintain open communication with a diverse range of stakeholders, including customers, employees,
shareholders, government entities, business partners, rating agencies, and the broader community.
Through various engagement channels, we identify the impact areas most relevant to both our business
and our stakeholders. Below is a summary of our key stakeholder groups and the strategies we use to
engage with them actively.

Stakeholder Group | Who they are Why do we engage Method of Engagement

Website, marketing material,

All individuals and businesses social media, online reviews,
Customers who seek reliable insurance Ensure customer satisfaction complaints and suggestions
solutions platform (direct or via the

Central Bank’s website).

Training programs, events,

All'individuals employed across Motivate them, ensure their .
internal announcements,

Management &

various management levels in alignment with company goals, . .
Employees S . . performance appraisals, and exit
our organisation and aid their personal growth ; .
interviews.
. To provide information on Regular communication, Annual
All investors who hold . . .
. - financial performance, General Meetings, and
Shareholders ownership stakes in the - .
company strategies and receive corporate regulatory
feedback disclosures.
T.a)Regular Communication
through Reporting requirements
and meetings
1.b) Regular Announcements
2.a) Financial results submission
. . ith quarterly communication
Government and regulatory To ensure our compliance with with quarterly ynicati
Government . . 2.b) New Regulatory
bodies laws and regulations

Requirements through email
3.a) Regular Interaction through
reporting requirements

3.b) Interactions through
webinars

3.c) Frequent Announcements

Regular communication related
to business coordination,
development, and agreement
renewal

To promote long-term
relationships and align business
goals

All Strategic Partners,

Business Partners .
Reinsurers, TPAs, Brokers
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Stakeholder Group | Who they are Why do we engage Method of Engagement

To support economic Regular local community-
q Local people around our . S !
Community . development, engage in CSR related initiatives, donations,
operations Ao . .
activities and volunteering activities

Any organisation which provides  To disclose relevant
Rating Agencies crucial information or ratings for  information and build brand
the company reputation

Annual interaction during the
process of the rating review

Through these ongoing and constructive discussions, we continuously enhance our sustainability
approach, ensuring our actions are aligned with the concerns and priorities of our stakeholders. This
strengthens our relationships with them and supports the resilience of our business in an evolving market
landscape.

Materialit
204 Assessme?’\t

The Materiality Assessment is a crucial tool that helps us identify the key Environmental, Social, and
Governance (ESG) areas most relevant to our business and stakeholders.

In 2023, we conducted a comprehensive stakeholder engagement process, gathering valuable insights
through surveys to better understand the ESG topics that matter most to our business. We ensured that
stakeholder perspectives remain integral in our assessment process, allowing us to identify impacts from
two key viewpoints:

N\

® ®®
2 @@
Identifying areas where

our operations have the
greatest influence

Recognizing issues
that significantly
affect our business

We developed a well-rounded prioritization framework, incorporating both stakeholder input and peer
reviews to refine our focus. This enabled us to identify the ESG topics most aligned with our strategic
direction. This assessment serves as the foundation for our 2024 Sustainability Report.
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Materiality Matrix
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Business Importance
Environmental

7. Sustainable Product & Servies
12. Physical risks & impacts of Climate change
16. Environmental Footprints

Social

1. Data Privacy & Security

4. Customer Engagement & Satisfaction

5. Emiratization

8. Employment

9. Employee health and wellbeing

11. Training Development

13. Equal Opportunity, Diversity & Inclusion
14. Local Communities
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1 Overview of Sustainability
e | Frameworks Adopted

The Sustainability Report for CY 2024 provides a detailed overview of ABNIC’s progress, operations, and
purpose-driven growth. It highlights both financial and non-financial performance, strategic priorities,
risks and opportunities, and the integration of sustainability initiatives. The report also offers valuable
insights into the governance framework that supports the company’s overall performance. At ABNIC, we
are committed to reducing our carbon footprint and actively contributing to the UAE’s national clean
energy objectives. In line with GRI standards, we diligently measure and manage our electricity
consumption, emissions, water usage, and waste generation, continuously striving to minimize our
environmental impact. Beyond sustainability, we prioritize creating a safe and secure workplace while
ensuring the highest standards of data protection as a responsible insurance provider. Additionally, we
are dedicated to uplifting communities, working towards greater transparency, quality, and coverage in
our disclosures to drive meaningful and positive change in line with the GRI standards.

The report has been developed in alignment with the globally recognised frameworks and standards,
including the Global Reporting Initiative, Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange and the UN SDGs. We are
committed to continuously improving our data disclosures and quality, while also learning from the best

industry practices.
Ry )Y
@) v/
SUSTAINABLE '\
DEVELOPMENT 4
Vo
ALS

Global Reporting United Nations Sustainable Abu Dhabi Securities
Initiative (GRI) Development Goals (UN SDGs) Exchange (ADX)
Reporting Boundary:

The information in this report encompasses the details about the company’s operation within the UAE,
headquartered in Sharjah and other branches across the Country including Dubai, Abu Dhabi, Ajman, Al
Ain, Ras Al Khaimah, Fujairah, Khorfakkan. The data compilation includes our insurance entity only.

Reporting Period:
The report covers information pertaining to the period from 1st January 2024 till 31st December 2024

Comparable Data:

To enable data comparability, the report includes information for the calendar years 2021, 2022, 2023
and 2024

Assurance:

We opted for internal assurance this year. The information contained in this report has been confirmed
through internal review process involving stakeholder feedback and departmental sign-off on their
respective sections.

Forward Looking Statements:

The report provides a comprehensive overview of various data sets, reflecting both historical trends and
future projections. Our actual results may differ significantly from the projections, analysis, or targets
outlined in the report, due to industry patterns or unforeseen events. We are under no obligation to
publicly update or revise our forward-looking statements during the upcoming fiscal year, unless required
by law. Additionally, our internal audit team is not responsible for forming an opinion on these forward-
looking statements.

Page | 19

13§/



Alignment with UN SDGs
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In line with the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), we are committed to fostering a
more sustainable, secure, and resilient future. Our initiatives focus on environmental stewardship,
resource efficiency, data security, and employee well-being, directly contributing to key SDGs such as

Affordable and Clean Energy (SDG 7), Responsible Consumption and Production (SDG 12), Climate

Action (SDG 13), and Good Health and Well-being (SDG 3).

To drive meaningful impact, we propose the following initiatives:

ESG Feasibility study: Conducting a study to assess
the integration of ESG principle into our products
and services, with the goal of establishing
measurable sustainable targets.

Indoor Planting & Green Decor Workshop:
Encouraging Environmental Responsibility through
workshops that promote sustainable living and
green workspaces

Electricity Conservation Initiative: Implementing a
lunch time power off program to cultivate energy-
conscious behaviours and reduce overall electricity
use.

Secure Data shredding & Paper Reduction
campaign: Raising Awareness on responsible paper
consumption while ensuring secure disposal of
sensitive data.

Information Security Awareness Session:
Strengthening vigilance in data protection and
customer privacy through training sessions

Yoga and Exercise Workshop: Promoting employee
well being, stress management, and a balanced
work-life environment

Sustainability Committee Formation: Establishing a
dedicated team to drive and oversee sustainability
initiatives within the organization

Relevant SDG
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Long-term Sustainabilit
02 Objgctives Y

g Target: To reduce electricity usage by 15%

Through the adoption of renewable energy sources, implementation of energy-
efficient infrastructure, and integration of smart office technologies.

Electricity
Consumption

Target: Reduce water consumption by 10% &‘]}

Achieved by installing water-saving fixtures, promoting water recycling where possible,
and increasing employee awareness about the importance of water conservation.

Water
Consumption

Target: To reduce paper usage by 30%

Moving towards a paperless environment by optimizing digital workflows, utilizing
online document management, and fostering digital communication both internally
and externally.

Paper
Consumption

£ .
Al-MBubaiva PNational Insurance Lo.

EMBRACING SUSTAINABILITY:
IMPACT OF OUR RECENT ECO-
FRIENDLY INITIATIVES

74

Co2 Equivalents - 15 kg | Energy Equivalents-528kW

f ~ Water Equivalents - 4,201L -'

§ nezere,  (@yeoen v shreditE

~ Landfill Equivalents - 0.40 M3 D
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Board of Directors
o I & Committees

At ABNIC, the governance practices are based upon transparency, accountability, and integrity in all
aspects of our business with the motive of serving in the best interest of the organization and the
stakeholders associated. The section delves into the governance framework, highlighting the principles
and initiatives that define our commitment to ethical corporate conduct. By embedding responsible
governance into our culture, we strive to earn trust, achieve sustainable growth, and deliver value to our
stakeholders.

Central to our governance framework is the dedication of our Board of Directors and Board Committees,
who are committed to driving sustainable and responsible growth. They play a key role in shaping the
company’s strategic vision, protecting stakeholder interests, and promoting ethical and transparent
practices. Our leaders ensure regulatory compliance and fulfill their responsibilities to shareholders and
the wider community.

As the ultimate governing body, the Board of Directors directs the company’s strategic path, ensuring it
operates with strong principles and prioritizes stakeholder interests. Responsible for making key
decisions, overseeing leadership, and setting the organizational culture, the Board upholds responsible
governance, guiding the company toward a future built on integrity and ethical conduct.

Role of Executive Management

» Oversee the company’s essential operations, as outlined in the Articles of Association, including
insurance and reinsurance activities, and accident compensation disbursements.

> Ensure decisions are executed effectively and align with the company’s best interests.

2 Keep the Board informed of decisions related to strategic policies. The Board may grant the
Managing Director specific authority to manage these matters.

4 )

Board of Directors

A diverse board with balanced gender representation, a wide range of skill sets, and independent
directors, dedicated to maintaining the highest standards of ethical practices and corporate
governance.

Board Committees

Clearly defined roles and accountabilities of the committees to ensure ethical and sustainable business
practices across various operational areas.

¢ Sustainability Committee ¢ Risk Committee ¢ Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

o Executive Comiittee e Audit Committee ¢ |Investment Committee
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Governance
O framework

To steer our sustainability journey effectively and provide strong oversight, transparency, and
accountability in decision making, we have a robust governance framework . The framework is organized
around these key elements:

Board Oversight

Q 7 The Board of Directors oversees and guides sustainability initiatives, ensuring they

align with the company’s long-term goals.

Stakeholder Collaboration

We value open communication and collaboration with customers, employees,
regulators, and investors. Their perspectives are integrated into our sustainability
planning and decision-making to ensure diverse viewpoints and alignment with
stakeholder needs.

Executive Leadership
Our executive team leads the integration of sustainable practices into our core
operations, promoting long-term growth and progress.
)
0 9)

£

> Transparent Reporting
@ Al Buhaira Insurance is committed to delivering clear and detailed reports on our
7 sustainability performance. By adhering to the international reporting standards, we

provide stakeholders with a comprehensive view of our progress and areas for
improvement with respect to sustainability.
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Enterprise Risk
03 Management

ABNIC places significant emphasis on maintaining a comprehensive Enterprise Risk Management (ERM)
framework to anticipate and address the entire spectrum of risks effectively. The Board of Directors are
responsible for guiding the development and cascading the strict application of this system to grassroot
levels to safeguard the company’s operations.

By consistently enhancing its Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) processes and aligning with industry
standards, ABNIC remains agile in navigating evolving market conditions while capitalizing on
opportunities for sustainable growth. Clear oversight of risk exposure, coupled with the integration of risk
management principles into strategic decision-making, fosters a culture of accountability and prudent
risk-taking across all levels of the organization. Through these proactive measures, ABNIC upholds its
reputation as a trusted leader in the insurance industry, delivering value to its clients and investors.

4 Compliance and Ethical
o ¥ Business Conduct

Regulatory compliance is essential for the ethical and efficient operation of any organization, ensuring
trust and stability. At ABNIC, we have established a strong Internal Control and Compliance System that
upholds integrity, mitigates risks, and protects the interests of our stakeholders while adapting to evolving
regulatory requirements. This section details the processes and policies that strengthen ABNIC’s
commitment to compliance, ensuring we operate at the highest standards while adhering to both local
regulations and relevant global laws.

ABNIC is also proud to support and actively participate in the UAE government’s visionary Zero
Government Bureaucracy Program. This initiative is designed to streamline government processes,
enhance efficiency, and simplify interactions for both businesses and individuals. Through our
involvement, we aim to contribute to the realization of a more agile and responsive government
framework, creating a seamless experience for all stakeholders.

25
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Internal control and compliance system:

To ensure organizational integrity and promote effective operations, ABNIC relies on a well-established
internal control system that aligns with both internal policies and external regulations. This system is
managed by a dedicated team, comprising the Financial Control Manager, the Compliance Manager, and
the Internal Audit Manager. Together, they develop and help in the implementation of a framework that
ensures adherence to corporate policies and regulatory guidelines across the organisation while
effectively managing operational risks across the organization.

We are cognisant of the need for effective and robust corporate policies in maintaining operational
integrity and mitigating potential risks. These policies apply to all business functions and operations,
ensuring consistency and accountability. The Compliance Function ensures that all the policies are being
implemented effectively, also ensuring adherence to regulatory requirements and internal standards. Our
Compliance Policy provides a clear framework for meeting the regulatory requirements set by governing
bodies such as ADX, SCA, CBUAE, UAE Labor Laws, UAE Federal Tax Authority, DHA, HAAD, and UAE
AML regulations. In addition, ABNIC’s Anti-Money Laundering and Combating Financing of Terrorism
(AML/CFT) Policy safeguards against financial crimes. Through stringent controls and training programs,
we ensure that our services are not misused for money laundering or terrorist financing. Employees are
equipped with the necessary knowledge and tools to identify and report suspicious activities, which
thereby strengthens the company's defenses against financial crime. Supported by our strong values,
ABNIC believes in promoting a culture of transparency and accountability through its Whistleblowing
Policy. It empowers employees to report any instances of misconduct or breaches of internal processes.
By providing a safe avenue for voicing concerns, ABNIC demonstrates its strong commitment to
upholding responsible and ethical business processes.

i) sl apell S Lalll 5y
CENTRAL BARK OF THE U.AE.
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Introducing the

"Zero Government Bureaucracy Prngramme‘.'
at the Central Bank of the UAE

Julay| peeii dasil dpoghall sgbiagull pani asliy na s jludial] ASgcal
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We invite you to join the Zero Govarnment Bureaucracy Programme,
where we can make a positive change, enhancing efficiency and
streamlining procedures. awol 85)luiinl
& ladunll o)
& cypnll
Jo Lildpal | pulaig Wload juuad Jga pSilaisey sl a5)lie ahisa)
dubhiagpell pand gl Jus To participate,
Share your opinions and suggestions on improving our services and kindly scan the
streamlining our procedures through the Zero Bureaucracy survey, QR code
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GHG Analysis and
e I Reduction Strategies

The significant rise in Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions since the pre-industrial times has been a key
driver of global warming and climate change, posing substantial risks to ecosystems, economies, and
communities worldwide. As a responsible player in the insurance sector, ABNIC recognizes the
importance of understanding and mitigating these climate-related risks. With a diversified investment
portfolio, mapping and analyzing GHG emissions enables us to make informed decisions and help us
direct our investments towards sustainable assets. By quantifying the carbon footprint of our operations,
we proactively seek to reduce our environmental impact while strengthening our resilience against
climate-related risks. ABNIC's commitment to GHG analysis highlights our standpoint in addressing
environmental challenges and aligning our business practices with the evolving landscape of climate-
conscious insurance solutions.

On 27th September 2024, we hosted an inspiring indoor plantation event at ABNIC’s Sharjah office, in
collaboration with our sustainability partner, The One Percent. This initiative was designed to promote
environmental stewardship by incorporating greenery into our workspaces. The event featured hands-on
demonstrations, where participants were introduced to office-friendly plants and sustainable care
practices. To further reinforce our commitment to sustainability, each attendee received a plant as a
symbol of our collective responsibility towards fostering a greener future.

These initiatives are a testament to our broader strategy of embedding sustainability across all facets of
our business. By minimizing our environmental impact, we are actively contributing to the global
movement towards a more sustainable future.

28
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2 Water Management and
o= Conservation Efforts

ABNIC is committed to implementing best practices for water conservation
across its operations. We actively seek out innovative technologies and ¢
strategies to reduce our water consumption and secure the resource for ¢
consumption by the future generations. By building strategic partnerships and

continuously refining our methods, we strengthen our water management

initiatives. Through collaboration with stakeholders, we ensure that our water u
conservation efforts align with our broader sustainability objectives. Our goal is

to help shape a future that is both water-secure and resilient.

Energy Management and
03 Effimge);cy Imgrovements

At ABNIC, we are dedicated to promoting efficient resource utilization and energy conservation as a
fundamental part of our sustainability efforts. We prioritize the adoption of eco-friendly practices within
our offices and actively encourage our employees to incorporate energy-efficient measures into their
daily routines. Through the implementation of initiatives aimed at reducing energy consumption and
exploring innovative solutions, we are committed to making energy efficiency a core element of our
organizational culture. Our goal is to contribute to a cleaner, more sustainable future by ensuring that
we play an active role in promoting environmental stewardship for all.

14§/



4 Waste Management and
e™T Recycling Programs

At ABNIC, we are committed to adopting sustainable waste management practices that align with our
dedication to environmental responsibility. Our initiatives encompass both internal operations and
collaborative partnerships with suppliers, focusing on optimizing resource use throughout our value
chain. By prioritizing waste reduction and responsible disposal, we aim to conserve natural resources,
minimize pollution, and support the development of a circular economy. Through ongoing evaluation and
enhancement of our waste management strategies, we remain focused on achieving our sustainability
goals and contributing to a cleaner, healthier future for all.

f r@ Vascart h
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CO E-waste and contributing towasds sustasnability.
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Energy Equivalents
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oo @ w Shredite

As a leading insurance provider, we understand the direct connection between our operations and the
well-being of all the individuals and stakeholders associated with us. Our continuous efforts focus on
minimizing our ecological footprint through innovative initiatives, responsible policies, and strategic
partnerships. In line with our sustainability objectives, we took a significant step in November 2024 by
participating in a circular economy initiative focused on the reuse, repurpose, and recycling of electronic
waste (E-waste). As part of this effort, we successfully recycled 121 desktops (CPUs only, without the
disposal of the hard drives), ensuring that no waste is directed towards landfills. This initiative aligns with
our commitment to reducing e-waste, encouraging responsible consumption, and contributing to a
circular economy that values the reuse and recycling of electronic products rather than their disposal.
Additionally, from September to December 2024, we participated in the SHRED IT ME secure eco-
friendly shredding and recycling initiative. Through this program, we helped reduce 15kg of CO2e
emissions, prevented 0.4m? of landfill waste, saved 528 kW of energy, and preserved 4,201 litres of
water. Our involvement in this initiative also led to the conservation of 2.24 trees. These actions further
demonstrate our commitment to reducing paper waste and promoting secure, eco-friendly recycling
practices. By prioritizing such initiatives, we continue to make a positive environmental impact and foster
a culture of sustainability within our organization.
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Human Assets and
e | Workforce Analytics

At ABNIC, our employees are the driving force behind our growth and successful establishment. We
have cultivated a team that brings diverse skills and backgrounds, united by our shared mission of
fostering equality and building a more diverse workforce. As a responsible employer, we prioritize the
health, well-being, and professional development of our team members. We offer comprehensive
training, health programs, and have equitable labor practices, creating an inclusive environment where
every voice is valued and heard. By championing diversity and equal opportunities, we not only enrich
our workforce but also contribute to meaningful change within the communities we serve. Our
commitment to employee growth and development is demonstrated through our ongoing support for
our people, driving us towards a future that is both sustainable and inclusive.

In recognition of their valuable contributions, we offer competitive remuneration packages and a
variety of additional benefits, including:
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Life insurance for Staff welfare Coverage for Comprehensive
Employees funds disability medical insurance
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=
Employee Bonus (subject to Annual airfare Leave for Hajj and
provident fund board approval) allowance Umrah pilgrimages
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Driven by our commitment to excellence and growth, we are proud to highlight a key achievement this
year: the successful sale of a significant number of medical insurance policies in the Northern Emirates.
This accomplishment reflects the collective efforts, dedication, and hard work of our team, further
solidifying our reputation as a trusted insurance provider in the region. To acknowledge the exceptional
contributions of those involved in this project, we recognized and awarded the employees who played a
vital role in the success of the Northern Emirates Medical Insurance Project.

To celebrate this milestone, Al Buhaira Insurance (ABNIC) and Aafiya hosted a success event, recognizing
the collaborative efforts that led to this achievement.

1'
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Equal Opportunity, Diversity,
02 a:ld Inclﬂgion (DEB Y

We as a company are deeply committed to create an inclusive environment that celebrates diversity and
ensures equal opportunities for all. We aim to transcend societal boundaries and build a bridge towards a
workplace culture where everyone is respected, heard and valued, regardless of their socio-economic
status. Our recruitment processes are unbiased, and we actively engage with the community to promote
and integrate these values into our business practices. We recognize that embracing diversity not only
strengthens our organization but also fuels innovation and resilience, bringing a wide range of ideas that
benefit the growth and success of our company. By championing diversity in all its forms, we strive to
create a positive impact that extends beyond ABNIC, reaching the broader communities we serve.

We recognize the pivotal role that local talent plays in driving economic growth and promoting social
prosperity within the UAE. By prioritizing the recruitment, development, and advancement of Emirati
professionals, we not only contribute to the empowerment of individuals from the local community but
also align with the UAE’s national policy initiative. We have in place, targeted recruitment campaigns and
offer specialized training opportunities to provide Emirati talent with the resources and support necessary
to thrive in the professional setup. By investing in the development of local professionals, we strengthen
our company and help ensure the long-term sustainability and prosperity of the communities we serve.
We are dedicated to upholding established employment standards, including meeting Emiratisation
targets set by the UAE government and the Central Bank of the UAE. In line with national labor
regulations, we aim for a 2% annual growth rate in Emirati employment. This initiative is not only focused
on compliance but also on creating a diverse and inclusive workplace that reflects the UAE’s rich cultural
heritage, while encouraging innovation and excellence across all levels of our organization.
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At our organization, we take great pride in celebrating the cultural diversity that enriches our team. We
are committed to promote an inclusive and united workplace, where every individual feels valued and
respected. Through various cultural celebrations, we strengthen this commitment and contribute to a
more sustainable and harmonious future. This year, we joyfully celebrated Hag Al Laila 2024 with
gratitude and togetherness. At ABNIC, we cherish these traditions, embracing the spirit of generosity and
community by sharing sweetness and well-being with those around us. This year, we also had the honor
of celebrating the UAE’s 53rd National Day, a significant occasion to recognize and honor the nation’s
rich heritage and progress. These celebrations not only allow us to reflect on the country’s achievements
but also bring our team closer together, reinforcing our shared values.

.

As part of our commitment to promote education and cultural enrichment, our team visited the Sharjah
International Book Fair, one of the prominent literary events. The fair provided an opportunity to explore
diverse literary works, engage in thought-provoking discussions, and celebrate the power of knowledge
and storytelling.

At ABNIC, we take pride in honoring and celebrating the remarkable women who form the foundation of
our community. On Emirati Women’s Day, we come together to recognize and celebrate the strength,
dedication, and invaluable contributions of women in shaping both our company’s growth and the
development of the nation. Their enduring impact continues to inspire and drive progress across all levels
of our organization. We also observed Onam within our organization to respect the values, traditions and
customs of all our employees, contributing to a rich and vibrant workplace environment.

As we continue to move forward, we remain driven by a collective vision, working together toward a
better future for all.

35

15j/



Page | 36

Health, Safety, and
3 wellbeing |

Our core values are deeply rooted in a commitment to enhancing the health and well-being of everyone
connected to our organization—whether it’s our employees, clients, or the wider communities we serve.
We take a holistic approach to promoting health and wellness, ensuring our services align with both our
principles and strategic goals. Through a combination of comprehensive programs, forward-thinking
policies, and strategic partnerships, ABNIC is dedicated to creating environments that nurture physical,
mental, and social well-being. Our commitment extends beyond traditional risk management; we are
focused on empowering individuals to lead healthier lives. By prioritizing preventive care and proactive
wellness strategies, we aim to reduce healthcare costs, enhance productivity, and contribute to a
healthier, more sustainable future for all. At ABNIC, we also post regular information and safety guidelines
for our employees to keep reminding them of different ways they can safeguard themselves against road
accidents.

In addition to our broader health initiatives, ABNIC actively supports employee well-being through
participation in sports events, such as the GLAWA football tournament. These activities not only
promote teamwork and sportsmanship but also play a vital role in promoting physical fitness and a
positive workplace culture. We are especially proud to have secured first place in this year’s tournament—
an achievement that highlights the dedication, collaboration, and team spirit demonstrated by our
players. This success reflects the collective effort and determination of our team, and we look forward to
continuing our support for such initiatives that contribute to both individual well-being and a thriving
workplace environment.

1
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ABNIC, in collaboration with Aster Hospital Sharjah, organized a comprehensive medical check-up event
exclusively for our employees. The health check-up included a range of essential screenings and services,
such as blood sugar and cholesterol tests, blood pressure monitoring, HbAlc testing, a consultation with
an internal medicine doctor, and a triglycerides test. This initiative focuses our commitment to employee
well-being by promoting proactive health management and providing access to vital medical
assessments.

S.... Aster

G Qs e F e 1
Al-Wubaira National Insurance Co. HOSPITAL

Wie'll Treat You Well

Health is wealth! We are organizing a
comprehensive medical check-up event in
collaboration with Aster Hospital Sharjah,
exclusively for our employees on the 20th and
21st of February.

The chack-ur will include the following services:
Random Blood Sugar

Cholesterol

Blood Pressure Check-up

HbAlc Test

Consultation with an Internal Medicine Doctor
Triglycerides Test (Requires 8-10 hours of fasting)

JOIN US FOR THIS MEDICAL CHECK-UP!

Lt = =
Al-Buhaira National Insurance ¢
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Training and
04 DeveI0|g:)ment

We recognize that investing in the growth and skill-building of our employees is crucial for achieving
sustainable, long-term success. Our focus on training and development empowers our employees to
adapt to the challenges of an ever-evolving market while making positive changes both within the
organization and in the broader community. In 2024, we organized a series of 12 monthly training
sessions, each lasting four hours. These sessions were specifically designed to equip our employees with
the knowledge and skills necessary to navigate the complex landscape of sustainability and corporate
responsibility. A total of 30 employees participated in the program, with a strong representation of female
participants, making up 60-70% of the group, and the remaining 30-40% being male attendees.
Throughout the year, our team dedicated a total of 1,440 hours to these training sessions, highlighting our
commitment to continuous professional development and the ongoing enhancement of skills amongst
our workforce.

@ 1,440 hours Total training hours in CY2024

These initiatives extend beyond merely meeting compliance requirements; they are thoughtfully aligned
with ABNIC’s core values and business objectives. By integrating sustainability principles into our learning
programs, we promote a culture of awareness, innovation, and continuous improvement throughout the
organization. New employees are provided with a comprehensive induction training program to ensure a
smooth transition into their roles and to equip them with the necessary tools to succeed within the
company. In addition, we actively invest in local talent development by offering training programs that
support the Emiratisation initiative. In CY2024, we allocated AED 1.5M towards training programs for
Emiratis, reinforcing our commitment to nurturing local expertise and empowering the national
workforce.




To ensure the ongoing effectiveness of our training programs, we actively seek feedback from both
employees and their managers. This allows us to make refinements that address evolving needs and
enhance the overall learning experience. Our goal is to offer continuous learning opportunities that
support the growth and skill development of every employee. Through these efforts, we are building a
skilled, capable workforce that plays a vital role in advancing ABNIC’s mission to drive sustainability and
create positive change.

In alignment with this focus, we conducted a variety of training sessions, awareness programs, and
workshops throughout the year, as detailed below:

\

Marine Insurance Training: We hosted a session led by our Senior Underwriter and Head of the
Marine Department, covering a wide range of topics including hull insurance, as well as yacht and
pleasure craft insurance. The session provided valuable insights into the marine insurance sector.

. J

( Introduction to Reinsurance: This training, led by the AGM of Reinsurance at ABNIC, offered
@ etailed insights into the reinsurance process, enhancing the team’s collective understanding and
expertise in this crucial area of the insurance industry.
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Information Technology Training: Several sessions were held this year focusing on IT-related
topics, such as Information Technology Department Services and Information Security Awareness.
Led by our Head of IT and the IT team, these sessions provided participants with critical
knowledge in areas like information security, IT security awareness, innovation, and service portals,

along with the latest IT initiatives.
_ —

\

J

(

Anti-Money Laundering (AML) Training: A dedicated session on AML practices was conducted
by a professional trainer, covering essential topics like identifying suspicious activities,
understanding compliance requirements, and implementing effective strategies. This training is
integral in ensuring the financial integrity and security of our organization.

\
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( Motor Insurance Training: Led by our Head of Motor Underwriting, this session covered key
@ =spects of motor insurance, including identifying various types of coverage, understanding policy
terms and conditions, assessing risks, and processing claims efficiently.

\

\. J
( )
Financial Planning and Health Management Workshop: A dynamic workshop led by our AGM-
@ Finance and Finance Controller, this session provided real-life scenarios and practical insights into
financial planning and health management within the insurance industry.
SoSERE . V2 _.- ==
. J
4 )
Real Estate Management Workshop: We also conducted an engaging session led by our Real
® Estate Manager, covering a wide range of topics including investment strategies, legal
considerations, property management, and market analysis, all aimed at enhancing expertise in the
real estate sector.
S NN
- J
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Engineering and Property Insurance Training: We conducted an employee training session on
® ‘Engineering and Property Insurance.” Led by our senior underwriters, the session provided in-

depth insights and technical expertise, equipping our team with the knowledge essential for risk
assessment, underwriting, and sustainable insurance solutions.

\. J
4 )
HR and Career Path workshop: Led by the Head of HR, we conducted the workshop aimed at
providing UAE nationals with the skills and knowledge necessary for career advancement and
exceptional customer service. Participants were guided on the importance of pursuing

® certifications, such as Cll and Actuary, for professional development and how these qualifications
can benefit their professional career growth. Comprehensive training was also provided on
efficiently using the HRMS platform to manage HR-related tasks.
o ;} |
b - A L1~
1\ J

As a token of appreciation for their active participation, all attendees were awarded certificates,
recognizing their commitment to professional development. These sessions not only enhanced
knowledge and skills but also contributed to the overall growth and success of our organization
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Community

=0 ABNIC CSR Initiative: Empowering Future Generations

At ABNIC, we are committed to driving sustainable development through meaningful Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) initiatives. Our efforts are centered on creating lasting positive change, particularly
by empowering the youth. As part of our CSR vision, we proudly support the Ramadan Campaign for
Zakat Fund, in collaboration with Zakat Fund and Abu Dhabi University.

This campaign aims to assist 1,000 deserving students by providing AED 60,000 annually to support
their higher education. By contributing to this cause, ABNIC is helping students overcome financial
barriers, ensuring they receive the education needed to build a more sustainable and prosperous future.

byl A=ola
Abu Dhabi University

" “\‘

=T T
THE EMIRATES

Our Zakat
Our Immunity

=0 ABNIC CSR Initiative: Supporting Health and Wellbeing Through BASMAH

At ABNIC, we believe in promoting the health and
wellbeing of our community as part of our Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) efforts. In partnership with
the Dubai Health Insurance Corporation under the
Dubai Health Authority (DHA), we are proud to
support the BASMAH Patient Support Program,
which focuses on the prevention, early detection, and
treatment of key health conditions such as Breast,
Cervical, and Colorectal cancers, as well as
Hepatitis B and C.

This program reflects ABNIC’s ongoing commitment
to improving the health of the community.
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Customer Satisfaction and
e I Feedback Mechanisms

At ABNIC, prioritizing our customers and consistently acting in their best interests have been
fundamental to our success as one of the UAE’s leading insurers. For over four decades, our unwavering
commitment to high-quality products and outstanding services has earned the trust and loyalty of our
customers.

To ensure seamless access to our services and information, we have enhanced our digital presence
through multiple platforms. Our website serves as a comprehensive hub for customers, providing updates
on new offerings, claim submissions, medical network details, investor relations, and direct contact
options. Customers can reach us via phone, email, or WhatsApp chat, while our active social media
presence on Instagram, Facebook, Twitter, and LinkedIn keeps them informed about important topics in
motor and health insurance.

Recognizing the importance of continuous feedback, we have deployed customer happiness meters
across our branches. Negative feedback is promptly addressed through direct engagement, ensuring
customer concerns are resolved efficiently. Our approach is built on two key pillars:

C

Key Customer Experience Enhancements

- , k.
Developing innovative, customer- ) Responding swiftly to customer needs
focused solutions. through enhanced digital touchpoints.

To enrich our customer interactions and streamline services, ABNIC has launched several initiatives:
> A user friendly Online B2C portal for easy purchase of motor, health, home, travel, jet ski, and
yacht insurance.
» A dedicated 24/7 medical insurance call center for round the clock support.
» Proactive customer service, including policy renewal reminders and claim follow-ups.
P Tools and resources to help customers better understand their insurance coverage.

» Loyalty incentives and rewards to enhance customer retention.
Leveraging Technology for a better customer experience

ABNIC had made substantial investments in digital transformation to improve customer service, enhance
security, and optimize operations. Recent initiatives include:

> Digital Channels & Paperless Initiatives: Developing user friendly digital platforms and eliminating
paper based workflows for faster service delivery.

WhatsApp business: Providing enhanced customer engagement and instant support.
Contact center modernization: upgrading IP telephony to enable seamless customer interactions.

Email Security & Endpoint Upgrades: strengthening information security to ensure data protection.

VVvVVvVy

Medical Individual Portal: Empowering sales teams to issue policies instantly, improving customer
convenience.

Through these strategic enhancements, ABNIC continues to redefine customer experience by leveraging
digital innovations while maintaining a strong personal connection with our customers.
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2 Data Privacy and
o= |nformation security

Digital transformation offers significant benefits by streamlining operations and improving customer
interactions. However, it also introduces challenges, particularly in the area of information security. At
ABNIC, safeguarding our systems against external threats and ensuring the protection of customer data
are top priorities. To address these challenges, we have implemented robust internal governance
measures and made advancements in our IT infrastructure, strengthening our commitment to Information
security and data protection.

As our reliance on digital systems continues to grow, so do the associated risks and our responsibility to
protect the privacy of the data we manage. To address these challenges, ABNIC has established two
dedicated committees: the IT Governance Committee and the Information Security Management
Committee (ISMC), both of which are tasked with overseeing and managing potential risks. The IT
Governance Committee, led by senior management and the head of IT, is responsible for overseeing data
privacy policies, operational security, and Information security strategies. This committee ensures that
critical IT security decisions are carefully reviewed and approved, thus promoting a proactive and
structured approach to information security. The Information Security Management Committee (ISMC)
plays a pivotal role in protecting ABNIC’s digital infrastructure. Through regular risk assessments and
security audits, the ISMC identifies and mitigates potential vulnerabilities before they can pose significant
threats. Comprising IT and security experts, along with senior management, the ISMC collaborates
closely with various departments to integrate security measures into broader business operations while
ensuring compliance with industry standards and regulations.

ABNIC employs advanced Information security measures to protect against evolving threats and ensure
the security of our systems and customer data. Our Advanced Email Security Gateway defends
effectively against phishing and ransomware attacks, while centralized patch management ensures
regular system updates, reducing potential vulnerabilities. Additionally, we have implemented an online
security awareness program that equips employees with best practices to strengthen internal defenses.
Information security remains a key focus, particularly in relation to compliance with UAE regulations. This
includes oversight from the Signals Intelligence Agency (SIA) and adherence to the Abu Dhabi
Healthcare Information and Information Security (ADHICS) standards, which play a critical role in
enhancing Information security within the healthcare sector.

Beyond Information security, ABNIC leverages a variety of digital tools to improve operations and
enhance customer engagement. Targeted digital marketing campaigns across platforms such as Google
Ads, Facebook, Instagram, and LinkedIn help boost brand visibility, while our Customer Relationship
Management (CRM) system streamlines customer interactions, providing a more personalized
experience. The ABNIC Smart App facilitates seamless digital signatures and payment approvals, fully
integrated with banking systems. Additionally, our asset management protocols enhance resource
tracking and operational efficiency.

To ensure secure connectivity, ABNIC utilizes a centrally managed Cisco wireless network, offering
robust security oversight. Website, domain, and Wi-Fi monitoring across all branches are controlled from
the head office, with a secure portal for guest access.

No reported breaches or losses of customer information.
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Ethical Procurement and
Supply Chain Responsibilities

At ABNIC, we recognize the significant impact that procurement decisions have on the environment,
society, and the long-term resilience of our business. With a strong commitment to sustainability, we
prioritize responsible, transparent, and ethical practices throughout every stage of our procurement
process. From sourcing materials to selecting suppliers and managing contracts, our approach is rooted
in principles of transparency, accountability, and ethical conduct. By integrating sustainability into our
procurement practices, we strive to minimize our environmental footprint, promote social responsibility,
and drive positive changes throughout our supply chain.

At ABNIC, we focus on three key areas to build a robust procurement strategy:

Ethical Procurement:

We prioritize working with suppliers who uphold ethical practices, respect human rights,

and adhere to fair labor standards. This ensures responsible sourcing and promotes ethical
behavior throughout our entire supply chain.

Environmental Consciousness:

Our rigorous evaluation process ensures that our suppliers meet high environmental
standards and demonstrate a commitment to sustainability. We actively work to minimize
environmental risks and align with global best practices to reduce our ecological footprint.

Community Partnership:

We engage with local communities through our procurement practices, favoring suppliers

that promote diversity, inclusion, and community development. This approach helps create
mutual benefits, stimulate economic growth, and empower local communities.

By focusing on these areas, we are committed to developing a sustainable and responsible procurement
framework and a resilient supply chain.

Total spending on local suppliers: || 98.08%

Total amount spent on suppliers (%)

2021 99.90%

2022 99.90%
2023 100%
2024 100%
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Total number of suppliers

Local International Total

2021 333 7 340
2022 226 7 343
2023 346 7 353
2024 359 7 366

Customer
Support

At ABNIC, we understand that exceptional customer support is vital to the success of our business. Our
dedicated team is focused on ensuring that every customer receives timely assistance and a smooth,
positive experience. We are committed to resolving issues promptly and delivering top-tier customer
service.

To make it easier for our customers to reach us with their concerns, we offer a multiple
communication channels:

Online Complaint Forms:

Available on our website, these forms provide a simple, secure, and user-friendly way for customers to
submit complaints, ensuring a smooth process from start to finish.

Regulatory Escalation:

We have streamlined the process for submitting formal complaints by providing clear guidelines and
direct links to the appropriate authorities, ensuring that issues are escalated to the correct channels
when needed.

Google Business Page:

Our Google Business page offers an additional platform for customers to share feedback. Our team
regularly monitors this page to address concerns promptly and in real time.

Email Communication:

For those who prefer direct contact, customers can email our customer support team. We prioritize
these inquiries to ensure quick and efficient resolutions.

Each of these communication channels is designed to ensure that customer feedback is easily accessible
and promptly addressed, demonstrating our commitment to providing exceptional customer support.

Page | 48

16}/



Page | 49

(Al
Al-IBubaira Sational Insurance Lo,

EMBRACE
SUSTAINABILITY

Join us in our journey towards
reducing our carbon footprint !

INNOVATION FOR
SUSTAINABILITY

8.1 Digital Transformation 50
8.2 Future Sustainability Initiatives 53




1 Digital Transformation and
® ¥ its impact on sustainability

ABNIC has been committed to digital transformation to enhance customer experience through seamless,
user-friendly services. Our goal is to simplify product selection and purchasing while ensuring fast,
efficient online claims processing. We have adopted a two-pronged approach and made significant
strides in our digital journey. Through a streamlined focus on enhancing customer service with innovative
digital solutions and optimizing internal operations to improve efficiency, we are continuously refining our
processes to better serve our clients and strengthen our operations. At ABNIC, we have been prioritizing
digitization which has helped us to enhance service standards and operational efficiency. We have
launched several customer-centric digital initiatives, including:

\

I
Blili

Qa
\ v\

[ ——
Online Riayati
Insurance Portal Post Office

Mobile Medical Portal Property
Application for Northern Rental Portal
Emirates

—
Sl Mg
T
Agent Medical Digital
Portal Marketing

These initiatives are designed to make our services more accessible and convenient for our customers.

We remain committed to enhancing our internal operations by adopting an intranet as a centralized hub
for employees, implementing managed print services, transitioning selected branches to IP telephony,
and launching the ABNIC Smart App for seamless issuance and approval of cheques. These initiatives are

focused on improving efficiency, communication, and overall operational effectiveness within the
organization.

While ABNIC has made significant progress in our digital transformation, we continue to accelerate our
efforts to further streamline internal operations and elevate the customer experience. Our commitment to
advancing digital transformation is guided by a structured roadmap that aims to enhance internal
operations, improve security, and provide seamless customer experience. To achieve this, we have
categorized our initiatives into short, medium, and long-term objectives (as listed below), ensuring a
strategic and phased approach to our transformation journey.
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Current Initiatives

—0 Digital Transition

Track IT: Enhanced IT task management and turnaround tracking for improved operational efficiency.
VMware Upgrade: Upgraded for improved performance, stability, and secure virtualization solutions.

Intra Portal: Developed a centralized hub for company and regulatory compliance, including employee
consent management.

Core Firewall Upgrade:Strengthened network security against information threatswith advanced firewall solutions.
Pricing Tool Procurement: Procured a robust pricing tool for better control and efficiency in pricing workflows.
Security Upgrades: Enhanced network protection through upgraded firewalls.

Device Management (MOM): Implemented a solutionto safeguard ABNIC assets from vulnerabilities and
ensuresecure device management.

Endpoint Upgrades: Upgraded endpoints to ensure compliance with Microsoft standards (Windows 10 EOL).

Business Continuity: Optimized and secured cloud services to ensure high availability and minimal downtime.

VVV VVVV VVV

Medical Individual Portal: Launched a portal enabling instant policy issuance by sales staff, streamlining
operations and enhancing customer service.

Future Initiatives

==() Digital Transformation

Digital Readiness: Initiated digitaltransformation by selecting and implementing core platforms
Digital Channels: Developed user-friendly, robust digital channels for partners and customers.
Paperless Initiative: Introduced processes and tools to eliminate paper-based workflows .

WhatsApp Business: Integrated WhatsApp Businessfor enhanced customerengagement and support.
Email Security Upgrades: Replaced existing systems with an advanced email security gateway.

EDR Upgrade: Implemented a next-generation Endpoint Detection and Response (EDR) solutionfor improved
threat protection.

Data Center Upgrades: Replaced legacy infrastructure with scalable,next-generation data center solutions.

Data Analytics: Adopted a business intelligence tool to enable advanced data analytics and decision-making.

VVV VYVVVVYV

Contact Center Modernization: Upgraded IP telephony and revamped the contact centerfor seamless
communication and customer support.

== Artificial Intelligence & Automation:

P Robotic Process Automation (RPA): Introducing automation to streamline operations and reduce manual workload.

P Chatbots & AL-powered customer support: Enhancing customer service through Al driven engagement.

=) Innovation & Embedded Solutions:

P APl Integrations: Developing embedded insurance solutions for seamless digital connectivity.
P Procurement System: Implementing a comprehensive system for optimized operations.

P Salvage Auction Platform: Establishing an auction system for efficient asset management.

By executing these initiatives, ABNIC aims to drive innovation, strengthen information security, and enhance both
employee productivity and customer satisfaction through cutting-edge technology.
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Our innovation strategy is built on several key pillars:

/_. Customer - Focused solutions:
Developed online tools and applications designed to enhance the ease of

access to our insurance services for clients.

/—. Collaboration and Partnerships:
By partnering with tech companies and educational institutions, we stay

ahead of industry trends and continuously integrate innovative ideas into
our operations.

———@® Sustainability:

Actively adopt eco-friendly practices, such as reducing paper usage and
implementing energy-saving strategies across our operations.

\_. Employee Empowerment:

Focus on staff training to nurture a culture of innovation, ensuring every
team member has the opportunity to contribute their perspectives.

\—. Risk Management and Compliance:

Prioritize the safety and regulatory compliance of our innovations,
ensuring the integrity of our products and services remains intact.

Amount invested in Digitalization (in AED)

Digital & IT medical expenses, Etisalat- icloud, IT expenses, Canon

4,844,618.94 Emirates LLC, Computer upgradation, and others.

Our investment in digitalization increased by 18.68% from 2023 to 2024, demonstrating our dedication

to leveraging digital technologies for enhanced efficiency and innovation

Amount Invested Invested Areas

1,935,993 Software Update, Various Amcs & Uat Implementation Live

1,713,923 Oracle Support, Security Fee & Computer Upgradation

4,081,886.67 Computer Upgradation, Oracle Support, Security Fee & Various Amcs
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2 Future Sustainability
od= |nitiatives

As we move forward, our dedication to sustainability remains firm. In 2024, we successfully implemented
various ESG initiatives that emphasized environmental responsibility, resource conservation, and
employee well-being. These included the integration of ESG principles into our operations, energy-saving
initiatives, secure data management, and awareness sessions on sustainability and information security.
We also fostered a culture of well-being through yoga, meditation, and exercise workshops.

Building on this momentum, our 2025 sustainability initiatives will focus on further embedding ESG
practices into our services, expanding energy conservation efforts, and strengthening our commitment to
responsible consumption. We plan to enhance our workplace greenery, introduce new waste reduction
strategies, and conduct specialized sustainability training. These initiatives reaffirm our commitment to a
sustainable future and align with the ESG framework, ensuring long-term positive environmental and
social impact.
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9 Environmental .
e 1 Performance Metrics

GHG Emissions in MtCO2e - 2024

49.62 12,564.42
MtCO2e MtCO2e

Scope 1 Scope 2
Direct Indirect

Energy Consumption:

¢ Fuel Consumption

14,080.19

15,012.05

Petrol (Liters)

@ 2022 2023 2024

¢ Electricity Consumption (KWh)

- 185,462.63

204,302.54

Head Office

202,408.57

39,753,993.49

All buildings

30,936,196.07

@2022 2023 2024
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¢ Total Number of Paper Sheets Consumed

< 1,179,357
<
2,143,998
. 1,222
2 1,228
3,791
@ 2022 2023 2024

Social Impact
02 Metrics P

For this year’s report, only our insurance entity has been included in all the Social Impact Metrics.
Hence, we can observe decline in numbers.

Total number of employees

420

450

476

330

@ 2021 2022 2023 (@ 2024

Total number of employees by employment contract, by gender

¢ Permanent contract

@® 202 307
2022 320
2023 327
2024 213
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Total number of employees, by age group (2024)

I -

72

‘ Below 30 Years Between 30-50 Years

Total number of employees, by office locations and age group (2024)

N -

1

Ajman Abu Dhabi
w

Al Ain
—

26

Dubai

iy
«©

Fujairah

Ras Al
Khaimah

I oo' '
- N N
»

44

Sharjah

1Y
o

‘ Below 30 Years Between 30-50 Years

Over 50 Years

Over 50 Years

145
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Total number of new hires, by gender

Total number of new hires, by age group

I -

<30 Years

13

30-50 Years
3

>50 Years

wwl
(3}

B’

@ 2021 2022 2023 @ 2024

Total number of new hires, by job level

16

Entry level

E—

Mid level
S

(5]
(-]
ey
o

Senior/mana
gement level

w-

@ 2021 2022 2023 (@ 2024

24
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All employees per employee category, by gender

e Entry Level

e Mid Level

e Senior/Management level

@® 202 72
2022 67
2023 66
2024 a1

All employees per employee category (2024),

91

45

‘ Entry Level Mid Level Senior/Management level
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All employees per employee category, by age

Entry Level (Below 30 Years Old)

Entry Level (Between 30-50 Years Old)

Entry Level (Over 50 years Old)

Mid Level (Below 30 Years Old)

Mid Level (Between 30-50 Years Old)

Mid Level (Over 50 Years Old)

Senior/Management Level (Below 30
Years Old)

Senior/Management Level (Between 30-
50 Years Old)

Senior/Management Level (Over 50
Years Old)

Parental Leave:

(o]0}l Rctention Rate After Parental Leave for 3 Consecutive Years

51

153

41

n

71

16

41

31

72

150

51

10

75

19

38

33

82

161

54

13

74

20

39

32

30

125

39

37

38

16

27

17
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Total number of nationalities
I
17
19
I

@ 2021 2022 2023 (@ 2024

Total number of employees, by nationalities and gender (2024)

t Female 1 AR Female 0
Male (0] ' Male 1
Algeria ~TTTTTTTTTEEETEEEEES lraq ~ —-==mmmmmmmmss——s—e-
[ 7
@ Female o e Female 13

Male 1 Male 61

Australia 77T Jordan o TTTEETETTTTT

. Female ‘ﬁ Female 0
Male (o] oy Male

Bangladesh Lebanon ________TTTTTTTEET
‘ ‘ Female (0] ‘ Female 1
‘@' Male 1 Male (0]
D;:;‘:;‘,Tiin -------------------- Morocco 7777
* Female 4 p Female 6
W Male 1 Male 26
Egypt Pakistan
| ® Female 13 e Female 8
N 4 Male 58 Male 33
India Palestine T
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Philippines

) *
EN B
B *

-n

o

3

=

®

I

©

Male 12
i) TTTTmmTmssss s United Arab ===~ =============="="
Russia Emirates
c Female 4 E= remae 1 _
Male 2 p— Male 2
"""""""""" United States ==~ ~================
Sudan of America

Number of UAE Nationals by Job Level

38

Entry level

w

Mid level
©

56

Senior/mana
gement level
N

..\ '
w

N

@ 2021 2022 2023 (@ 2024

Number of employees, by performance level (2024)

185

81

‘ Exceeds Expectations Good New Joiner ‘ Outstanding Performer Very Good ‘ Others
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3 Governance and Compliance
oe&d Achievements

Board of Directors

“m

Sheikh Faisal Bin Khalid Sultan Al Qasmi

Sheikh Abdulla Bin Mohammed Ali Al Thani

Sheikh Khaled Bin Abdulla Sultan Al Qasmi

Sheikh Ahmed Abdulla Bin Mohammed Ali Al
Thani

Sheikh Saoud Nasser Rashid Abdulaziz
Almoalla

Mr.Rashid Ali Rashid Dimas Al Suwaidi

Mr. Salem Abdulla Salem Al Hosani

Mr. Abdulla Mohamed Salih AL Zarounie

Ms. Noura Mahmoud Mohamed Al-Ali

Chairman

Vice Chairman

Board Member

Board Member

Board Member

Board Member

Board Member

Board Member

Board Member

Board of Directors composition by Age

o

‘ Below 30 Years Between 30-50 Years

Board of Directors composition by Gender

Non-independent, Non-executive

Non-independent, Non-executive

Non-independent, Non-executive

Independent, Non-executive

Independent, Non-executive

Non-independent, Non-executive

Non-independent, Non-executive

Independent, Non-executive

Independent, Non-executive

Over 50 Years
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1 0 1 Sustainability goals for the
o

calendar year 2025
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~ @~

Develop and draft ESG policies and procedures in line with the industry standards and
implement them for better integration of ESG in business.

~ @~

Decrease paper Consumption in operations and transition towards adoption of digital
initiatives and innovations.

~ @~

ESG Strategy Enhancement: Development and launch of new insurance products with
incorporation of ESG factors, with an emphasis on sustainability and ethical investments.

— @ —

Community Engagement and CSR: Increase participation in community engagement and
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) initiatives by 15% among employees, focusing on
environmental conservation and social welfare projects.

(
o

\

Sustainability Reporting: Enhance the quality and transparency of disclosures in
sustainability reports, and closer alignment with international standards such as the Global
Reporting Initiative (GRI) and the Sustainability Accounting Standards Board (SASB).

|
|
|
|
|

Commitment to ongoing
1 0.2 sustainability leadership &

innovation

Sustainability at ABNIC is driven from the top, with our leadership team actively shaping and embedding
sustainable practices across the organization. More than just overseeing initiatives, they take a hands-on
approach - guiding strategies, making informed decisions, and championing a culture of environmental
and social responsibility. Their commitment ensures that sustainability is not just a corporate goal but a
fundamental part of how we operate, inspiring employees and stakeholders alike to prioritize long-term
impact.
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Dear Stakeholders,

| am honored to present to you our Sustainability Report for the year 2024. This report outlines
our vision, objectives, strategies, and the progress we have made in advancing our business while
addressing risks and identifying new opportunities. Our commitment to sustainability aligns with
the UAE’s Net Zero by 2050 Strategy, ensuring that our operations contribute to the nation’s
broader sustainability goals. For us, supporting the environment, promoting strong communities,
and maintaining responsible and ethical governance are essential pillars for sustainable growth.
Achieving these goals have been possible only through the dedication and efforts of our team,
who continue to work diligently towards making our business both sustainable and profitable.

As highlighted in my previous letter, global efforts to mitigate the adverse impacts of climate
change have led to significant shifts in economies and societies. The UAE’s leadership in
sustainability through initiatives such as the Energy Strategy 2050 and the Sustainable Finance
Framework, reinforces the importance of businesses aligning with national sustainability priorities.
Given that our value proposition is centered around the issuance of insurance across a wide range
of products, it is increasingly important for us to adopt responsible and sustainable practices in
providing these services. We believe that by integrating sustainability into our business model, we
can attract more customers and elevate our operations to new heights.

For us, sustainability goes beyond compliance. At ABNIC, we are committed to helping
individuals and businesses navigate this evolving landscape through dynamic insurance solutions.

We view sustainability as an integral part of our long-term growth and operational resilience. We
remain committed to enhancing governance, strengthening responsible business practices, and
supporting national sustainability efforts. Our continued investment in digital transformation
allows us to optimize operations, enhance customer experience, and ensure data security and
privacy.

Our employees are our key assets. Their values resonate with our commitment to sustainability,
which in turn encourages them to be part of our mission. This alignment not only strengthens our
efforts but also plays a vital role in attracting and retaining top talent. We are proud of the various
engagement activities and continuous initiatives aimed at promoting a diverse and inclusive work
environment for all those associated with us.

| extend my sincere gratitude to our staff, clients, investors, and all stakeholders for their
continued trust and support. As we move forward, we will remain committed to responsible
business practices and aligning with the UAE’s national sustainability vision, ensuring that we
contribute meaningfully to the country’s long-term economic and social progress.

Nader T. Qaddumi
CEO, Al Buhaira National Insurance Company
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1 GRI (Global Reporting
e 1 |nitiative) content index

GRI STANDARD DISCLOSURE ADX DISCLOSURES

2-1 Organizational details 07

2-2 Entities included in the

organization’s sustainability 19
reporting
2-3 Reporting period, frequency G7: Sustainability Reporting 19. 81
and contact point G8: Disclosure Practices ’

2-4 Restatements of information

Internal
2-5 External assurance G9: External Assurance Assurance
Conducted; 19

GRI 2: General

Disclosures 2021
2-6 Act|V|t|.es, value (;haln .and 08, 09, 10,47
other business relationships
2-7 Employees 32,56
2-8 Workers who are not

employees

2-9 Governance §t.ructure and 22, 23,24
composition

2-10 Nomination and selection of 23

the highest governance body
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GRI STANDARD DISCLOSURE

2-22 Statement on sustainable
development strategy

2-23 Policy commitments

2-24 Embedding policy
commitments

2-25 Processes to remediate
negative impacts

GRI 2: General

Disclosures 2021 2-26 Mechanisms for seeking

advice and raising concerns

2-27 Compliance with laws and
regulations

2-28 Membership associations

2-29 Approach to stakeholder
engagement

2-30 Collective bargaining
agreements

3-1 Process to determine material
topics

GRI 3: Material Topics
2021

3-2 List of material topics
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ADX DISCLOSURES

67

25

25

25

45,48

25

No
memberships

15

NA

16

17
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GRI STANDARD DISCLOSURE ADX DISCLOSURES

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

GRI 3: Material Topics 3- 3 Management of material 1
2021 topics
201-1 Direct economic value 1
generated and distributed

GRI 201:Economic 201-2 Financial implications and - AT q

Performance 2016 other risks and opportunities due E10: C_)!lma.te RS -
. Mitigation
to climate change

201-4 Financial assistance 1

received from government

BUSINESS ETHICS AND COMPLIANCE

GRI 3: Material Topics 3- 3 Management of material o5
2021 topics
205-1 Operations assessed for o5

risks related to corruption

G5: Ethics & Prevention of
Corruption

205-2 Communication and
training about anti-corruption 25
policies and procedures

GRI 205:
Anti-corruption 2016

205-3 Confirmed incidents of

corruption and actions taken 8
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GRI STANDARD DISCLOSURE ADX DISCLOSURES
DATA PRIVACY AND SECURITY
GRI 3: Material Topics 3- 3 Management of material
2021 topics

G6: Data Privacy 46
418-1 Substantiated complaints
GRI 418: Customer concerning breaches of customer
Privacy 2016 privacy and losses of customer
data

EMPLOYEE HEALTH AND WELLBEING

GRI 3: Material Topics 3- 3 Management of material

2021 topics 30

403-1 Occupational health and
safety management system

403-2 Hazard identification, risk
assessment, and incident -
investigation

403-3 Occupational health

GRI 403: Occupational SEOVICES

Health and Safety 2018

403-4 Worker participation,
consultation, and communication 36
on occupational health and safety

403-5 Worker training on

occupational health and safety 36
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GRI STANDARD DISCLOSURE ADX DISCLOSURES

403-6 Promotion of worker health 36

403-7 Prevention and mitigation
of occupational health and safety
impacts directly linked by
business relationships

GRI 403: Occupational
Health and Safety 2018

403-8 Workers covered by an
occupational health and safety -
management system

403-9 Work-related injuries S7: Injury Rate =

403-10 Work-related ill health -

CUSTOMER ENGAGEMENT AND SATISFACTION

GRI 3: Material Topics 3-3 Management of material

2021 topics G6: Data Privacy 45,46

PROCUREMENT PRACTICES

GRI 3: Material Topics 3-3 Management of material
2021 topics
G4: Supplier Code of Conduct 47
GRI 204: Procurement 204-1 Proportion of spending on
Practices 2016 local suppliers
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GRI STANDARD

DISCLOSURE

ENVIRONMENTAL FOOTPRINT

GRI 3: Material Topics
2021

GRI 302: Principle 9
Energy 2016

GRI 3: Material Topics
2021

GRI 303: Water and
Effluents 2018

GRI 3: Material Topics
2021

GRI 3: Material Topics
2021

GRI 3: Material Topics
2021

3-3 Management of material
topics

302-1 Energy Consumption
within the organization

302-4 Reduction of energy
Consumption

3-3 Management of material
topics

303-5 Water Consumption

3-3 Management of material
topics

305-1 Direct (Scope 1) GHG
emissions

305-2 Energy indirect (Scope 2)
GHG emissions

305-3 Other indirect (Scope 3)
GHG emissions

3-3 Management of material
topics

ADX DISCLOSURES

E3: Energy usage
E4: Energy Intensity
ES5: Energy Mix

E6:Water Usage

1: GHG Emissions
E2: GHG Intensity

29,55

29

28,55

30,56
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GRI STANDARD DISCLOSURE

ADX DISCLOSURES

Page | 75

306-3 Waste generated

GRI 306: Waste 2020

306-4 Waste diverted from
disposal

EMPLOYMENT

30,56

GRI 3: Material Topics 3-3 Management of material
2021 topics

401-1 New employee hires and
employee turnover

GRI 401: Employment
2016 401-2 Benefits provided to full-
time employees that are not
provided to temporary or part-
time employees

401-3 Parental leave

LABOR/MANAGEMENT RELATIONS

S5: Temporary Worker Ratio

S3: Employee Turnover

32,58,60

32,58

32,60

60

GRI 3: Material Topics 3-3 Management of material
2021 topics

GRI 402: Labor/ . . .
Management Relations 402-1 Minimum notice periods

2016 regarding operational changes
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GRI STANDARD DISCLOSURE ADX DISCLOSURES

TRAINING AND EDUCATION

Page | 76

GRI 3: Material Topics 3-3 Management of material
2021 topics

404-1 Average hours of training
per year per employee

404-2 Programs for upgrading
employee skills and transition
GRI 404: Training and assistance programs
Education 2016

404-3 Percentage of employees
receiving regular performance
and career development reviews

DIVERSITY AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

38

62

GRI 3: Material Topics 3-3 Management of material
2021 topics

S4: Gender Diversity
S11: Nationalisation
G1: Board Diversity

405-1 Diversity of governance
bodies and employees

GRI 405: Diversity and
Equal Opportunity 2016

405-2 Ratio of basic salary and

. S2: Gender Pay Ratio
remuneration of women to men

63

63
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GRI STANDARD DISCLOSURE ADX DISCLOSURES

NON-DISCRIMINATION
GRI 3: Material Topics 3-3 Management of material )
2021 topics
GRI 406: Non- 406-1 Incidents of discrimination S6: Non Discriminati
discrimination 2016 and corrective actions taken - von Lisenmination -
CHILD LABOR
GRI 3: Material Topics 3-3 Management of material Child Labor
K prohibited under
2021 topics the UAE Law
S9: Child & Forced Labor
GRI 408: Child Labor 408-1 Operations and suppliers at
2016 significant risk for incidents of =
child labor

LOCAL COMMUNITIES

GRI 3: Material Topics 3-3 Management of material
2021 topics

413-1 Operations with local
community engagement, impact
assessments, and development
programs S$12: Community Investment 43

GRI 413: Local
Communities 2016

413-2 Operations with significant
actual and potential negative
impacts on local communities
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1

2 Glossary of terms and
o= acronyms

Benefit

Breach of customer
privacy

Business partner

Carbon dioxide (CO2)
equivalent

Community development
program

Customer privacy
Direct (Scope 1) GHG

emissions

Employee

Employee category

Energy indirect (Scope 2)
GHG emissions

Governance body

Description

Direct benefit provided in the form of financial contributions, care paid for
by the organization, or the reimbursement of expenses borne by the
employee

Non-compliance with existing legal regulations and (voluntary) standards
regarding the
protection of customer privacy

Entity with which the organization has some form of direct and formal
engagement for the
purpose of meeting its business objectives

Measure used to compare the emissions from various types of greenhouse
gas (GHG) based
on their global warming potential (GWP)

Plan that details actions to minimize, mitigate, or compensate for adverse
social and/or
economic impacts, and/or to identify opportunities or actions to enhance
positive impacts of a project on the community

Right of the customer to privacy and personal refuge

Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions from sources that are owned or
controlled by the
organization

Individual who is in an employment relationship with the organization
according to national law
or practice

Breakdown of employees by level (such as senior management, middle
management) and
function (such as technical, administrative, production)

Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions that result from the generation of
purchased or acquired electricity, heating, cooling, and steam consumed
by the organization

Formalized group of individuals responsible for the strategic guidance of
the organization, the effective monitoring of management, and the
accountability of management to the broader organization and its
stakeholders
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13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

Term

Greenhouse gas (GHG)

Human rights

Impact

Infrastructure

Local community

Local supplier

Mitigation

Other indirect (Scope 3)
GHG emissions

Parental leave

Permanent employee

Recycling

Remuneration

Description

Gas that contributes to the greenhouse effect by absorbing infrared
radiation

Rights inherent to all human beings, which include, at a minimum, the rights set out
in the United Nations (UN) International Bill of Human Rights and the principles
concerning fundamental rights set out in the International Labour Organization (ILO)
Declaration on Fundamental Principles and Rights at Work

Effect the organization has or could have on the economy, environment,
and people, including on
their human rights, which in turn can indicate its contribution (negative or
positive) to sustainable
development

Facilities built primarily to provide a public service or good rather than a
commercial purpose, and from which the organization does not seek to
gain direct economic benefit

Individuals or groups of individuals living or working in areas that are
affected or that could be affected by the organization’s activities

Organization or person that provides a product or service to the reporting
organization, and that is
based in the same geographic market as the reporting organization (that
is, no transnational payments are made to a local supplier)

Action(s) taken to reduce the extent of a negative impact

Indirect greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions not included in energy indirect
(Scope 2) GHG emissions that occur outside of the organization, including
both upstream and downstream emissions

Leave granted to men and women employees on the grounds of the birth
of a child

Employee with a contract for an indeterminate period (i.e., indefinite
contract) for full-time or parttime
work

Reprocessing of products or components of products that have become
waste, to make new materials

Basic salary plus additional amounts paid to a worker
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25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

Term

Renewable energy source

Senior executive

Stakeholder

Supplier

Supply chain

Sustainable
development/
sustainability

Value chain

Waste

Water consumption
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Description

Energy source that is capable of being replenished in a short time through
ecological cycles or agricultural processes

High-ranking member of the management of the organization, such as the
Chief Executive Officer (CEO) or an individual reporting directly to the
CEO or the highest governance body

Individual or group that has an interest that is affected or could be
affected by the organization’s activities

Entity upstream from the organization (i.e., in the organization’s supply
chain), which provides a product or service that is used in the
development of the organization’s own products or services

Range of activities carried out by entities upstream from the organization,
which provide products or services that are used in the development of
the organization’s own products or services

Development that meets the needs of the present without compromising
the ability of future generations to meet their own needs

Range of activities carried out by the organization, and by entities
upstream and downstream from the organization, to bring the
organization’s products or services from their conception to their end use

Anything that the holder discards, intends to discard, or is required to
discard

Sum of all water that has been withdrawn and incorporated into products,
used in the production of crops or generated as waste, has evaporated,
transpired, or been consumed by humans or livestock, or is polluted to the
point of being unusable by other users, and is therefore not released back
to surface water, groundwater, seawater, or a third party over the course
of the reporting period
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1 2 Contact information for
oe&d furtherinquiries

For further inquiries or to provide feedback on the Sustainability Report 2024 of Al Buhaira National
Insurance Company, please do not hesitate to reach out to us via email at care@albuhaira.com.

Your insights and questions are invaluable as they help us enhance our sustainability practices and ensure
our report accurately reflects our commitments and progress in environmental, social, and governance
aspects. We are dedicated to transparent communication and look forward to hearing from you.
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Q
D1P

THE ONE PERCENT

Developed with the support of our Sustainability Partner
The One Percent
(Supervised by a GRI Certified Sustainability Professional)
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